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NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 60th Annual General Meeting of the 
Members of Force Motors Limited will be held on Thursday, the 19th day 
ol September 2019 at 11 :30 a.m., at the Registered Office of the 
Company at Mumbai - Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune - 411 035, to transact 
the following business: 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To consider and adopt the audited standalone and consolidated 
financial statements of the Company, for the Financial Year ended 
31st March 2019, together with the Board's Reportand Auditors' 
Report thereon. 

2. To declare dividend for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2019. 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sudhir Mehta (DIN: 

00056867), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
4. Contribution to bona fide charitable and other funds 

To consider and ifthoughtfit, to pass, the following resolution as an 
ordinary resolution : 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuantto the provisions of Section 181 and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 
Directors of the Company for contributing to bona fide charitable 
and other funds, a sum up to f 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees twenty 
five crore only), during the Financial Year 2019-20." 

5. Appointment of Cost Accountants with remuneration 
To consider and ifthoughtfit, to pass, the following resolution as an 
ordinary resolution: 
"RESOLVED THAT M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, Pune, who are appointed by the Board of Directors of 
the Company, to verity and review the cost records of the 
Company for the Financial Year ending 31 st March 2020, be paid 
remuneration off 2,40,000/- (Rupees two lakh forty thousand 
only) plus travelling and out of pocket expenses with taxes, if any." 

6. To ratHy the related party transactions In pursuance to the 
Trademark License Agreement wHh Force MTU Power Systems 
Private Limited, subsidiary of the Company 
To consider and ifthoughtfit, to pass, the following resolution as an 
ordinary resolution: 
"RESOLVED THAT in pursuance of Section 188 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made there under and Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Trade Mar1< License Agreement entered for granting license to 
Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited, a subsidiary of the 
Company, to use the Word Mar1< - 'FORCE' (Registration No. 
3519645) and Device Mar1< - 'FML Logo' (Registration No. 
1411 075), at a consideration off 1,000/- (Rupees one thousand 
only) per annum, be and is hereby approved and ratified. 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company 
or the Officer of the Company as may be authorized by the Board of 
Directors, from time to time, be and is hereby authorized to take all 
necessary steps in respect of this contract including agree to any 
variation or novation of this contract from time to time as may be 
deemed fit by the Board of Directors. • 

7. Re-appointment ol Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia as a Managing 
Director of the Company, to be designated as 'Chairman' 
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a 
special resolution : 
"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 
196, 197 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the Rules made there under, if any, the Articles of 
Association of the Company, and as per the recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, approval of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia (DIN: 00025179) as a Managing Director 
of the Company, to be designated as the Chairman, whose current 
tenure is liable to expire on 19th September 2019, for a period of 
five years w.e.f. 20th September 2019, on the terms and 
conditions, as set out in this resolution, and he shall not be liable to 
retire by rotation: 
(a) Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia shall be designated as the Chairman. 
(b) Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia shall exercise such powers of 

management of the affairs of the Company as may be 
delegated by the Board of Directors of the Company to him, 
fromtimetotime. 

(c) Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, as Chairman, shall not draw any 
remuneration, except provision of car by the Company for the 
Company's business or for personal use and free telephone 
facility at residence with a mobile phone facility. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THATthe Board of Directors ofthe Company 
be and is hereby authorized to delegate substantial powers of 
management to Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Chairman of the 
Company, to be exercised by him, and the Board of Directors of the 
Company may grant Power of Attorney in his favour for vesting the 
specific powers of management in him. 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, 
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

8. Ra-appointmant of Mr. Prasan Firodia as a Managing Director of 
the Company 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a 
special resolution : 
"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 
196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V; and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, if any, and the Articles of Association of the 
Company, and as per the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, approval of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Prasan Firodia, 
(DIN: 00029664) as a Managing Director of the Company, whose 
current tenure will expire on 5th November 2019, for a period of 
5 years with effect from 6th November 2019, on the terms and 
conditions including remuneration as set out in this resolution, and 
he shall not be liable to retire by rotation : 

REMUNERATION: 
(a) Salary of~ 10,00,000/- (Rupees ten lakh only) per month. Annual 

merit-based increments as may be decided by the Board on 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, without any further reference to the members of the 
Company in general meeting, during his tenure. 

(b) Commission of such an amount as may be approved by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of 
Directors of the Company for each financial year, provided that the 
total remuneration shall not exceed 5% of the net profits of the 
Company, as computed as per the provisions of Section 198 ofthe 
Companies Act, 2013, as reduced by salary, perquisites and cost 
of benefits incurred by the Company for the Managing Director. 
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(c) Perquis~es: 

(i) Provision of car for use on Company's business and for 
personal purposes. 

(ii) Leave Travel Concession for self and family once in a year in 
accordance with the rules of the Company. 

(iii) Personal Accident and Medical Insurance Policies for an 
amount, the annual premium for which shall not exceed 
t 75,0001- (Rupees seventy five thousand only). 

(iv) Reimbursement of medical expenses incurred for self and 
family. 

(v) Free telephone facility at the residence and a mobile phone 
facility. 

(vi) Fees of two clubs, provided that admission or life 
Membership fees shall not be paid by the Company. 

Provided that the valuation of above perquisites/benefits 
shall be done as per the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 
1961 or Rules made there under as prevalent or as amended/ 
modified I substituted from time to time. 

(vii) Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund to 
the extent not taxable under the Income-tax Act, 1961, as 
prevalent or as amended/ modified/ subst~uted from time to 
time. 

(viii) Gratuity at the rate of half a month's salary for each 
completed year of service, as per the rules of the Company. 

(ix) Encashment of leave, atthe end of the tenure, as per the rules 
of the Company. 

Provided that the remuneration aforesaid, including all perquisites, 
benefits and amenities shall be allowed as a minimum 
remuneration in any year in the event of absence or inadequacy of 
profits for that year excluding cost of perquisites/benefits 
mentioned at Sr. No. (c) (vii) to (ix) above. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the payment of 
minimum remuneration is granted for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 
6th November2019. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a specific approval be and is hereby 
accorded for payment of above mentioned remuneration to 
Mr. Prasan Firodia, Managing Director, who is also a promoter of 
the Company, even if such remuneration exceed 'f 5,00,00,0001-
(Rupees five crore only) or 2.5% of the net profits of the Company 
(whichever is higher) or the aggregate annual remuneration to all 
Executive Directors who are promoters or members of the 
promoter group, exceeds 5 % of the net prof~s of the Company in 
any year during his tenure. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory 
amendment, modification or relaxation by the Central Government 
to Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 or by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India to Regulation 17 (6) (e) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, the Board be and is hereby authorised to vary or increase the 
remuneration including salary, commission, perquisites, 
allowances, etc. within such prescribed limit or ceiling and 
the above mentioned terms of appointment of Mr. Prasan Firodia 
(DIN : 00029664) be suitably amended to give effect to such 
modification, relaxation or variation without any further reference 
to the members ofthe Company in general meeting. 
RESOLVED FURTHER THATthe Board of Directors of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized to delegate substantial powers of 
management to Mr. Prasan Firodia (DIN : 00029664), Managing 
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Director of the Company, to be exercised by him, and the Board of 
Directors of the Company may grant Power of Attorney in his 
favour for vesting the specific powers of management in him. 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, 
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.· 

9. Re-appointment of Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar as Executive 
Director of the Company 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a 
spacial resolution : 
"RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 
196 and 197 read with Schedule v, the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations. 2015, if any (including any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactmentthereofforthe time being in force) and the Articles 
of Association of the Company, and as per the recommendation of 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, approval of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appointment of 
Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar (DIN: 07071502) as the Whole-time 
Director to be designated as Executive Director (Operations) of the 
Company, whose existing term expires on 15th January 2020, for 
a period of 5 years w~h effect from 16th January 2020, on the 
terms and cond~ions including remuneration as set out in this 
resolution: 

REMUNERATION : 

(a) Salary including allowances of t 10,68,0891- (Rupees ten lakh 
sixty eight thousand eighty nine only) per month. Annual merit­
based increments as may be decided by the Board on 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, w~hout any further reference to the members of the 
Company in general meeting, during his tenure. 

(b) Perquisites: 
(i) Provision of car for use on Company's business and for 

personal purposes. 
(ii) Leave Travel Concession for self and family once in a year in 

accordance with the rules of the Company. 
{iii) Personal Accident and Medical Insurance Policies for self and 

family for an amount, the annual premium for which shall not 
exceed~ 60,000/- (Rupees sixty thousand only). 

{iv) Reimbursement of medical expenses incurred for self and 
family as per the scheme ofthe Company. 

{v) Free telephone facility at residence and a mobile phone 
facility. 

{vi) Benefit of furniture, perquisites as per the scheme of the 
Company. 

Provided that the valuation of above perquis~es/benetits shall be 
done as per the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 or Rules 
made there under as prevalent or as amended I modified I 
substituted from time to time. 
{vii) Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund as 

per the scheme prevalent or as amended I modified I 
substituted from time to time. 

{viii) Gratuity at the rate of half a month's salary for each 
completed year of service, as per the rules of the Company. 

{ix) Encashment of leave, at the end of the tenure, as per the rules 
of the Company. 
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(c) Performance Pay: 

Performance pay shall be paid if Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar achieves 
the agreed quantitative and qualitative Key Performance Indicators 
(KPis).ln any given year, the actual variable performance pay to be 
paid could vary from 0 to 25 % of the salary and allowances 
excluding Performance Pay, based on his performance as 
evaluated against KPis. 

Provided thatthe remuneration aforesaid, including all perquisites, 
benefits and amenities shall be allowed as a minimum 
remuneration in any year in the event of absence or inadequacy of 
profits for that year, excluding cost of perquisites/benefits 
mentioned at Sr. No. (b)(vii) to Qx) above. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the payment of 
minimum remuneration is granted for a period of 3 years from 
16th January 2020. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of any statutory 
amendment, modification or relaxation by the Central Government 
to Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, the Board be and is 
hereby authorised to vary or increase the remuneration including 
salary, commission, perquisites, allowances, etc. within such 
prescribed limit or ceiling and the above mentioned terms of 
appointment of Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar (DIN : 07071502) be 
suitably amended to give effect to such modifications, relaxation or 
variation, without any further reference to the members of the 
Company in general meeting. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised 
to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, 
proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

10. Re-appointment of Mr. Arvind Mahajan, as an independent 
director of the Company for a term of five consecutive years 
with effect from 28th September 2019. 
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a 
special resolution : 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Sections 149, 
152 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the 'Act') and the Rules made thereunder read with 
Schedule IV to the Act and applicable provisions of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, if any, {including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and based on 
the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Arvind 
Mahajan {DIN: 07553144), who was appointed as independent 
director of the Company for a term of three years up to 
27th September, 2019 and is eligible to be appointed as 
independent director and considering the report of his 
performance evaluation made during the year 2018-19, be and is 
hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director on the Board of 
the Company for a second term comprising of five consecutive 
years effective from 28th September2019. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the proposed terms and conditions of 
re-appointment of Independent Director, as indicated in the 
Statement dated 26th July 2019, annexed to this Notice, be and are 
hereby approved. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, 
be and is hereby authorized to issue letter of re-appointment to 
Mr. Arvind Mahajan, in respect of his re-appointment as an 

Independent Director and to take all necessary steps as may be 
required in this respect." 

NOTES: 

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO AmND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING 
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING 
THE PROXY MUST BE DULY FILLED IN ALL RESPECTS AND 
SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE 
COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE 
COMMENCEMENT OFTHE MEETING. 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 
fifty in number and holding in the aggregate not more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights. 

A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital 
of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person 
as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other 
person or a member. 

2) Corporate members intending to send their authorized 
representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the 
Company a certified true copy of the Board Resolution authorizing 
their representative to attend and vote on their beha~ at the 
Meeting. 

3) The Statement, setting out the material facts, pursuant to Section 
1 02 of the Companies Act, 2013 concerning the Special Business 
mentioned in the Notice, is annexed hereto. 

4) Brief details of the directors, who are seeking re-appointment, are 
annexed hereto as per requirements of Regulation 36(3) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

5) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 
2013, the register of members and share transfer books of the 
Company will remain closed from Saturday, 14th September 2019 
to Thursday, 19th September 2019, both days inclusive. 

6) Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the 
accounts or operations of the Company are requested to address 
their questions to the Company Secretary ofthe Company, so as to 
reach at least 15 days before the date of the Meeting so that the 
information required may be made available at the Meeting. 

7) Members I Proxies are requested to bring duly filled attendance slip 
along with their copy of Annual Report to the Meeting. 

8) Voting through electronic means-

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 1 08 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended 
from time to time and for the time being in force and Regulation 
44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to 
provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on 
resolutions proposed to be considered at the 60th Annual 
General Meeting ('the AGM') by electronic means and the 
business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The 
facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic 
voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM 
('remote a-voting') will be provided by the National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL). 
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II. The facility for voting through poll shall be made available at 
the AGM and the members attending the meeting who have 
not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise 
their right at the meeting through poll paper. 

Ill. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting 
prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be 
entitied to cast their vote again. 

IV. The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, 
16th September 2019 (9:00 a.m. 1ST) and ends on 
Wednesday, 18th September 2019 (5:00 p.m. 1ST). During 
this period, members ofthe Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date 
of Friday, 13th September 2019, may cast their vote by remote 
e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by 
NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is 
cast by a member, the member shall not be allowed to change 
it subsequently. 

V. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under: 
Step 1 : Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting 
system. 
Details on Step 1 is mentioned below: 
How to Log-into NSDL e-Voting website? 
1. Visit thee-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https:/twww.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click 
on the icon "Login" which is available under 
'Shareholders' section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 
ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on 
the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. 
IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on 
e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares 
I.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) Your User ID Is : 
or Physical 
a) For Members who hold 8 Character DP ID followed 

shares in demat account by 8 Digit Client ID 
with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is 

ln300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID 
is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold 16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
shares in demat account For example if your 
with CDSL. Beneficiary ID is 

12**************then 
your user ID is 
12****** 

c) For Members holding EVEN Number followed by 
shares in Physical Form. Folio Number registered with 

the company. 
For example if folio number is 
001 *** and EVEN is 1 01456 
then user 10 is 
101456001*** 
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5. Your password details are given below: 

{a) If you are already registered tore-Voting, then you can 
user your existing password to login and cast your 
vote. 

(b) If you are using NSOL e-Voting system for the first 
time, you will need to retrieve the 'initial password' 
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve 
your 'initial password', you need to enter the 'initial 
password' and the system will force you to change 
your password. 

{c) How to retrieve your 'initial password'? 

Q) If your email 10 is registered in your demat 
account or with the company, your 'initial 
password' is communicated to you on your email 
10. Trace the email sent to you from NSOL from 
your mailbox. Open the email and open the 
attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client 
10 for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client 10 for 
CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your 'User ID' 
and your 'initial password'. 

Qi) If your email ID is not registered, your 'initial 
password' is communicated to you on your 
postal address. 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the "Initial 
password" or have forgotten your password: 

(a) Click on "Forgot User DetaiiS/Password?"(lf you are 
holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or 
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

{b) Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding 
shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

(c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid 
two options, you can send a request at evoting@ 
nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/ 
folio number, your PAN, your name and your 
registered address. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and 
Conditions" by selecting on the check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on "Login" button. 

9. After you click on the "Login" button, Home page of a­
Voting will open. 

Details on Step 2 is given below: 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting 
system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1 , you will be able to see 
the Home page of e-Voting.Ciick on e-Voting. Then, 
click on Active Voting Cycles. 

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to 
see all the companies "EVEN" in which you are 
holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active 
status. 

3. Select "EVEN" ofcompanyforwhich you wish to cast 
your vote. 

4. Now you are ready for a-Voting as the Voting page 
opens. 
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5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. 
assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on 
"Submit" and also "Confirm" when prompted. 

6. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast 
successfully" will be displayed. 

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you 
by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page. 

8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will 
not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. lnstttutional shareholders O.e. other than individuals, HUF. NRI 

etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the 
relevant Board Resolution I Authority letter, etc. with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to san jay_ athavale 
@pgbhagwatca.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co. in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such 
an event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User 
DetailS/Password?" or "Physical User Reset Password?" option 
available on www.evoting .nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for 
Shareholders available at the download section of www. 
evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
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i. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their 
shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as 
on the cut-off date of 13th September 2019. 

ii. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and 
become member of the Company after dispatch of the notice 
and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 13th September 
2019, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co. in or to the Company I RTA. 

iii. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising 
his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be 
allowed to vote again at the AGM. 

iv. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members 
or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail 
the facility of remote e-voting I voting at the AGM through poll 
paper. 

v. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the 
user profile details of the folio which may be used for sending 
future communication(s). 

vi. Mr. Sanjay Athavale, Chartered Accountant (FCA No. 83374) 
having office at Suite No. 102, "Orchard", Dr. Pai Marg, Baner, 
Pune- 411 045, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to 
scrutinize the voting through poll and remote e-voting process 
in a fair and transparent manner. 

vii. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on 
the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with 
the assistance of the Scrutinizer, by use of poll paper for all 
those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast 
their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility. 

viii. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, 

will first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the 
presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of 
the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the 
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of 
the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman 
or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall 
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting 
forthwith. 
The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer 
shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.forcemotors.com and on the website of NSDL 
immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or 
a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be 
immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai. 

9) Members of the Company are requested to note that the dividend 
remaining unclaimed I unpaid for a period of seven years from the 
date of its transfer to Unclaimed Dividend Account shall be 
credited to the Investor Education and Protection Fund ('the Fund') 
set up by the Central Government. The members who have so far 
not claimed the dividends declared for the Financial Years 2011-
12, 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16, 2016-17 and 
2017-18 are requested to make their claim with the Company 
immediately. The Company has uploaded the details of such 
shareholders on the website of the Company at www. 
forcemotors.com and also on the website of the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs at www.mca.gov.in. Further, the members who 
have not encashed dividend in previous consecutive seven years, 
are requested to approach the Company/Registrar and Transfer 
Agent for claiming the same as early as possible, to avoid transfer 
of the relevant shares to the IEPF demat account. 

1 0} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI} has mandated 
the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN 
details to their Depository Participant(s) with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in 
physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company I 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

11) As a step for paperless communication with the members of the 
Company, the Company has decided to forward all notices, 
circulars and other documents to be served on members through 
electronic mode. 
The members of the Company are requested to communicate their 
e-mail address on which they would like to have these 
communications. The e-mail address can be communicated 
through the enclosed letter as per specimen signature 
recorded with the Company and addressed to the Secretarial 
Department, Force Motors Limited, Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, 
Pune- 411 035 or Link lntime India Private Limited, Block No. 202, 
Akshay Complex, Near Ganesh Temple, Off. Dhole Patil Road, 
Pune-411 001. 

In view of the provisions of Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 35 of the Companies (Incorporation} Rules, 2014 
henceforth the email id provided by the members holding shares in 
dematerialized and physical form would be treated as email id 
provided by the members for sending communication. Hence 
annual report and notices of any general meeting or other 
communication would be made only on these e-mail IDs and no 
separate paper communication would be made with such 
members. 
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12) As per the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 and pursuant to SEBI 
Circular dated 20th April 2018, the Company shall use any 
electronic mode of payment approved by the Reserve Bank of India 
for making payment of dividend to the members. Accordingly, 
dividend, if declared, will be paid through electronic mode, where 
the bank account details of the members required for this purpose 
are available. 
For enabling the payment of dividend through electronic mode, 
members holding shares in physical form are requested to furnish 
the details well in advance to update particulars of their bank 
account to the Company's RTA; Link lntime India Pvt. Ltd. along 
w~h a photocopy of a cancelled cheque ofthe bank account, self­
attested copy of Permanent Account Number (PAN) card. 
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to 
furnish their bank account details to their respective depos®ry 
participants and make sure that such changes are recorded by 
them correctly well in advance. The request for updating of 
particulars of bank account should be signed as per the specimen 
signature registered with the RTA /depos~ory participants, as the 
case maybe. 

13) Members holding shares in single name are advised to make 
nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company. The 
nomination form can be downloaded from the Company's website 
www.forcemotors.com. 

14) The Annual Report 2018-19 of the Company, circulated to the 
members of the Company, is available on the Company's website 
at www.forcemotors.com and also on the webs~e of BSE Limited 
atwww.bseindia.com. 

15) All documents referred to in the Notice and Statement are open for 
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all working 
days (lime: 10.00 a.m. to 3.30 p.m.) till the 60th Annual General 
Meeting i.e., 19th September 2019. 
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16} The Directors Identification Number (DIN) of the Directors are as 
follows: 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN 
1 Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia 00025179 
2 Mr. Prasan Firodia 00029664 
3 Mr. Sudhir Mehta 00056867 
4 Mr. Pratap Pawar 00018985 
5 Mr. S. Padmanabhan 00001207 

6 Mr. Nitin Desai 00140239 
7 Mr. Arvind Mahajan 07553144 

8 Dr. Indira Parikh 00143801 
9 Mr. Arun Sheth 00086891 
10 Mr. Anant Talaulicar 00031051 
11 Lt. Gen. (Retd.) D.B. Shekatkar 02676828 
12 Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar 07071502 

17} The route map of the venue of the Meeting is given at the end of 
the Annual Report. The prominent landmark for the venue is 
Khandoba Mandir that adjoins Jaya Hind Industries Limited that 
adjoins Force Motors Limited. 

Pune, 26th July 2019. 

Registered Office : 
Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, 
Pune-411 035. 

CIN: L34102PN1958PLC011172 
Website: www.forcemotors.com 
Phone: (Board) +91 202747 6381 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Force Moton Limited 

Klshore P. Shah 
Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer 

E-mail: compliance-officer@forcemotors.com 

09 



® 
FORCE 

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE 
In conlonnity with the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('tile Act'), the following statements sets out a lithe material facts relating to lhe 
special business as mentioned In the notice, Including brief details of the directors who are seeking re-appointment as per the requirements of Regulation 
36(3) olthe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Item No. 3 this ordinary resolution as a matter of caution, though the said Cost 
Mr. Sudhir Mehta (DIN: 00056867) Accountants are not appointed to audit the Cost Records of the Company. 
Mr. Sudhir Mehta {DIN 00056867), aged 50 years, holds a Bachelor's The said appointment of M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates was made by the 
Degree from DePauw University of u.S.A., and Master's Degree in Board, on the basis of recommendations oftheAuditCommittee. 
Business Management from the University of Chicago. He has extensive None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
experience as an Investment Banker and as an Entrepreneur. He is relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, in this resolution, 
presently the Managing Director of Pinnacle Industries Limited and is also except to the extent of their respective shareholding if any, in the 
on the Boards of Mahratta Chamber of Commerce, Industries and Company. 
Agricu~ure and MCCIA Electronic Cluster Foundation. The Board recommends the resolution as set out in Item No. 5 for the 
He is also a Director 1 Partner in the following companies 1 LLP: Caveo approval of the members of the Company. 
Pinnacle India Pvt. Ltd., Rivulis Irrigation India Private Limited, Kider Item No. & 
{India) Private Limited, lndaux India Private Limited, VDL Pinnacle 
Engineering India Private Limited, Arcatron Mobility Private Limited, 
Stone Angel Technologies LLP. lsravat Consu~ing Limited, Epitome 
Components Pvt. Ltd., Israel, Pinnacle Social and Charitable Foundation, 
Association of Certified Valuators and Analysts, Pune City Connect 
Development Foundation and AIC-Pinnacle Entrepreneurship Forum. 
He is not related to any director except Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, 
Chairman of the Company. He does not hold any shares in the Company. 
He is a Chairman of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee, a 
member of Audit Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee of the Board. 
Mr. Mehta is not disqualified from being appointed as director in terms of 
Section 164 of the Act and being eligible, offers himself for 
reappointment. 
None of the Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives, except Mr. Sudhir Mehta and Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, are 
concerned or interested, in any way, in this resolution, except to the 
extent of their respective shareholding if any, in the Company. 
The Board recommends this resolution as set out in Item No. 3 for the 
approval by the members of the Company. 
ltamNo.4 
Contribution to bona fide charitable and other funds 
As per the provisions of Section 181 of the Act prior permission of the 
Company, in general meeting, is required to contribute to bona fide 
charitable and other funds, if the aggregate amounts, in any financial year 
exceeds 5% of the Company's average net profits for three immediately 
preceding financial years. Considering the Company's profitability 
position in recent years and the requirement of donating certain amount 
to charitable institutions, the Board of Directors consider thatthe consent 
ofthe members ofthe Company should be obtained to contribute the sum 
up to f 25,00,00,000/- {Rupees twenty five crore only) to bona fide 
charitable and other funds during the Financial Year 2019-20. 
None of the Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, in this resolution, 
except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in the 
Company. 
The Board recommends the resolution as set out in ~em No. 4 for the 
approval ofthe members of the Company. 
Item No.5 
Appointment or Cost Accountants with remuneration 
The Board, after considering the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration to 
M/s. Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants, Pune to conduct 
verification and review of the cost records of the Company for 
the Financial Year ending 31st March 2020 on a remuneration of 
f 2,40,000/- {Rupees two lakh forty thousand only) plus travelling and 
out of pocket expenses and taxes, if any. 
Considering the applicable provisions of the Act and Rules made 
thereunder, approval ofthe members of the Company is being sought by 
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Ratification of related party transaction in pursuance to the Trada 
Mark License Agreement with Force MTU Power Systems Pvt. Ltd., a 
subsidiary of the Company 
As been discussed and approved by the Board, Force MTU Power 
Systems Private Limited (the 'FMTU') was incorporated on 7th August, 
2018, as a joint venture between the Company and Rolls Royce Power 
Systems AG {RR), through its subsidiary company namely MTU 
Friedrichshafen GmbH for engaging in the business of development, 
manufacture and marketing of engines, engines for power generation, 
complete power generators and engines for various applications like Rail. 
The Board has approved execution of Trade Mark License Agreement 
granting license at a consideration of~ 1,000/- (Rupees one thousand 
only) per annum, to the 'FMTU', subsidiary of the Company. Considering 
the provisions of Sections 2(76) and 188 of the Act, the 'FMTU' is a 
related party of the Company and considering the minimum 
consideration being charged to the FMTU for using Company's Marks, 
the matter is put before the members for their ratification. Accordingly, a 
resolution in item No. 6 is proposed in the notice calling 60th Annual 
General Meeting for ratification of aforementioned agreement. 
The following disclosure(s) for providing of services to the related party 
is made in accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 15 of the Companies {Meetings of Board 
and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to lime and for the 
time being in force : 

Sr.no. Particulars Remarks 
a. Name of Related Party Force MTU Power Systems 

Private Limited 
b. Name of the Directors and 1. Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Chairman 

Key Managerial Personnel 2. Mr. Prasan Firodia, 
who is related, if any Managing Director 

3. Mr. Plash ant V. lnamdar, 
Executive Director (Operations) 

c. Nature of relationship Force MTU Power Systems Private 
Umitad is a subsidiary of the Company, 
in which the Company holds 51% of 
total paid-up share capital. 

d. Nature, Material tenns, As per the Joint Venture Agreement 
monetary value and dated 20th March 2018, executed by 
particulars of the contract and between the Company and MTU 
or arrangements Friedrichshafen GmbH (MTU), provided 

for grant of necessary licenses, 
permitting use of Joint Venture 
Partners' names and brands, to the 
Company. The Company has granted 
license to Force MTU Power Systems 
Pvt. Ltd. to use word 'Force' in its 
name. The License was granted tor a 
consideration off 1,000/- (Rupees one 
thousand only) per annum. 

e. Any other information The agreement was executed on 
relevant or important for 10th May 2019, on such terms and 
the members to take a conditions as were approved by the 
decision on the proposed Board. 
resolution. 
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Members are requested to ratify the Trademark License Agreement as 
executed between the Company and the 'FMTU' on 1Oth May 2019. 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Chairman, Mr. Prasan Firodia, Managing 
Director and Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar, Executive Director (Operations), of 
the Company; are nominated as the directors on the board of directors of 
the 'FMTU'. Due to this directorship, they may be deemed to be interested 
in the matter. 
Further, considering the provisions of Section 188 of the Act and 
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, no related party of the Company shall 
vote to approve this resolution. 
None of the Directors 1 Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives except Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Mr. Prasan Firodia and 
Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar is concerned or interested, in any way, in this 
resolution, except to the extent of their respective shareholding if any, in 
the Company. 
The Board recommends this resolution as set out in Item no. 6 for the 
approval of the members of the Company. 
Item No.7 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia (DIN: 00025179) 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia (DIN: 00025179), was appointed as a Managing 
Director and designated as 'Chairman' of the Company w.e.f. 
20th September 2014 till 19th September 2019. The Board in its meeting 
held on 26th July 2019 has, subject to the approval of Members of the 
Company, re-appointed Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, as a Managing 
Director designated as 'Chairman', for a period of 5 (five) years from 
20th September 2019. 
It is proposed to seek the Members' approval for the re-appointment of 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, as a Managing Director designated as 
'Chairman', in terms of the applicable provisions ofthe Act. 
Brief Resume: Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, {DIN: 00025179), aged 7 4 years, 
is associated with the Company as a Director since 1975. 
Considering the various projects being undertaken by the Company and 
the market situation requiring band width at the highest level of the 
management, the Board requested Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia to assist the 
Company in the management of the Company. In order to ensure the 
compliance of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made there under, a proposal to re-appoint Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia as 
Managing Director and enabling the Board to delegate substantial powers 
of the management to him. Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia holds 2,64,351 
equity shares of~ 1 01- (Rupees ten only) each ofthe Company. 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia has indicated that he would not draw any 
remuneration, including sitting fees. The Company has agreed to make 
arrangement of cars, telephone I mobile for Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia. 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia is Managing Director of Jaya Hind Industries 
Limited and is drawing remuneration from that company. 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia is Director in the following companies: 
Jaya Hind Industries Limited, Jaya Hind Montupet Private Limited, Force 
MTU Power Systems Private Limited, Mahratta Chamber of Commerce, 
Industries & Agriculture, The Indo German Chamber of Commerce and 
RAN Chemicals Private Limited. 
He is a member of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the 
Board. 
Considering the vast experience and expertise of Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia 
in the automobile industry, in the opinion of the Board, re-appointment of 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, to be designated as Chairman would be in the 
best interests of the Company. 
Subject to the provisions of Article 158 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company, during his tenure as Managing Director, to be designated as 
Chairman of the Company, Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia will not be liable to 
retire by rotation. 
None of the Directors 1 Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives, except Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Mr. Prasan Firodia, being son of 
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Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia and Mr. Sudhir Mehta, being son-in-law of 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, are concerned or interested, in any way, in this 
resolution, except to the extent of their respective shareholding, if any, in 
the Company. 
The Board recommends this special resolution as set out in Item no. 7 for 
the approval of the members of the Company. 
Item No.8 
Mr. Prasan Firodia (DIN: 00029664) 
Mr. Prasan Firodia (DIN: 00029664) is appointed as a Managing Director, 
for a period of 5 (five) years w.e.f. 6th November 2019, by the Board atthe 
remuneration recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee ofthe Board. 
It is proposed to seek the Members' approval for the re-appointment of 
and for payment of remuneration to Mr. Prasan Firodia as Managing 
Director, in terms of the applicable provisions of the Act and the SEBI 
{Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
Particulars of the terms of re-appointment of and remuneration payable to 
Mr. Prasan Firodia are as stated in the said resolution. 
Brief resume: Mr. Prasan Firodia, aged 40 years, holds a Bachelor's 
Degree in Business Administration, was appointed as a Director of the 
Company on 17th December 2003 and as the Managing Director of the 
Company with effect from 6th November 2009. He was re-appointed as 
Managing Director of the Company from 6th November 2014 for a period 
of 5 years. He is also the Managing Director of Jaya Hind Industries 
Limited. He shall not draw any remuneration as the Managing Director 
from Jaya Hind Industries Limited. Mr. Prasan Firodia holds 2,20,763 
equity shares of~ 101- each of the Company constituting 1.68% of the 
paid up share capital of the Company. 
No formal contracts, except the resolution passed by the Board of 
Directors and in the General Meeting, are expected to be executed with the 
Managing Director. As any other Director, Managing Director shall be 
entitled to resign from the services by submitting resignation and no other 
fee or any compensation is payable to him by the Company for 
termination of this arrangement. 
Mr. Prasan Firodia's job profile is to manage the business of the 
Company. He will have substantial powers of management. The Board of 
Directors would grant an exhaustive Power of Attorney in favour of 
Mr. Prasan Firodia, in order to vest powers to manage and have 
substantial powers of management of the affairs of the Company. 
As per the provisions of Article 158 of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, during his tenure as Managing Director of the Company, 
Mr. Prasan Firodia will not be liable to retire by rotation. 
Mr. Prasan Firodia is Director in the following companies : 
Jaya Hind Industries Limited, Jaya Hind Montupet Private Limited, Force 
MTU Power Systems Private Limited and Sana BLW Precision Forgings 
Limited. 
He is a member of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee of the 
Board. 
The Company has not made any default in respect of repayment of any 
debt, including but not limited to, public deposits, debentures, interest 
thereon or dues to banks or financial institutions. 
The Company is not having any investment from any collaborator in its 
equity share capital. 
The proposed remuneration is as indicated in the Resolution. Considering 
the other companies operating in the automobile industry and similar 
area, the managerial remuneration is normally accounted for 0.01% to 1% 
of the turnover. 
Considering his age, experience, qualification and performance, the 
Board of Directors and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the 
Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr. Prasan Firodia, being a 
Director representing the Promoters of the Company, is suitable for the 
post. 
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The amount of commission to be paid to the Managing Director shall be 
decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board 
of Directors of the Company, year to year, based on the performance of 
the Company, profitability of the Company, performance of the Managing 
Director and other factors as may be considered appropriate by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee ofthe Board. 
The Company has not announced or offered any employees' stock option 
scheme and the remuneration to be paid to Mr. Prasan Firodia includes the 
elements in the Resolution only. 
The above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms 
of re-appointment of Mr. Prasan Firodia under Section 190 of the Act. 
None of the Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives, except Mr. Prasan Firodia and Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, being 
father of Mr. Prasan Firodia, are concerned or interested, in any way, in 
this resolution, except to the extent oftheir respective shareholding, if any, 
in the Company. 
The Board recommends this special resolution as set out in Item no. 8 for 
the approval of the members of the Company. 
Item No.9 
Mr. Prashant V.lnamdar (DIN: 07071502) 
Mr. Prashant V.lnamdar (DIN: 07071502) whose existing term is about to 
expire on 15th January 2020, is re-appointed as the Executive Director 
(Operations) by the Board, for a period of 5 years w.e.f. 16th January 
2020, at the remuneration recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee ofthe Board. 
It is proposed to seek the Members' approval for the re-appointment and 
payment of remuneration to Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar to be designated as 
the Executive Director (Operations), in terms of the applicable provisions 
of the Act. 
Particulars of the terms of appointment and remuneration payable to 
Mr. Prashant V.l namdar are as stated in the resolution above. 
Brief resume: Mr. Prashant V.lnamdar, aged 54 years, diploma holder in 
Mechanical Engineering, is a Director of the Company from 16th January 
2015. Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar started his career at Force Motors Limited 
as a Junior Engineer in 1984. Since then he has worked and proven his 
mettle in different divisions. During his tenure in Corporate Controlling he 
worked across Industrial Engineering, Management Information 
Services, Industrial Relations, Human Resource Development and SAP 
Implementation Projects. Special highlights in his career include the 
setting up of Engine Shop for MAN Trucks at Pithampur (Madhya 
Pradesh) and setting up plants in Chennai and Chakan (Pune). At present, 
Mr. lnamdar is Executive Director (Operations) of the Company and 
responsible for Operations of all the Plants of Force Motors Limited. 
No formal contracts, except the resolution passed by the Board of 
Directors and in the General Meeting, are expected to be executed with the 
Executive Director (Operations). As any other Director, Executive Director 
(Operations) shall be entitled to resign from the services by submitting 
resignation and no other fee or any compensation is payable to him by the 
Company for termination of this arrangement. 
Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar's job profile is to manage the operations of all the 
Plants of Force Motors Limited. He will report to the Chairman and the 
Managing Director of the Company and will have powers of management 
as delegated by the Chairman and I or the Managing Director from time to 
time. 
Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar is a director on the Board of Force MTU Power 
Systems Private Limited. Mr.lnamdar holds no shares in the Company. 
The Company has not announced or offered any employees' stock option 
scheme and the remuneration to be paid to Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar 
includes the elements in the resolution only. 
The above may be treated as a written memorandum setting out the terms 
of appointment of Mr. Prashant V.lnamdar under Section 190 of the Act. 
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None of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives, except Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar, is concerned or interested, in 
any way, in this resolution, except to the extent of their respective 
shareholding, if any, in the Company. 
The Board recommends this special resolution as set out in Item no. 9 for 
the approval of the members of the Company. 
ltamNo.10 
Mr. Arvind Mahajan (DIN: 07553144) 
The term of Mr. Arvind Mahajan as an Independent Director, was 
approved by the members of the Company in their 57th Annual General 
Meeting held on 28th September 2016, for a period of three years, i.e. 
upto 27th September 2019. 
The Board in its meeting held on 26th July 2019 re-appointed Mr. Arvind 
Mahajan as an Independent Director of the Company, for a term of five 
years w.e.f. 28th September 2019 on the recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 
The declaration of independence as per Section 149 and Regulation 16 of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and declaration w.r.t. non­
disqualification under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, is 
received from Mr. Arvind Mahajan. 
Considering his immense experience of 38 years in the areas of 
management consulting and expertise in finance, accounting, 
formulating business strategies and risk management, the Board 
recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Mahajan as an Independent 
Director on the Board of the Company. 
Brief Resume: Mr. Arvind Mahajan (DIN: 07553144), aged 60 years, is a 
Graduate [B.Com. (Hons.)) from Shriram College of Commerce, Delhi 
University and has a Post Graduate Diploma in Management from Indian 
Institute of Management, Ahmedabad, having over all experience of 
35 years in the areas of management consulting and industry and 
expertise in finance and accounting. 
Mr. Mahajan is director in HDFC ERGO General Insurance Company 
Limited and Bank of Baroda Capital Markets Limited. 
Mr. Mahajan is not related to any of the Directors I Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and does not hold any shares in the Company. 
In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Mahajan fulfills the conditions specified in 
the Act, and the SEBI (L.ODR} Regulations, 2015 and is eligible to be 
re-appointed as independent director. 
The Company has prepared a standard draft of Appointment Letter to be 
issued to Independent Directors, a copy of which is available for 
inspection as stated in note no. 15 ofthe Notes to the Notice. 
None of the Directors I Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 
relatives, except Mr. Arvind Mahajan, is concerned or interested, in any 
way, in this resolution, except to the extent of their respective 
shareholding, itany, in the Company. 
The Board recommends this special resolution as set out in Item no. 1 0 
for the approval ofthe members ofthe Company. 

Pune, 26th July 2019. 

Registered Office : 
Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, 
Pune- 411 035. 

GIN: L34102PN1958PLC011172 
Website: www.forcemotors.com 
Phone: (Board) +91 202747 6381 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Force Motors Limited 

Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer 

E-mail: compliance-officer@forcemotors.com 
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BOARD'S REPORT 

To 
The Members, 
The Directors are pleased to present the 60th Annual Report, together 
with the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements for the 
Financial Year ended on 31st March 2019. 

1. Financial Results 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations (Gross)* 
Other Income 
Gross Profit (Profit before 
Depreciation & Taxes) 
Depreciation 
Profit before Taxes (Net) 
Provision for Taxation (Net) 
Profit After Tax 
Other Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) 
Comprehensive Income for the year 
Proposed Dividend 
Tax on proposed Dividend 
Balance in Retained Earnings 

Particulars 

Revenue from Operations (Gross}* 
Other Income 
Gross Profit (Profit before 
Depreciation & Taxes) 
Depreciation 
Share of Profit I (Loss) of JV 
Profit before Taxes (Net) 
Provision for Taxation (Net) 
Profit After Tax 
Other Comprehensive lncome/(Loss) 
Comprehensive Income for the year 
Attributable lo : 

(a) Equity holders of the Company 
(b) Non Controlling Interest 
Transfer to General Reserve 
Proposed Dividend 
Tax on proposed dividend 
Balance in Retained Earnings 

2018-19 

3,65,210 
8,162 

34,473 
15,092 
19,381 
4,663 

14,718 
478 

15196 
1,318 

271 
1,50,277 

2018-19 

3,65,245 
8,162 

34,507 
15,092 

(401) 
19,014 
4,672 

14,342 
477 

14,819 

14,810 
9 
4 

1,318 
271 

1,50,050 

(fin Lakh) 
Standalone 

2017-18 

3,52,342 
6,872 

32,949 
12,926 
20,023 
5,328 

14,695 
229 

14,924 
1,318 

271 
1,37,074 

Consolidated 

2017-18 

3,52,377 
6,872 

32,984 
12,926 

--
20,058 
5,337 

14,721 
229 

14,950 

14,941 
9 
4 

1,318 
271 

1,37,251 

"Post applicability of Goods and Services Tax (GST) with effect from 1st July 2017, 
revenue from operations is required ID be disclosed net of GST, the revenue from 
operations for the yaar ended 31st March 2019 is not comparable with the previous 
year. 

Considering the reserve position of the Company, the Board of 
Directors of your Company decided not to transfer further amount 
from the profits for the Financial Year under report to General 
Reserve. 
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The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with 
the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'} and Indian Accounting 
Standard 11 0 on Consolidated Financial Statements, are provided 
in this Annual Report. 

2. Stale of Company's AHairs and Future Outlook 
The year under discussion mostly saw a stable business 
environment, although towards the end of the financial year 2018-
19, a slow-down in the business environment became evident. 
The Company continues to be burdened with asymmetric GST on 
its most popular vehicles, on account of a classification imbroglio 
where vehicles between 1 0 and 13 seats capacity, continue to 
receive step-motherly treatment. 
The manufacturing operations of the Company have continued to 
improve, and this is reflected in the quality of the products 
produced, as also in improved cost efficiencies. 
The product mix of the Company, between Own Vehicles 
produced, like the Traveller and Trax Families, and the supply of 
crucial Driveline Aggregates to international manufacturers like 
Mercedes Benz and BMW in India, continues to retain even 
proportion. Both businesses have seen good stability, and 
reasonable profitability, through the lastfinancial year. 
During the year under review, the Company completed the 
development activity ofthe T3 platform which is, as far as is known 
the only light weight monocoque panel van in the world catering to 
33 to 41 seats capacity segment. This is a major achievement. 
Patents are also applied for. The market segment of this passenger 
carrying capacity bus is larger than the passenger segment for the 
smaller buses that the Company has been making. Therefore there 
is an optimistic view of the prospects for this novel high-tech, high 
quality bus. 
The BS-VI projects ofthe Company, for taking its Traveller, Trax and 
'Shakliman' Families of vehicles to conform to the BS-VI emission 
standards has progressed well. Results of the performance, 
emission and fuel economy of these vehicles, which are under 
extensive testing are very encouraging. It is expected that, with 
effect from 1st of January 2020, the Company shall be producing 
only BS-VI vehicles. 
The Company has, in the last year, introduced the BS-IV version of 
the 'Shaktiman 200' vehicle which is a 1. 75 ton payload product, 
to cater to the last mile delivery segment. The Company hopes to 
offer a full range of new products in this segment, and the 
development work is continuing. 
The Company completed the development activity on two new 
tractor platforms viz. the 'San man' series -comprising of 'San man 
5000' and 'Sanman 6000' tractors, as also the 'Abhiman' series­
which has 4X4 configuration. During the current year, both these 
products are introduced in the market. Initial reports are 
satisfactory. 
An important event during the year under review was the 
"Acquisition by the Company", of the land, building, plant, tooling, 
equipment, machineries, drawings, designs etc, from MAN Truck 
& Bus India Pvt. Ltd.- as available in the plant at Pith am pur. 
Members will recall that your company had developed, with own 
efforts, using own design and engineering resources, and tooling 
manufacture capability- a complete range of Heavy Trucks. For 
this select technology was purchased mainly from MAN and 
ZFGermany. 
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On realisation of the project- design, development, indigenization 
and productionising ofthe product range- at the inauguration of the 
production facility, a joint venture agreement was entered into - at 
MANs suggestion - to enable achieve major export of trucks from 
India. During the development effort, discussions had occurred 
with MAN, where they suggested to make European standard 
vehicles even if more expensive than required by Indian market, for 
them to be able to export. 
The expected export, even after full development, could not be 
achieved by the collaboration partner. Thereby the high cost and 
specs of the products (meant for export at their requirement, and 
not for the low cost, low spec domestic market requirements), the 
domestic market acceptance was low, and the operations of the 
joint venture Man Force Trucks Pvt. Ltd.-were severely affected. 
At MAN's desire the full control in the equal joint venture company, 
was sold to MAN in March 2012. 
Having operated the business as MTBIPL for approximately 6 
years, the owners decided to quit the operations of this 
manufacturing plant in India. 
We purchased this in October 2018 as stated above. 
The plant was built on a large portion of land, mainly within our 
Pithampur estate. The re-acquisition of this asset is both logical 
and satisfactory. 
In engineering and manufacturing terms, your Company has thus 
re-acquired the infrastructure and technology, to be able to 
manufacture a complete range of heavy vehicles. The company as 
of now has not decided to enter into the production and sales of 
heavy commercial vehicles, though theoretically the capability fully 
exists. The re-acquired land and building is being utilized for the 
company's normal activities and growth plans. 

3. Change in Nature of Business, if any 
During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of 
business of the Company. 

4. Dividend 
The Board recommended a dividend oft 1 0/-per share for the year 
under review in its meeting held on 27th May 2019. 
The details of the dividend and shares transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund during the year under review, are 
covered in the Report of Corporate Governance. 

5. Share Capital 
The paid up equity share capital as on 31st March 2019 was 
t 13.18 Crore. There was no public issue, rights issue, bonus 
issue or preferential issue etc. during the year under review. The 
Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights 
or granted stock options or sweat equity, during the year under 
review. 

&. Annual Return 
The Annual Return as on 31 st March 2019, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 92 of the Act and Rules framed there 
under, is available on the website of the Company at https:// 
www.forcemotors.corntinvestors#shareholders-information. The 
extract of Annual Return as on 31st March 2019 in the prescribed 
Form MGT-9, is annexed to this report. 

7. Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors 
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During the Financial Year 2018-19, there were six meetings of the 
Board of Directors of the Company held on 29th May 2018, 
26th July 2018, 23rd August 2018, 25th October 2018, 
13th February 2019 and 12th March 2019, detailed information is 
provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

8. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 
The Company has not given any loans, guarantees under Section 
186 of the Act during the year under review. During the year, the 
Company has made an investment of t 13,36,20,000/- in 
tranches, in Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited, a 
subsidiary of the Company. Particulars of investments made by the 
Company upto the previous financial year are provided in the 
Financial Statement attached to this Report. 

9. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Party 
During the Financial Year 2018-19, pursuant to Section 177 of the 
Act and Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 ('the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015), all 
related party transactions (RPTs) were placed before the Audit 
Committee for its requisite approval. 
All related party transactions entered during the year were on arm's 
length basis. There were no material related party contract(s) or 
arrangement(s) or transaction(s) during the year under review as 
defined under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. 

1 0. Explanation I Comments on any Qualification or Auditors 
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made 
either by the Statutory Auditors or by the Company Secretary in 
Practice (Secretarial Auditor) in their respective audit reports. 

11. Material Changes and Commitments 
There are no material changes and commitments affecting the 
financial position of the Company which has occurred between the 
end of the Rnancial Year i.e. 31st March 2019 and the date of 
Report. 

12. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
The Company has continued its efforts to organise incremental 
improvements in energy conservation across plant locations, plant 
equipment and technologies. To bring down power consumption, a 
number of steps have been initiated, at all plants, comprising of -
- Solar power is being used for various functions across the 

plants of the Company, resulting in the increased use of clean 
energy vis-a-vis other sources of energy, 

- At Chennai plant, new cooling techniques are adopted in cold 
test machines which saves 13,950 units of power annually, 

- Compressors are replaced with new energy efficient 
compressors, 

- Translucent sheets in the roof, improves natural lighting and 
reduces electric lighting load. 

- Automated arrangement for sw~ching off lights and machines 
when not in use, 

- Large scale switch-over to LED lamps throughout various 
plants, and estates ofthe Company, 

- Rain water is being conserved and used for gardening in the 
company's factories saving lots of water and 

- Aerators have been fitted in the washing areas which 
substantially curtailed water wastage. 

Technology Absorption 
The Company continues to emphasise on development of new 
product platforms, to replace its current platforms, in order to cater 
to future technology and market segments. Working closely with 
various international and Indian technology consu~ants and 
companies, each product platform of the Company has been 
upgraded, and either is already fully developed or under final 
stages of development so as to meet: 
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- the new emission standards, as will be applicable to vehicles 
and tractors 

- emerging market trends in terms of performance, fuel 
economy, fit finish comfort convenience, and the evolving 
expectations ofthe customer 

- to move seamlessly towards adaption of alternate fuels, and 
electric energy, for propulsion. 

Besides the new NVH lab built last year which is since put to use, a 
new well equipped lab for electric vehicles development -
encompassing all aspects of battery, battery management, electric 
motors, drive arrangements, electronic controls such as VCU, 
peripherals, etc. is fast evolVing. Besides technical collaborations 
with renowned Technology Houses, the Company has also 
stepped up its investment in manpower, by putting together a 
comprehensive and a competent and qualified team of young 
engineers. 
The expendib.Jre on the R & D for new products, including the 
expenditure on Projects and Tool Engineering, was 5.60 % of the 
operational turnover of the Company for the year under report. The 
Company continues to maintain its emphasis on research, 
development and tool engineering activities. 

(fin Lakh) 

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18 
Capital Expendib.Jre on R&D 14,069 15,792 

Revenue Expendib.Jre on R&D 6,372 4,176 
Total R&D Expenditure 20,441 19,968 

Total Income 3,73,372 3,59,214 
% of total R&D Expenditure to 
Total Income 5.47% 5.56% 
Revenue from Operations 3,65,210 3,52,342 
% of total R&D Expenditure to 
Revenue from Operations 5.60% 5.67% 

FGreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 
The foreign exchange earned by the Company during the year 
under review was f 21.51 Crore as against f 36.80 Crore during 
the previous year. 
Total foreign exchange outflow during the year under review was 
f 1,288.50 Crore as compared to ~ 1,171.18 Crore during the 
previous year. 

13. Subsidiaries 
Tempo Finance (West) Private Limited is a subsidiary of the 
Company. The Board of Directors of the Company have reviewed 
the affairs of the Subsidiary Company. 
Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited (the 'FMTU') was 
incorporated on 7th August, 2018, as a joint venture between the 
Company and Rolls Royce Power Systems AG (RR), through its 
subsidiary company, namely MTU Friedrichshafen GmbH for 
engaging in the business of development, manufacture and 
marketing of engines, engines for power generation, complete 
power generators and engines for various applications like Rail. By 
virtue of Company's majority shareholding, the 'FMTU' is now a 
subsidiary of the Company. 
As per Section 129 of the Act, the Company has prepared the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its 
subsidiaries, which forms part of the Annual Report. A statement 
containing the salient features of the Financial Statement of 
subsidiaries in the prescribed format AOC-1 , forms part of the 
Audited Financial Statement ofthe Company. 
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A copy of the Audited Financial Statements of the subsidiary 
companies will be made available to the members of the Company, 
seeking such information. The Audited Financial Statements of 
subsidiary companies will be kept for inspection by any member 
at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days 
(10.00 a.m. to 3.30 p.m.) upto the date of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 

These financial statements and the policy for 'Determining Material 
Subsidiaries & its Governance Framework' is placed on the 
Company's website www.forcemotors.com. 

14. Risk Management 
The Company has in place a comprehensive Risk Management 
framework • to identify, monitor, review and take all necessary 
steps towards mitigation of any risk elements which can impact 
the business health of the Company, on a periodic basis. 
All the identified risks are managed through continuous review of 
business parameters by the Management, and the Board of 
Directors are also informed ofthe risks and concerns. 

15. Changes In the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
Mr. Vinay Kothari (DIN : 00337134), Director of the Company, 
resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f. 10th December 
2018. Mr. Yeshwant M. Deosthalee, an Independent Director 
(DIN:00001698), resigned w.e.f. 26th July, 2019 due to his health 
issues. The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the 
services rendered by them during their association with the 
Company. 

The Board in its meeting held on 13th February 2019, appointed 
Mr. AnantTalaulicar (DIN : 00031051) and Lt. Gen. (Dr.) D. B. 
Shekatkar (DIN : 02676828) as additional directors of the 
Company. The members of the Company through postal ballot also 
approved their appointment as independent directors for a period 
of three years. 
Members of the Company accorded their approval by passing 
special resolution through postal ballot on 29th March 2019, for 
continuing the directorships of Mr. Nitin Desai, Mr. Pratap Pawar, 
Dr. Indira Parikh and Mr. S.Padmanabhan, post-attainment of the 
age of 75 years, pursuant to the provisions of Listing Regulations 
read with the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018. 
Mr. Sudhir Mehta (DIN : 00056867), Director of the Company, 
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for 
reappointment. All the necessary information pertaining to 
Mr. Sudhir Mehta, Director retiring by rotation is a part of the 
Statement attached to the notice dated 26th July 2019. 

The existing terms of Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Chairman, 
Mr. Prasan Firodia, Managing Director, Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar, 
Executive Director and Mr. Arvind Mahajan, Independent Director 
shall expire on 19th September 2019, 5th November 2019, 
15th January 2020 and 27th September, 2019 respectively. In 
view of the same, resolutions as set out in item nos. 7, 8, 9 and 
1 0 respectively in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, are 
proposed for approval of members. 
There was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during the 
year under review. 

16. Declaration of lndapandant Directors 
The Independent Directors have submitted their declarations to the 
Board thatthey fu Ifill all the criteria of independence as stipulated in 
Section 149(6) of the Act and in Regulation 16 (1 }(b) of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Board after assessing veracity of 
the same, has taken the same on record. 
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17. Details of Significant and Malarial Orders Passed by the 
Regulators or Court or Tribunal 
There were no significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status of the Company's operations in future, during the year under 
report. 
As reported earlier, petition challenging the decision of the Hon'ble 
High Court of Judicature at Bombay, in respect of change in the 
name of the Company is still under consideration of the Hon'ble 
Supreme Court of India. 

18. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls 
Mls. Capri Assurance & Advisory Services, Chennai and 
M/s. Jugal S. Rathi, Chartered Accountants, Pune are the Internal 
Auditors of the Company. The internal financial controls are 
adequate with reference to the financial status, size and operations 
ofthe Company. 

19. Fixed Deposits 
The Company currenijy has no Fixed Deposit Scheme in place. 
The details of earlier deposits are furnished hereunder· 

Sr. Particulars Nos. ~ 
No. In Lakh 
a) accepted or renewed during the 

year 0 0 
b) remained unpaid or unclaimed as 

at the end of the year 
{31st March 2019)* 11 2.95 

c) Whether there has been any 
default in repayment of deposits 
or payment of interest thereon 
during the year and if so, number 
of such cases and the total 
amount involved. 
i) at the beginning of the year Nil Nil 
ii) maximum during the year Nil Nil 
iii) at the end of the year Nil Nil 

• Includes 5 nos., lixsd deposits amounting ID if 60,000 which are mabJred, 
claimed but have been wfthheld on the Instructions of SlabJiory Authorities (CBI) 
and will be repaid upon theirapproval. 

20. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
The Annual Report on the C SR activities of the Company, pursuant 
to Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014, is annexed to this Report. 

21. Audit CommiHee 
The Audit Committee of the Company consists of Mr. Pratap Pawar, 
Mr. Arun Sheth, Dr. Indira Parikh, and Mr. Sudhir Mehta. Of the 
above, Mr. Pratap Pawar, Mr. Arun Sheth and Dr. Indira Parikh are 
the independent directors. For more details of the Committee, 
please refer heading Audit Committee of the Report on Corporate 
Governance. 
The Company has established a vigil mechanism, formulated a 
Whistleblower Policy, and the Committee would oversee the 
genuine concerns expressed by the employees and other 
Directors. The Company has also provided adequate safeguards 
against victimization of employees and Directors who express their 
concerns. The mechanism provides direct access to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. The details of the 
mechanism I policy are disclosed on the website of the Company 
www.forcemotors.com. 

22. Policy on Directors Appointment and Criteria 
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The Board in its meeting held on 13th February 2019, has 
revised the Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment 
of managerial remuneration, Directors' qualifications, positive 

attributes, independence of Directors pursuant to the SEBI (L.ODR) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018. The Policy and other related 
matters as provided under Section 178 (3) of the Act is available on 
the website ofthe Company www.forcemotors.com . 

23. Formal Annual Evaluation of the Performance of Board 1 
Comminaas and Directors 
Information on the manner in which formal annual evaluation is 
made by the Board, of its own performance, that of its committees 
and the individual directors, is given in the Report on Corporate 
Governance. 

24. Corporate Governance 
The Company has taken all necessary steps to implement the 
provisions of the Regulations and a detailed report on the various 
matters, including the Auditors' Certificate on Corporate 
Governance, is annexed to this Report. 

25. Business Responsibility Report 
As per the criteria mentioned under Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI 
(L.ODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company is not required to present 
Business Responsibility Report for the Financial Year 2018-19, as 
a part of this annual report. 

26. Details of Directors and Employees' Remuneration 
Details as required under the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, as amended; are annexed to this report. 
Details as required under the provisions of Section 197 (12) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended; which form part of this 
report, will be made available to any shareholder on request, as per 
provisions of Rule 5(3). 

27. Disclosure on Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 
The Company has adopted Anti Sexual Harassment Policy, in line 
with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress 
complaints, if any, received regarding sexual harassment. All 
employees, as defined under the said Act, are covered under this 
policy. Awareness programs were carried out against sexual 
harassment. There were no complaints received during the year 
under review. 

28. Details of Frauds Reported by Auditors 
There are no frauds against the Company reported by the Auditors 
for the period under report. 

29. Directors' Responsibility Statement 
The Directors of your Company to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, and according to the information and explanations obtained 
by them, make the following statements in terms of Section 134 
(3)(c) oftheAct: 
a) in the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements for the 

year ended 31st March 2019, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with proper explanation 
relating to material departures; 

b) for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2019, such 
accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements have been applied consistently and judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent have been made so 
as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company and of the profit of the Company for the year ended 
31st March 2019; 

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions ofthe Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 
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d) the Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis; 

e) that proper internal financial controls were followed by the 
Company and that such internal financial controls are 
adequate and were operating effectively; 

f) that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 
of all applicable laws were in place and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively. 

30. Secretarial Standards of the ICSI 
The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on 
the Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1} and General Meetings 
(SS-2), as issued and amended, by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India ('the ICSI'). 

31. Statutory Auditor 
The Shareholders, at the 58th Annual General Meeting, appointed 
M/s. Kirtane & Pandit LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 1 05215WJW1 00057), Pune, as the Statutory 
Aud~ors of the Company for a period of five years, i.e. upto the 
conclusion of 63rd Annual General Meeting. 

32. CostAccountant 
The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. Joshi 
Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants, Pune, for verification and 
review of the Cost Records of the Company, for the Financial Year 
2019-20. 

33. Secretarial Audit Repon 
Mr. I. U. Thakur, Company Secretary in Practice having 
Membership No. FCS 2298, was appointed to conduct the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19, 
as required under Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there 

Annexure to the Board's Report 
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under. The Secretarial Audit Report, in Form MR-3, for the 
Financial Year 2018-19 is annexed to this report. 

34. Industrial Relations 
The industrial relations at all the Plants of the Company have been 
cordial during the year. 

35. Appreciation 
The Directors express their gratitude to the Dealers, Suppliers and 
Banks for their support, and express their warm appreciation for 
the sincere co-operation and dedicated wor1<: by the employees of 
the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Farce Motors Limited 

Pune, 26th July, 2019 

Registered Office : 
Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune-411 035. 

GIN: L341 02PN1958PLC011172 
Website: www.forcemotors.com 
Phone: (Board) +91 20 27 47 6381 
E-mail: compliance-officer@forcemotors.com 

§.4 
Abhaykumar Firodia 

Chairman 
DIN: 00025179 

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel} Rules, 2014: 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the Employees of the company for the financial year 2018-19 & 
increase in the remuneration in the financial year 2018-19 : 

Sr. Nama Rilla of %Increase 
No. Ramuner~tlon In the 

Ia 111:h Dlllll:lar/ 
lamadlan 

financial par 

remunerdan 
al emgloveea 

(A) Whala-tlme dlractar I 
Man111arl1l PllriDnnal 

I. Mr. Prasan Firodia, 
Managing Directcr 98.31 0.20 

II. Mr. Prashant v. lnamdar, 
Executive Director 28.02 5.09 

(B) Non-EDcutlve Dlllll:lal'l 
I. Mr. Sudhir Mehta 0.88 (95.69) 
II. Mr. Arvlnd Mahalan 0.59 (9.09) 
Ill. Mr. Arun Sheth 0.88 (18.18) 
IV. Mr. Pratap Pawar 0.78 60.00 
v. Mr. S. Padmanabhan 0.98 11.11 
VI. Mr. NHin Desai 0.69 40.00 
VII. Dr. Indira J. Parikh 0.98 {9.09) 
VIII. Mr. Y. M. Deoslhalee 0.20 (50.00) 
IX. Mr. Anant J. Talaulicar' . -
X. ltGen.(Retd.)(Dr.) D.B. Shekatkar* . -
XI. Vinay Kothari** 0.59 (40.00) 
(C) Kay M1n1111rill Personnel 
I. Mr. Sanlay Kumar Bohra, 

Chief Financial Ofllcer 36.39 27.32 
II. Mr. Kishora P. Shah, 

Company Secn!lary 3.33 4.82 

* Appointed as adirectorotlhe Companyw.e.l.131h February2019. 
** Ceased to be a director of the Company w.e.f. 1 Olh December2018. 

Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Chairman of the Company, is not drawing 
any remuneration from the Company. 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

2. The percentage increase in the median remuneration is -2% for the 
Financial Year 2018-19. 

3. There were 4,761 permanent employees (excluding trainees and 
contractual employees) on the rolls of the Company as on 
31stMarch2019. 

4. The average percentage increase in the salaries of employees 
other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year 
2018-19 was 1 0% whereas percentage increase in the managerial 
remuneration was 6% for the same financial year. 

5. It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration 
policyofthe Company. 
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Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
as on the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2019. 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRAllON AND OTHER DETAILS 
i) CIN: L341 02PN1958PLC011172 
ii) Registration Date : 8th September 1958 
iii) Name of the Company: Force Motors Limited 
iv) Category I Sub-Category of the Company: Public Company Limited by Shares 
v) Address ofthe Registered Office and contact details : Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune- 411 035, Phone no. + 91 20 27 4 76381 
vi) Whether listed company: Yes 
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: 

Link lntime India Private Limited, Block no.202, Akshay Complex, Near Ganesh Temple, Off. Dhole Patil Road, Pune - 411 001. 
Phone no. + 91 20 26160084126161629. 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OFTHE COMPANY 
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company: 

Sl. Name and Description of NIC Code of the Product I Service %to Total 
No. main products I services turnover of the 

Division Group Class Sub Class Company 
1) Light Commercial Vehicles & Utility Vehicles 29 291 2910 29102 48.31 
2) Engines 29 291 2910 29104 36.05 

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sl. Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ %of Applicable 
No. Subsidiary I Shares Section 

Associate hald 
1) Jaya Hind Industries Limited U74999PN1947PLC005480 Holding 57.38 2(46) 

Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune - 411 035. 
2) Tempo Finance (West) Private Limited U65910PN1991PTC062179 Subsidiary 66.43 2(87) 

Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune - 411 035. 
3) Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited U29309PN2018PTC178041 Subsidiary 51.00 2(87) 

Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune - 411 035. * 
* Force Mlll Power Systems Pl1vate Umlted has been lnoorporated on 7th August, 20181n which the Company Is holding 51 'll\ stake, In equity share capital. 

IV. SHAREHOLDING PAnERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
i) Category-wise Shareholding 

Category ol No. o1 Shares held at the beginning No. ol Shares held at the end %Change 
Shareholders of the year (01.04.2018} of the year (31.03.2019} during the 

De mat Physical Total %of De mat Physical Total %of yaar 
Total Total 

Shares Shares 
A. Promoters 

(1} Indian 
a) Individual/ HUF 485114 0 485114 3.68 590419 0 590419 4.48 0.80 
b) Central Govt. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
d) Bodies Corp. 7559928 0 7559928 57.38 7559928 0 7559928 57.38 0.00 
e) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
f) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 

Sub-total (A) (1): 8045042 0 8045042 61.06 8150347 0 8150347 61.86 0.80 
(2) Foreign 
a) NRis • Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
d) Banks/ Fl 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 

Sub-total (A) (2):· 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
Total sbareholding of 
Promoter (A)=(A)(1}+(A}(2) 8045042 0 8045042 61.06 8150347 0 8150347 61.86 0.80 

18 FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 



re 
FORCE 

Category of No. ol Shares held at the beginning No. of Sllares held at the end %Change 
Shareholders ol the year (01.04.2018) of the year (31.03.2019) during the 

Demat Physical Total %ol Demat Physical Total %of year 
Total Total 

Shares Shares 
B. Public Shareholdlng 

(1) Institutions 
a) Mutual Funds 395909 0 395909 3.00 382078 0 382078 2.90 -0.10 
b) Banks/ Fl 40392 1100 41492 0.31 42350 1100 43450 0.33 0.01 
C) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
d) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
0 Insurance Companies 20055 0 20055 0.15 20055 0 20055 0.15 0.00 
g) Fils/ FPI 713022 0 713022 5.41 560243 0 560243 4.25 -1.16 
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
i) Others 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 

Sub-total (B) (1): 1169378 1100 1170478 8.88 1004726 1100 1005826 7.63 -1.25 
(2) Non-lnsthUIIons 
a) Bodies Corp. 
i) Indian 269456 10841 280297 2.13 240581 10841 251422 1.90 -0.23 
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 
b) Individuals 
i) Individual shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 
uptof 11akh 2614069 352086 2966155 22.51 2861869 318558 3180427 24.13 1.62 

ii) Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital in 
excess of f1 lakh 240676 0 240676 1.83 167580 0 167580 1.27 -0.56 

C) Others 
IEPF 41829 0 41829 0.32 44373 0 44373 0.34 0.02 
Trusts 3347 0 3347 0.03 2647 0 2647 0.02 -0.01 
Hindu Undivided Family 145321 0 145321 1.10 207562 0 207562 1.58 0.47 
Non Resident Indians 
(Non Repat.) 28935 0 28935 0.22 32727 0 32727 0.25 0.03 
Other Directors & Relatives 105406 0 105406 0.80 0 0 0 0.00 -0.80 
Non Resident Indians (Repat.) 60541 16700 77241 0.59 68333 16700 85033 0.65 0.06 
Unclaimed Shares 461 0 461 0.00 461 0 461 0.00 0.00 
Clearing Member 71074 0 71074 0.54 44562 0 44562 0.34 -0.20 
NBFCs registered with RBI 0 0 0 0.00 3295 0 3295 0.03 0.03 
Sub-total (8)(2):- 3581115 379627 3960742 30.06 3673990 346099 4020089 30.51 0.45 
Total Public Shareholdlng 
(8)=(8)(1) + (8)(2) 4750493 380727 5131220 38.94 4678716 347199 5025915 38.14 -0.80 

c. Shares held by Custodian for 
GDRs&ADRs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 
Grand Total (A+B+C) 12795535 380727 13176262 100 12829063 347199 13176262 100 0.00 

Note: 
1) In the above Shareholding Pattern, Promoter includes the 'Promoter Group', consisting of relatives of 'Promoters' (eallier in the Directors and Relatives- Public Calilgory), as per the 

amended deftnt11on ot'Promoters'ln 111e SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. 
2) 101 shares of Mr. Vinay Kothari, has been excluded from 'Other Directors &Relatives' attheendofthe Financial Year; as he ceased to beadirectorw.e.f. 10th December2018. 

(ii) Sharaholding ol Promoters • 
Sl. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end 
No. of the year (01.04.2018) of the year (31.03.2019) 

No. of % oltotal % ol Shares No. ol %of total % ol Shares %change in 
Shares Shares of the Pledged/ Shares Shares of the Pledged/ shareholding 

Company encumbered Company encumbered during the 
to total to total year 
shares Shares 

1) Jaya Hind lnvesbnents Private 
Limited* 7492244 56.86 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 -56.86 

2) Jaya Hind Industries Limited* 10909 0.08 0.00 7559928 57.38 0 57.29 
3) Abhaykumar Navalmal Firodia 264351 2.01 0 264351 2.01 0 0.00 
4) Prasan Firodia 220763 1.68 0 220763 1.68 0 0.00 

Total 7988267 60.63 0 8045042 61.06 0 0.43 
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(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding ( pleasespecHy, ifthere is no change): 

Sl. Shareholdlng at the Cumulative Sbareholdlng 
No. Nama of tha Promoters beginning of the year (01.04.2018) during the year 

No. of %of total No. of %of total 
Sham shares at tba Shares shares of the 

Company Company 
1. JAVA HIND INVESTMENTS PRIVATE LIMITED * 

At the beginning of the year 7492244 56.86 
At the end of the vear (J1.03.2019) 0 0.00 

2. JAVA HIND INDUSTRIES LIMITED * 
At the beginning of the year 10909 0.08 
At the end of the year (31.03.2019) 7559928 57.38 

3. Abhaykumar Navalmal Flrodla 
At the beginning of the year 264351 2.01 
At the end of the vear (31.03.2019) 264351 2.01 

4. Prasan Firodia 
At the beginning of the year 220763 1.68 
At the end of the year (31.03.2019) 220763 1.68 

* Change of shantholding is pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation ol Jaya Hind Investments Pvt. Ltd., Prasanna Holdings Pvt. Ltd., Ahmednagar Engineering Pvt. Ltd. and 
Dhanna Engineering Pvt. Ltd., with Jaya Hind Industries Ltd. as approved by the Hon'ble NCLT, Mumbai Bench vide its Order dated 24th October 2018. 
Hence, now 75,59,928 shares of Jaya Hind Industries Ltd. includes its own 10,909 sharas and sharas of erstwhile Jaya Hind Investments Pvt. Ltd. (74,92,244) + Prasanna 
Holdings Pvt. Ltd. (48,579) + Ahmednagar Engineering Pvt Ltd (8,196). 

(iv) Shareholding PaHern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders ot GDRs and ADRs): 

Sl. For each of the Shareholdlng at the Cumulative Sbareholdlng 
No. top 10 Shareholders beginning of the year (01.04.2018) during tha year 

No. of % oltotal No. of ... of total 
Shares shares ol the Shares shares or the 

Company Company 
1. National Westminster Bank PLC as trustee of the 

Jupiter India Fund 
Altha beginning altha year - 411340 3.12 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 06.04.2018 4692 0.04 416032 3.16 
Sale ol shares as per report dated 21.09.2018 -1662 -0.01 414370 3.14 
Sale ol shares as per report dated 29.09.2018 -20560 -0.16 393810 2.99 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 16.11.2018 6869 0.05 400679 3.04 
At tha and altha year 400679 3.04 

2. Sundaram Mutual Fund A/C Sundaram Mid Cap Fund 
AI the beginning or the year - 323624 2.46 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 08.06.2018 14233 0.11 337857 2.56 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 15.06.2018 6444 0.05 344301 2.61 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 22.06.2018 15526 0.12 359827 2.73 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 06.07.2018 1593 0.01 361420 2.74 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 13.07.2018 13154 0.10 374574 2.84 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 20.07.2018 2752 0.02 377326 2.86 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 27.07.2018 4750 0.04 382076 2.90 
At the end or the year 382076 2.90 

3. Jupiter South Asia Investment Company Limited -
South Alia Access Fund 
AI the beginning or the year - 106788 0.81 
Sale ol shares as per report dated 06.04.2018 -3945 -0.03 102843 0.78 
Sale ol shares as per report dated 16.11.2018 -3493 -0.03 99350 0.75 
Sale ol shares as per report dated 15.02.2019 -5450 -0.04 93900 0.71 
Sale ol shares as per report dated 15.03.2019 -2356 -0.02 91544 0.69 
AI the end or the year 91544 0.69 

4. Susbma Dhoot 
AI the beginning or the year - 47800 0.36 
AI the end olthe year 47800 0.36 

5. Sundaram India Mldcap Fund 
AI the beginning or the year - 47000 0.36 
AI the end of the year 47000 0.36 
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Sl. For each of the Shareholding at the Cumulative Sharaholding 
No. Top 10 Shareholders beginning of the vear (01.04.2018) during the year 

No. of %of total No. of %of total 
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the 

Company Company 
6. Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
At the beginning of the year - 41829 0.32 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 23.11.2018 2544 0.02 44373 0.34 
At the end of the year 44373 0.34 

7. Union Bank ollndla 
At the beginning of the year - 39369 0.30 
Purchase of shares as per report dated 13.04.2018 2081 0.02 41450 0.31 
At the end of the year 41450 0.31 

8. Samlr Shantllal Somalya 
At the beginning of the year - 33558 0.25 
Sale of shares as per report dated 06.04.2018 -5820 -0.04 27738 0.21 
Sale of shares as per report dated 13.04.2018 -6072 -0.05 21666 0.16 
At the and of the year 21666 0.16 

9. Ruchira Agarwal 
AI the beginning of the year - 21433 0.16 
At the and of the year 21433 0.16 

10. The Oriental Insurance Company Limited 
At the beginning of the year - 20055 0.15 
At the end of the year 20055 0.15 

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel : 

Sr. For each of the Shareholdlng at the Cumulative Sharaholdlng 
No. Directors and KMP beginning olthe year (01.04.201 B) during the year 

No. of % ol total No. ol % ol total 
Shares shares of the Shares shares of the 

Company Company 
1. Mr. Abhaykumar Flrodla, Chairman 

At the beginning of 1tle year 264351 2.01 
At the end of 1tle year 264351 2.01 

2. Mr. Prasan Firodia, Managing Director 
At the beginning of 1tle year 220763 1.68 
At the end of 1tle year 220763 1.68 

3. Mr. Vinay Kothari, Director * 
At the beginning of 1tle year 101 0 
At the end of 1tle year 101 0 

*Mr. Vlnay Kothari has ceased to be adlrectorw.e.l. 10th December, 2018. 
Nota : Dlher1han 1he above, none of1he Directors and 1he Key Managerial Personnel hold any shares in 1he Company. 
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V. INDEBTEDNESS 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest accrued but not due for payment: 

Secured Unsecured Deposits Total 
Loans Loans (in f) Indebtedness 

excluding (In f) (In f) 
deposits 

Indebtedness at tha beginning of tha Financial Year 
(i) Principal Amount * Nil Nil Nil Nil 
(ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil 
(iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil 25,051 25,051 
(iv) Interest accrued and due Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total li+ii+iii+ivl Nil Nil 25.051 25 051 
Change in Indebtedness during tile Financial Year 

• Addition 287,56,01,999 Nil Nil 287,56,01,999 
• Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Nat Chanaa 287,56,01 ,999 Nil Nil 287,56,01 ,999 
Indebtedness at the and of the Financial Year 

(i) Principal Amount * 285,87,36,725 Nil Nil 285,87,36,725 
(ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil 
(iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil 25,051 25,051 
(iv) Interest accrued and due 1 68 65 274 Nil Nil 1 68 65 274 

Total (i+ii+iii+iv) 287,56,01 ,999 Nil 25,051 287,56,27,050 

* Excludes deposits matured but not claimed : ~ 2,95,000/-. 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/ or Manager: 

Sl. Particulars of Ramunaradon Nama of MD I WTD I Manager Total 
No. Amount (in t) 

Mr. Prasan Mr. Prashant V. 
Flrodla lnamdar 
(lnt) (In t) 

1. Gross Salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 (1) of the 1,20,00,000 1,28,17,069 2,48,17,069 

Income-tax Act, 1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 39,600 1,09,200 1,48,800 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 16,50,000 2,29,530 18,79,530 

2. Stock Option Nil Nil Nil 
3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil 
4. Commission 

• as% of profit 3,30,00,000 Nil 3,30,00,000 
• others, specify ... 

5. Others, please specify - Employee's contribution to PF I other funds 34,22,691 11,28,044 45,50,735 
Total (A) 5,01,12,291 1 ,42,83,843 6,43,96,134 
Ceiling as per the Act 20,02,44,758 

B. Remuneration to other Directors : 

Sl. Names Particulars of Remuneration Total 
No. (In t) Amount (In t) 

Faa for Commission Others 
aHanding Board 
and CommiHee 

Meetings 
(1) Independent Directors 

i. Mr. Arun Sheth 4,50,000 - - 4,50,000 
ii. Mr. Nitin Desai 3,50,000 - - 3,50,000 
iii. Mr. Pratap Pawar 4,00,000 - - 4,00,000 
iv. Mr. S. Padmanabhan 5,00,000 - - 5,00,000 
v. Dr. Indira Parikh 5,00,000 - - 5,00,000 
vi Mr. Arvind Mahajan 3,00,000 - - 3,00,000 
vii Mr. Yeshwant Deosthalee 1,00,000 - - 1,00,000 
Total (1) 26,00,000 - - 26,00,000 

(2) Other Non-Executive Directors 
i. Mr. Sudhir Mehta 4 50 000 - - 4 50 000 
ii. Mr. Vinay Kothari 3,00,000 - - 3,00,000 
Total (2) 7,50,000 - - 7,50,000 
Total (B) = (1 +2) 33,50,000 - - 33,50,000 
Total Managerial Remuneration - - 33,50,000 
Overall Ceiling as per the Act Not applicable as only sitting fees is paid 
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD I Manager /WTD 

Sl. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 
No. 

Mr. Sanlay Mr. Klshore P. 
Kumar Bohra, Shah, Total 

CFO Company 
Secretary 

(in~ (in~ (in~ 
1. Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section17 (1 ) 1,72,44,866 15,40,025 1,87,84,891 
ofthe Income-tax Act, 1961 

(b) Value of perquisites U/s 17(2) of the Income-tax 25,642 15,000 40,642 
Act, 1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17 (3) 3,65,479 Nil 3,65,479 
ofthe Income-tax Act, 1961 

2. Stock Option Nil Nil Nil 
3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil 
4. Commission 

• as% of prom Nil Nil Nil 
• others, specify ... Nil Nil Nil 

5. Others - Employee contribution to PF and other funds 9,15,653 1,42,369 10,58,022 
Total 1 ,85,51 ,640 16,97,394 2,02,49,034 

VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT I COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made, 
the Companies Description Penalty I [RD/NCLT I if any 

Act, 1956/ Punishment/ COURT] (give details) 
Companies Act, Compounding 

2013 fees imposed 
A. COMPANY 

Penalty 
Punishment 
Compounding 

B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty 
Punishment NIL 
Compounding 

c. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
Penalty 
Punishment 
Compounding 
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To, 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2019 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

The Members, 
FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 
Pune 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by 
FORCE MOTORS LIMITED (CIN : L341 02PN1958PLC011172) (hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/stanrtory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
Based on my verification of the Force Motors Limited books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I 
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31 st March 2019 complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
I have examined the books, papers, minutes' books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 
31st March 2019 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 
Qii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas 

Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act')to the extent 

applicable: 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities} Regulations, 2008; 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents} Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies 

Act and dealing with client: 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (De listing of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 

(vi) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) 
(vii) On the basis of the information provided by the Company; the following Acts, Rules & Regulations are also complied, to the extent applicable: 

(a) TheMotorVehiclesAct, 1988 
(b) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 & The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Rules 1982. 
(c) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 197 4 & The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Rules 1975. 
(d) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 read with The Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986. 
(e) The Factories Act, 1948 and The Maharashtra Factories Rules, 1963 
(f) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 
(g) The Contract Labour( Regulation and Abolition} Act, 1970 
(h) 
(i) 
0) 

The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1956 and the schemes made thereunder-maintained electronically 
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned 
above. 
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I further report lhal: 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors. Mr. Anant Jaivant Talaulicar & Mr. Dattatray Balajirao Shekatkar have been appointed as Independent Directors for a period of 3 years 
w.e.f 13th February 2019 and further Company took the approval of members by passing a Ordinary and Special Resolution (for the respective 
appointment) through Postal Ballot. 

The Company took the approval ofthe Members by passing special resolution through postal ballot for continuation of Directorships of Mr. Pratap Pawar, 
Mr. S. Padmanabhan, Mr. Nitin Desai, & Dr. Indira Parikh as Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company post attainment of age of 75 years, 
pursuant to the regulations of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Amendment, Regulation 2018. 

Adequate notices are given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes on Agenda were sent at least seven days in 
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation atthe meeting. 

Majority decisions are carried through, while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor 
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines except there was gap of more than 120 days between Two Audit 
Committee Meetings due to non-availability of directors which was reported to the Stock Exchange in the Corporate Governance Report. 

I further report that during the audit period no event has occurred during the year which has a major bearing on the Company's affairs. 

I further reportthat during the audit period the Company entered into contractual arrangement in respect of acquisition of immovable properties, movable 
properties and other assets of intangible nature situated at Pithampurfrom MAN Trucks India Private Limited. 

I further report that the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement between Jaya Hind Industries Limited and Jaya Hind Investments Private Limited, 
Ahmednagar Engineering Private Limited, Prasanna Holdings Private Limited and Dhanna Engineering Private Limited which were and are part of 
Promoter Group, has been implemented including, transfer of shares of Force Motors Limited from the name of above referred four companies as the 
Transferor Companies to the name of Jaya Hind Industries Limited (existing Promoter) as Transferee Company. 

Place: Pune Signature 
Date : 27th May 2019 Name of Company Secretary in practice : I U Thakur 

FCS: 2298 C.P. No.: 1402 

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report. 

'Annexure N 

To, 
The Members 
Force Motors Limited 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness ofthe contents of the 
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the 
processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events 
etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My 
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the fub.Jre viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

I.U.THAKUR 
Practising Company Secretary 

FCS • 2298 C.P No. ·1402 
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 2018-19 

1. Outline of the CSR policy : 
• The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company covers the causes that Company may pursue as its CSR. 

• Based on the profit for each financial year, the Chief Financial Officer shall indicate the amount to be spent during the year. 

• The procedure for approval of the project(s), investment/ incurring costs and monitoring is also laid down in the policy. 

• The activity recommended by the CSR Committee is to pursue the project of establishing modern, multi-speciality hospital at Akurdi, 
Pune- 411 035, area in the locality of Company's factory & Registered Office. 

• The said CSR Policy and the activity to be pursued by the Company are placed on the website of the Company at 
http://www.forcemotors.com/page/index/shareholders_information. 

2. The Committee consists of the following Directors as members : 
i) Mr. S. Padmanabhan, Chairman 

ii) Mr. Nitin Desai 

iii) Mr. SudhirMehta 

3. Average net profit of the Company for previous three financial years : f 22,799 Lakh. 

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (two per centotthe amount as in item 3 above) : ~ 456 Lakll. 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year : 
(a) Total amountspentforthe Financial Year: f 460 Lakh. 

(b) Amount unspent, if any: Nil. 
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the Financial Year is detailed below: 

Sr. CSR Project or Sector in which Projects or programs Amount outlay 
No. Activity identified the Project is (1) local area or other (budget) project 

covered (2) Specify the State and or program wise 
District where project or 
Program was undertaken 

1. Project of "Promoting Heatth Akurdi, Pune, f460 Lakh 
establishing Care including Maharashtra- 411 035. 
modern, Preventive Heatth 
sophisticated Care" Schedule 
hospital VII Sr. No. (I) 

2. To provide "Promoting Heatth Pune, Nil 
Ambulance, Care including Maharashtra - 411 001. 
Tractor, Traveller Preventive Heatth Bhubaneshwar, Nil 
or other vehicle Care". Schedule Orissa- 751 001. 
product of the VII Sr. No. (I} Jaipur, Nil 
Company to Rajasthan - 302 004. 
selected 
organisations 
towards Health 
care 

26 

Amount spent Cumulative Amount spent : 
on the projects expenditure Direct or 
or programs up to the through 

subheads reporting implementing 
(1) Direct period agency 

expenditure 
on projects or 
programs (2) 
Overheads 

f460 Lakh f 1,320 Lakh Directly* 

Nil ~ 16 Lakh Ruby Hall Clinic 

Nil ~6 Lakh Utkal Bipanna 
Sahavata Samiti 

Nil ~ 12 Lakh Bhagwan 
Mahaveer 
Viklang 
Sahayata 
Samiti, Sawai 
Man Singh 
Hospital 
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Sr. CSR Project or Sector in which Projects or programs Amount outlay Amount spent Cumulative Amount spent : 
No. Activity ident~ied the Project is (1) local area or other (budget) project on the projects expenditure Direct or 

covered (2) Specify the State and or program wise or programs up to the through 
District where project or subheads reporting implementing 
Program was undertaken (1) Direct period agency 

expenditure 
on projects or 
programs (2) 
Overheads 

3. To provide "Livelihood Rajgir, Nalanda, Nil Nil '{ 4 Lakh Veerayatan 
Ambulance, enhancement Bihar - 803 116. 
Tractor, Traveller projects". Baramati, Nil Nil f 11 Lakh Agricultural 
or other vehicle Schedule Maharashtra - 413 115. Development 
product of the VII Sr. No. (ii) Trust 
Company to Dehradun, Nil Nil f27 Lakh Information 
selected Uttarakhand - 248 001. Technology 
organisations Institute for 
towards the Tribes of 
Livelihood India 
enhancement. 

Total '{ 460 Lakh '{ 460 Lakh '{ 1 ,396 Lakh 

* The Company had decided to continue to assist Navalmal Firodia Memorial Hospital Trust for creation of a modem multi-speciality hospital 
involving substantial outgo. During the year under review, a sum of'{ 460 Lakh has been paid to thetrustforthe hospital. 

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent, of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any part thereof, the 
company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board's Report. 

Not applicable 

7. The Committee reviewed the implementation of C SR Policy and the spend, as explained in the earlier part and confirmed the implementation 
and monitoring has been as per CSR Policy adopted by the Company. It was decided to examine broadening of the activity to include other 
deserving causes, if possible. 

S. Padmanabhan 
Chairman, CSR Committee 

DIN : 00001207 

Pune, 26th July 2019 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

DIN: 00029664 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

I. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 
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The Indian Automobile Industry has reached a very high levels of 
maturity in all segments - whether heavy commercial vehicles or 
light commercial vehicles, buses, cars, 2 and 3-wheelers. Yet it is 
obvious that it is among the highest taxed automobile sectors in the 
wor1d. The cost of acquisition of vehicles for customers and capex 
for vehicle manufacturers is impacted by the very high cost of 
interest on account of the prevailing very high interest rates, by 
both Banks and NBFCs. Both these factors have an impact of 
limiting the market and of harming global competitiveness. 

During the last quarter of the last financial year and in the first 
quarter of the current financial year, the Indian automobile industry, 
in all the segments, has shown significant and steady decline, in 
volumes and in profitability. 

The unfortunate regulation, where vehicles between 1 0 and 
13 seats capacity, are perversely taxed, with the total incidence of 
43 per cent GST (28 per cent GST + 15 per cent Cess) is not only 
harming your Company's business interests, but actually has a 
very adverse socio-economic impact, as School Buses, and Tour 
and Travel Vehicles, which fall in this category, are illogically 
penalised. This is detrimental to social causes, and harmful to the 
economy. There is no logical basis for this differentiation as 
vehicles below 1 0 seats capacity and also those above 13 seats 
capacity, are taxed at substantially lower rates. Your Company has 
repeatedly broughtthis anomaly to the attention of the authorities. 

The Company has succeeded in seeding vehicles in the intracity 
(inner city) - last mile passenger transport requirements- in select 
cities. This market is expected to develop well in many major 
metros, particular1y the ones with strong emerging infrastructure 
of local railways, metros and large bus transportation systems. 
These cities will benefit from the addition of minibuses for last mile 
connectivity. The specially developed, rugged, light weight, 
monocoque smart city bus family, has been well appreciated. 

The electric vehicles development activities of the Company have 
steadily progressed during the year under review. All the Traveller 
platforms i.e. T1, T2 and T3 ranges - spanning seating capacities 
from 9 seats to 41 seats, as also other platforms of the Company­
dealing with passenger and goods transport, will be electrified over 
the next two years. 

The market for electric vehicles is still nascent, and is in 
experimental stage - from the point of view of the consumer, the 
manufacturer of vehicles, as also the regulators. While the 
Government has taken bold and futuristic decisions to support 
electric vehicles, and a comprehensive policy package is 
announced in this regard, the reality is that electric vehicles will 
succeed based on their 'Business Model' for the user. If we cannot 
offer "total cost of ownership" which is more attractive than the 
vehicles run on fossil fuel, the production and sale of electric 
vehicles will not be smooth. The emergence of this aspect is yet not 
clear. 

For your Company, the market for inner-city passenger 
transportation vehicles, with electric propulsion, appears to be the 
correct segment to aim at. Accordingly efforts are being made. 
However, it is expected that the size of this market will increase 
only gradually but steadily, over the next decade. The cost 
competitiveness of electric vehicles is likely to improve due to 
improvement in battery technology. 

The twin impact of a very major slow-down, most severe in the last 
decade, and the emerging heavy investment requirement and 
compliance burdens arising from the new emission and safety 
regulations, though most desirable, obviously are bound to impact 
the cost of acquisition of all categories of vehicles in India. The 
question is whether this will further adversely impact the market 
situation. 

Neither can the country go back on the improvements in the 
emission and safety requirements, nor can the very high taxation 
and therefore high acquisition cost can be sustained by the 
Industry into the next decade. A sea change in the approach by the 
Government, in optimising and reducing its claims of a share of the 
value addition by the Automobile Industry, is inevitable. 

The Government of India has introduced comprehensive new 
legislation, to update the Motor Vehicles Act and Rules. However a 
perennial road block is the divergence between various states, in 
their approach to regulations, taxation and costs of permits, etc. for 
different categories of vehicles, particular1y commercial passenger 
vehicles - like taxi cabs, maxi cabs, buses, minibuses, etc. Unless 
the Government has the political will, to override vested interests in 
different States of India, and in different Bureaucratic Departments 
connected with the transportation activity, a full rationalisation of 
the transportation scenario is unlikely. The GST regime has 
resulted in a most beneficial impact, of streamlining business 
activity in India, fundamentally because it is a universally applicable 
system which is centralised, and is uniform throughout the 
country - for taxation rates and procedures. Similar uniformity in 
road tax rates and permit values has to come if the current situation 
of hassles, malpractices for the transport of passengers for hire is 
to improve. 

With the introduction of BS-VI emission standards, slated for April 
2020, the offerings of BS-VI capable inner-city transportation 
vehicles will significantly affect the cost of vehicles. As the 
technology impact on cost of small vehicles will proportionately be 
higher than its impact on the cost of larger vehicles, the Company 
is cognizant of this aspect. 

The industry structure, as also the market for light commercial 
vehicles, can benefit hugely if the Government is able to streamline 
the disparate mutually contradictory and random regulations 
instituted differently by different states, in relation to the rules for 
the Motors Vehicles Act, 1988. Particular1y permits and licensing 
requirementtor short haul passenger vehicles, used for private and 
for public transport, need to be brought in line with the streamlining 
of the permit requirements for similar size goods vehicles. This 
simplification will go a long way in providing to the public 
affordable, dignified, sensible modes of transport, rather than 
being dependent on the Government-run outdated bus transport 
system. 

II. PERFORMANCE OF lltE COMPANY 

Operational Performance 

The number of vehicles sold during the Financial Year under report 
was 27,603 compared to 31 ,022 vehicles sold in the Financial Year 
2017-18. During the year under report, the Company achieved 
a top line of ~ 3,652.10 Crore. The sales turnover stood at 
~ 3,620.01 Crore compared to the previous year's turnover of 
~ 3,493.19 Crore. 
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Financial Performance 

As stated above, the Company sold 27,603 vehicles during the 
Financial Year 2018-19 compared to 31,022 vehicles in the 
previous Financial Year 2017-18. The Profit, before Finance Costs, 
Depreciation and Taxes, from operations for the year under report 
was f 360.06 Crore as compared to operating profit for the 
previous Financial Year 2017-18 amounting to f 336.16 Crore. 
The Net Profit of the Company after Finance Costs, Depreciation 
and Taxes items was f 147.18 Crore for the Financial Year 
2018-19. The Reserves and Surplus of the Company as on 
31st March 2019 stood atf 1,921.69 Crore. 

Key Financial Ratios 

In accordance w~h the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the following are 
the key financial ratios along w~h the explanation where changes 
are more than 25%, as compared to previous financial year. 

Sr.no. Name of Director 2018-19 2017-18 

1 Debtors Turnover 21 19 
2 Inventory Turnover 49 49 

3 Interest Coverage Ratio 25.69 72.50 
4 Current Ratio 1.66 1.64 

5 Debt Equity Ratio 0.11 0.00 
6 Operating Prof~ Margin 9.95% 9.91% 
7 Net Profit Margin 4.07% 4.33% 

8 Return on net worth 7.88% 8.48% 

Debt Equity and interest coverage ratio has been impacted due to 
increase in borrowings from Banks during the year. Even so, the 
Ratio's are at comfortable levels. Change in return on net worth is 
due to lower profit margin. 

Ill. OUTLOOK 

Outlook on the business of the Company is covered in the Board's 
Report. 

IV. SUBSIDIARY 

(a) The Company is a subsidiary of Jaya Hind Industries Limited, 
which holds 57.38% in the Company. 

(b) The Company is a Holding Company of Tempo Finance 
(West) Private Limited, and holds 66.43 % in the subsidiary 
company. 

(c) The Company has entered into a joint venture w~h MTU 
Friedrichshafen GmbH, a company ofthe Rolls Royce Group. 
During the year under review, a Joint Venture Company with 
the name Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited, 
(FMTU) was incorporated on 7th August 2018. The 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

re 
FORCE 

Company holds 51% stake in FMTU which has thus become 
a subsidiary of the Company. 

V. OPPORTUNITIES, THREATS AND RISK FACTORS 

As explained earlier, the changing technology map (electrification, 
alternate fuels}, and the evolving regulatory environment (axle 
loads, inner-city and inter-city permits, taxation rates for different 
sizes of vehicles), offers opportunities as well as threats. However, 
the major threat remains the adverse public opinion promoted by 
vested interests - on the efficacy of diesel fuel. The diesel 
technology of today is extraordinarily clean and free of hazards. 
However, public opinion has unfortunately and systematically 
evolved to shun diesel. 

VI. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company's internal control procedures are adequate to ensure 
compliance with various policies, practices and statutes in keeping 
with the organization's pace of growth and increasing complexity 
of operations. 

The Company maintains system of multi level internal controls 
which provides reasonable assurance regarding Effectiveness and 
Efficiency of Operations, safeguarding of assets, prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information. 

During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable 
material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed. 

VII. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT 

The Company has continued its programme for training and skill 
development in its plants, for employees at various levels, who are 
provided training both in hard and soft skills. A large number of 
executives in the Sales & Marketing arm of the Company and in our 
dealer network spread all over India, are also provided continuous 
upgradation training in selling skills, product familiarisation, 
customer service aspects - in a well structured and extensive 
programme. The Company had 7,198 employees as on 31st 
March2019. 

VIII. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
describing the Company's objectives, projections, estimates, 
expectations may be forward looking statements. Actual results 
could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important 
factors that could make a difference to the Company's operations 
include, amongst others, economic cond~ions affecting demand I 
supply and price conditions in the markets in which the Company 
operates, changes in the Government regulations, tax laws and 
other statutes and incidental factors. 

29 



® 
FORCE 

ANNUAL REPORT DISCLOSURES AS SPECIFIED UNDER REGULATION 34 AND SCHEDULE V OF THE 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015 

A. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE 
The necessary disclosure is provided in the Rnancial Statement as Note No. 35. 

B. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Management Discussion and Analysis is provided in the Annual Report. Necessary disclosures relating to the Accounting Treatment as prescribed 
in the Accounting Standards are provided in the Board's Report and the Financial Statements. 

C. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
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1. Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance 
The Company's decision making process and operational methods are guided by the philosophy of "creating low cost, hi-tech products, 
which are suitable for Indian markets". Simplicity, self-reliance, social responsibility, trust and transparency in dealings with all stakeholders, 
the ethos on which this business was started by Late Shri N. K. Rrodia, the founder of the Company, continues to be the guiding principles for 
the Organization, in arranging the activities. The Company's philosophy on the 'Code of Governance' is based on compliance of applicable 
provisions and requires exchange of relevant information and appropriate disclosures to each group of stakeholders, connected w~h the area 
of common interest/ stake between the Company and the Stakeholder. 

2. Board ol Directors 
• Composlllon 

As on 31st March 2019, the Board comprised 13 Directors. 03 Directors are Executive Directors, while remaining 10 Directors are Non­
Executive Directors. Of the Non- Executive Directors, 09 Directors are Independent Directors. The Company's Board did not consist of any 
Nominee Directors appointed by lender(s) or a group of equity investor(s). Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Chairman and Mr. Prasan Firodia, 
Managing Director ofthe Company represent Promoters of the Company. 

• Directorships/Committee PosHions 
The details of other directorships/ comm~e positions of the Directors (as of 31st March 2019) of the Company are as under: 

Number of other Committee Details of dlrectorshiRs held In other 
compames 11 positions in listed ent1 ies 

which listed and unlisted 
Name of the Director directorships held* public companies# 

Director Chairman Mambar Chairman Nama of tha entity Category of directorship 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia 04 02 -- -- -- --
Mr. Prasan Firodia 03 01 -- -- -- --
Mr. Sudhir Mehta 14 01 -- -- -- --
Mr. Pratap Pawar 15 01 06 04 - Finolex Cables Limited Independent Director 

- Bharat Forge Limited 
- Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 

Mr. S. Padmanabhan 05 00 03 01 - Premier Limited ** Independent Director 
- Sanghvi Movers Limited 
- Sudarshan Chemical 

Industries Limited 
Mr. Nitin Desai 10 00 01 01 - Cadila Healthcare Limited Independent Director 
Mr. Yeshwant 
Deosthalee @ 01 00 00 00 -- --
Dr. Indira Parikh 06 00 02 00 - Deepak Nitrite Limited Independent Director 

- Johnson Controls-Hitachi 
Air Conditioning India Limited 

Mr. Arun Sheth 13 11 00 00 -- --
Mr. Arvind Mahajan 02 00 02 00 -- --
Mr. Anant Talaulicar 05 00 02 02 - Birlasoft Limited Independent Director 

- The Hi-Tech Gears Limited Non-Executive, 
Non-Independent Director 

- KPIT Technologies Ltd. Independent Director 
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
(Dr.) D.B. Shekatkar 00 00 -- -- -- --
Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar 01 00 00 00 -- --

* includes directorship in private companies and bodies corporare. **Ceased lobe a Director of the Company w.e.l. 1stApril2019. 
# Only audn committee and stakllholders' relationship commltlae of public limned companies, whBiher listed or unlisted, are considered fer the purpose of reckoning 

committee positions. 
@ Ceased to be a Director of the Company w.e.f. 26th July 2019, because of his heanh Issue. 
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• Attendance 

During the Financial Year 2018-19, six meetings of the Board 
were held on 29th May 201 B, 26th July 2018, 23rd August 
2018, 25th October 2018, 13th February 2019 and 
12th March 2019. The attendance of Directors during the 
Financial Year 2018-19 for Board Meetings and the Annual 
General Meeting are as under: 

Number of Whether present 
Board Meetings at the last Annual 

Nama ollha Director attend ad Ganaral Mealing 
held on 11th 

September 2018 
Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia 5 Yes 
Mr. Prasan Firodia 6 Yes 
Mr. Sudhir Mehta 5 Yes 
Mr. Pratap Pawar 5 Yes 
Mr. S. Padmanabhan 6 Yes 
Mr. Nitin Desai 5 Yes 
Mr. Yeshwant Deosthalee 2 Yes 
Dr. Indira Parikh 4 Yes 
Mr. Arun Sheth 4 No 
Mr. Arvind Mahajan 4 Yes 
Mr. Vinay Kothari* 3 Yes 
Mr. Anant Talaulicar# 0 --
Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
(Dr.) D.B. Shekalkar# 0 --
Mr. Prashant lnamdar 3 Yes 

* Ceased to be a direelllrw.e.l. 1 11th December 2018. 
# Appoinllld as adiractorofthe companyw.e.f.13th February2019. 

• lnter-se Relation of Directors 

Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia and Mr. Prasan Firodia are related to 
each other. Mr. Sudhir Mehta is related to Mr. Abhaykumar 
Firodia. None of the other Directors are related to any other 
Director of the Company as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013, ('the Act') including Rules thereof. 

• Information supplied to the Board 

The Board is presented with all the relevant information in 
various matters affecting the working of the Company and 
which requires deliberation at the highest level. Besides key 
operational and financial information, the Board is presented 
with information relevant to strategy formulation, for 
deliberations. This includes information as per Part A of 
Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 such as 
senior management change, compliances, major litigation, 
monthly production/ sales data. 

At each meeting, the Managing Directors present an elaborate 
report on the operations of the Company, including an 
assessment of the market, operational issues, operating 
profitability and various risks associated with the Company's 
business. Also, presented the assessments of the strategic 
and technological issues enabling a discussion on the 
strategy, projects, and tactics employed in the management 
of the Company's affairs. In the Board Meetings, the 
presentations were also made by the Senior Management 
Officials and Internal Auditors of the Company, covering 
differentfunctions and areas of the business ofthe Company. 
The Directors made all disclosures as per the requirements of 
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the Act from time to time, to the Board of Directors regarding 
theirfinancial interest in the transactions with the Company. 

The related party disclosure forms part of the Notes to 
Financial Statements as per the disclosure requirement of 
Indian Accounting Standard 24 issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. The Directors have informed 
the Company about the Committee positions occupied by 
them in other Companies and changes therein. 

• Independent Directors' Meeting 

In our opinion, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfil 
the conditions specified in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 and are independent of the management. The 
Independent Directors held their separate Meeting on 
13th February 2019 as mandated by the provisions of the Act 
and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The details of the 
familiarization programme for the Independent Directors of 
the Company can be accessed at the web link : https:// 
www.forcemotors.com/themeS/frontendldocstshare-holder­
info/other/Familiarisation _Programme _for_ Directors_ FY _ 20 
18-19.pdf 

• Performance Evaluation 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors 
individually including the Chairman, as well as evaluation of 
the working of its Committees. Tlle criteria for Performance 
Evaluation of Directors, the Board and its Committees, as 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company are placed 
on the Company's website www.forcemotors.com. Based on 
this, a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the 
performance of the Board and its committees, the individual 
Directors including the Chairman ofthe Board. 

• Remuneration to Executive Directors 

Tlle details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors 
during the Financial Year 2018-19 are provided in the Form 
MGT-9. 

• Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 

Tlle details of sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors 
during the Financial Year 2018-19 are provided in the Form 
MGT-9. 

• PecuniaryTransactionswHh Non-Executive Directors 

Tllere are no other financial transactions with the Non­
Executive Directors, apart from the transactions disclosed in 
the Form MGT-9. 

• StockOptionsto Directors 

Tlle Company does not have stock options. 

• Shares held by Directors 

Tlle details of shares of the Company held by Directors are as 
under: 

Name of the Director Number of 
shares held 

Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia 2,64,351 

Mr. Prasan Firodia 2,20,763 
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• Skills/expertise/competencies ofthe Board of Directors 
Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
(Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the Board of Directors have 
identified core skillS/expertise/competencies required of the 
Board of Directors of the Company which are vital in the 
context ofthe business of the Company. 

Considering the nature and size of the Company and the 
complex business environment in which it is operating, the 
Board has indentified the following key skills I expertise I 
competencies : 

Sr. No. Key Skills 
1. Leadership 
2. Research & Development 
3. Management & Strategy 
4. Operations & Engineering 
5. Supply Chain Management 
6. Sales and Marketing 
7. Finance, Banking & Investment 
8. Audit and Risk Management 
9. Legal and Corporate Governance 
10. CSR, Sustainability & Philanthropy 
11. Information Technology 
12. Human Resources and Industrial Relations 

• Transactions with Promoter Group Company 

Pursuant to the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 
the Company is required to disclose in its annual report the 
transactions it has entered with any person I entity belonging 
to the promoter I promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more 
shareholding in the Company. 

The transactions entered into by the Company with 
aforementioned parties are covered under Note No. 35 to the 
Financial Statement. 

3. Committees 

Nomination and Remuneration Commiltae 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised 
03 directors as on 31st March 2019 : 
• Mr. S. Padmanabhan, Chairman of the Committee, 

Independent Director 

• Mr. Arvind Mahajan, Member, Independent Director 

• Dr. Indira Parikh, Member, Independent Director 

The Committee met twice during the Financial Year ended 31st 
March 2019. The attendance details of the meetings of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as follows: 

Neme Of the Director Dete or Nomination end Remuneration 
Committee meetings 

29.05.2018 
Mr. S. Padmanabhan p 

Mr. Arvind Mahajan A 
Mr. Vinay Kothari* p 

Dr. Indira Parikh# -
* Ceasedtobeamemberw.e.f.10tll December2018. 

# Memberw.e.f.11tll December2018. 
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13.02.2019 
p 

p 

-
p 

Terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
includes: 

(i) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the 
Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees. 

(ii) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and 
the Board. 

(iii) Devising a policy on Board diversity. 

(iv) Identifying persons who are qual~iedto become directors and who 
may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the 
criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment 
and removal. 

(v) Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the 
independent director, on the basis of the report of performance 
evaluation of independent directors. 

(vi) Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, 
payable to senior management. 

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
the Board has adopted the policy on appointment of Directors I 
Independent Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and remuneration 
payable to them. Further, pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, which is 
effective from 1st April, 2019, the Board has amended the said policy. As 
mandated, the said policy is posted on the website of the Company 
www. forcemotors. com. 

AudH Committee 

The Audit Committee comprised 04 directors as on 31 st March 
2019: 

• Mr. Pratap Pawar, Chairman of the Committee, Independent 
Director 

• Mr. Arun Sheth, Member, Independent Director 

• Dr. Indira Parikh, Member, Independent Director 

• Mr. Sudhir Mehta, Member, Non-Executive Director 

The Committee met tour times during the Financial Year ended 
31st March 2019. The attendance details of the Audit Committee 
meetings are as follows : 

Name ollhe Director Date of Audit Committee meetings 
29.05.2018 26.07.2018 25.10.2018 13.02.2019 

Mr. Pratap Pawar p p p A 
Mr. Arun Sheth p p p p 

Dr. Indira Parikh p p p p 

Mr. Sudhir Mehta p p p A 
Mr. Vinay Kothari* p p A -

" Ceasedtobeamemberw.e.f.10thOecember2018. 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes: 

(i) Oversight of Company's reporting processes and financial 
information, review of Financial Statements, both audited and 
unaudited. 

(ii) Review of accounting policies and practices, review of compliance 
with accounting standards, discussion with statutory auditors 
before the audit commences and post audit, review of auditors' 
independence and performance. 
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Oii) Recommendation of appointment and remuneration of statutory 
and cost auditors, internal auditors, approval of appointment of 
Chief Financial Officer. 

(iv) Review and approval of related party transaction(s}, decide the 
principles for grant of omnibus approval for related party 
transaction(s). 

(v) Oversee the vigil mechanism, evaluation of internal financial 
controls and risk management systems. 

(vi) Review of utilization of loans I advances I investments made by the 
Company its subsidiaries. 

(vii) Other areas indicated in the SEBI (lDDR) Regulations, 2015 and as 
per the provisions of Section 177 of the Act. 

The Audit Committee reviewed the Unaudited Financial Results 
(Provisional) for the first three quarters in its meetings held on 26th July 
2018, 25th October 2018 and 13th February 2019 respectively; and 
Audited Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2018-19 in its meeting 
held on 27th May 2019. During the year under report, the Audit 
Committee interacted with the Statutory Auditors, Cost & Management 
Consultants and Internal Auditors of the Company regarding internal 
control systems, discussed the financial results I cost accounting 
records, and also held a post statutory audit verification of the financial/ 
cost accounts. 

The Committee also interacted with the executives of the Company on 
finance related matters including officials of Internal Audit department of 
the Company. The Committee reviewed the risk management policies, 
insurance cover taken by the Company, purchase procedures of raw 
materials and components for manufacture of various types of motor 
vehicles and also the foreign exchange exposure of various transactions. 
The remuneration of the Auditors was decided in consultation with the 
Audit Committee. Extensive data I details connected with the financial 
management of the Company and on other related aspects were 
submitted to the Committee in each of the meetings. 

The Certificate from the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer 
was also submitted to the Audit Committee and to the Board. The Audit 
Committee is empowered to require presence of any of the employee of 
the Company. No employee has sought access to the Audit Committee 
during the year under report. 

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee comprised 04 directors as on 
31st March 2019: 

• Mr. Sudhir Mehta, Chairman of the Committee, Non-Executive 
Director 

• Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, Member, Chairman 

• Mr. Prasan Firodia, Member, Managing Director 

• Mr. Nitin Desai, Member, Independent Director 

• Mr. Kishore P. Shah, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, 
acts as Compliance Officer of the Committee. 

The Committee met from time to time for approval of transfer of shares, 
issue of duplicate share certificates, approval of transmission and to deal 
with other matters. 

During the year under report, 20 shareholders' complaints were received 
and all these complaints were resolved to the satisfaction of the 
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concerned members. As of 31 st March 2019, no complaint was 
pending. 

Corporate Social Responsibility CommiHee 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprised 03 Members 
as on 31st March 2019: 

• Mr. S. Padmanabhan, Chairman of the Committee, Independent 
Director 

• Mr. Nitin Desai, Member, Independent Director 

• Mr. Sudhir Mehta, Member, Non- Executive Director 

The Committee recommends Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') 
activities to the Board. The Committee approves the CSR activities to 
undertake and amount of expenditure for them. The Committee also 
monitored the CSR policy and entrusted to formulate for transparent 
mechanism for implementation of CSR activities. The Committee 
reviews and ensures compliance with the requirement of the provisions 
of the Act and the CSR Rules. 

During the year under report, the Committee met once on 26th July 2018. 

4. General Body Maatings 

The details of the last three Annual General Meetings are as under: 

Annual Tlme Location Number SubJect ol 
General ol Special 
Meeting Special Resolution 
held on Resolutlans 

28th September 11.30 Mumbai-Pune 00 Nil 
2016 a.m. Road, Akurdi, 

Pune- 411035. 

13th September 11.30 Mumbai-Pune 05 Re-appointment 
2017 a.m. Road, Akurdi, of Independent 

Pune- 411035. Directors for a 
period of 5 years 

11th September 11.30 Mumbai-Pune 00 Nil 
2018 a.m. Road, Akurdi, 

Pune- 411035. 

During the year under report, shareholders of the Company passed 
5 Special Resolutions and an Ordinary Resolution on 29th March 
2019, through postal ballot as per the provisions of Section 11 0 of 
the Act, read with the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, for approving continuation of 
directorships of Mr. Nitin Desai, Dr. Indira Parikh, Mr. s. 
Padmanabhan, Mr. Pratap Pawar, the independent directors, post­
attainment the age of 75 years and appointment of Lt. Gen. (Retd.) 
Dr. D.B. Shekatkar, and of Mr. Anant Talaulicar as Independent 
Directors of the Company for a term of 3 years. Mr. Sanjay 
Athavale, Chartered Accountant, Pune, had acted as scrutinizer, to 
ensure the conduct of postal ballot and e-voting process in a fair 
and transparent manner. 

The details of the Postal BallotareAnnexedtothis report. 

5. Means or Communication 

The quarter1y and annual financial results of the Company are 
communicated forthwith to the stock exchange and shareholders, 
on approval by the Board. 
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The manner, in which these results were communicated during the 
year under report, is as follows : 

Relevant Board's Intimation to Newspaper 
period Approval on BSEon publication 

1st Quarter 26th July 26th July Financial Express (All 
2018 2018 editions); Loksatta 

2nd Quarter 25th October 25th October (Mumbai & Pune 
2018 2018 edition) & Business 

3rd Quarter 13th February 13th February Standard (PAN India) 
2019 2019 

4th Quarter & 27th May 27th May Financial Express (All 
Annual Audiled 2019 2019 editions); Loksatta 
Financial Results (Mumbai & Pune 

edition) & Business 
Standard (PAN India) 

The quarterly results of the Company are available on the 
Company's website www. forcemotors.com 
No presentation was made to any institutional investor or analyst 
during the Financial Year 2018-19. 

6. Few Policies as mandated under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 
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• Archival Policy 
Pursuant to Regulations 30(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015, every listed company shall disclose on its website all 
such events or information which have been disclosed to the 
stock exchange(s) under Regulation 30. Such disclosures 
shall be posted on the website of the company for a minimum 
period of five years and thereafter as per the archival policy of 
the Company. Accordingly, 'Archival Policy' as approved by 
the Board of Directors of the Company can be accessed from 
the Company's website at https:t/www.forcemotors.com I 
themes/frontend/docs/share-holder-info/other/archival­
policy.pdf 

• Dividend Distribution Polley 
The 'Dividend Distribution Policy' as approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Company can be accessed from the 
Company's website at https://www.forcemotors.com/ 
themes/frontend/docslshare-holder-infolotheriDividend­
Distribution-Policy.pdf 

• Whistle Blower Policy I Vigil Mechanism 
The Board has revised its Whistle Blower Policy I Vigil 
Mechanism in its meeting held on 13th February 2019 
pursuant to the amendments in the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading) Regulations, 2015. Now the revised policy also, 
addresses complaints w.r.t. leakage of unpublished price 
sensitive information in relation to the Company and prescribe 
the manner in which such cases shall be investigated. The 
Audit Committee oversees the genuine concerns expressed by 
the employees and other Directors. The Company has also 
provided adequate safeguards against the victimization of 
employees and Directors who express their concerns. The 
details of the mechanism I policy are disclosed on the website 
of the Company at https:llwww.forcemotors.coml 
themes/frontend/docs/share-holder-info/other/ Whistle 
blower%20Policy.pdf 

• Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions 
The Board has formulated a policy on materiality of the Related 
Party Transactions pursuant to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015. The policy has been revised during the year under 
review pursuant to the amendments in the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015, to fix threshold limits for determining 
materiality of related party transactions entered by the 
Company during the Financial Year. The limits will be reviewed 
by the Board of Directors once in 3 (three) years. Web link for 
the policy is https://www.forcemotors.com/themes/ 
frontend/docS/share-holder-infolother/Policy-on-Materiality­
of-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf 

• Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries I its 
Governance Framework 
llle Board has formulated a policy for determining 'material' 
subsidiaries pursuant to the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
The policy has been revised pursuant to the amendments in 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, to give effect to the 
change in the criteria for treating a subsidiary as a 'material 
subsidiary'. Web link for the policy on Material Subsidiaries 
is https:/lwww.forcemotors.comlthemesl frontendl 
docs/share-holder-info/other/Policy-for-determining­
Materiai-Subsidiaries-&-its-Governance-Framework.pdf 

• Code of practices I procedures tor fair disclosure of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information and Code ol 
Internal Procedures and Conduct for regulating, monHorlng 
and reporting oftrading by Designated Persons 
llle Company has a 'Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information' (the 
'Code for UPSI') and also a 'Code of Internal Procedures And 
Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading 
by Insiders' (the 'Code of Conduct)' in pursuance to the 
Regulation 8 and Regulation 9, respectively of the SEBI 
(Prohibition oflnsiderTrading) Regulations,2015. 

Pursuant to the notification SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/201 B/59 
issued by SEBI on 31st December 2018, the above mentioned 
Codes have been revised w.e.f. 1st April 2019, to allow the 
communication of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 
(UPSI) by an insider only for furtherance of legitimate 
purposes, performance of duties or discharge of legal 
obligations. 
llle revised Code now defines 'Designated Persons' to whom 
the Code applies, changes w.r.t. reporting of insider trading to 
the Board & Audit Committee, Trading window closure, 
establishing procedures for protecting UPSI, permissions to 
be obtained for trading by Designated Persons. 
The above Codes can be accessed at https://www. 
forcemotors.comlthemeslfrontendldocs/share-holder­
i nfo/other/Code-of -co nd u et-as-per-1 n s ider-Trading­
Regulations.pdf 

7. Other Disclosures 
• Materially significant related party transactions 

lllere were no materially significant related party contract(s) 
or arrangement(s) or transaction(s) during the year under 
review as defined under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations,2015. 

• Details of non-compliance etc. during the last three years 
lllere was no non-compliance by the Company of Corporate 
Governance conditions. No penalties were imposed by the 
Stock Exchange or the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
in any matter related to capital markets. 
During the year under review, there was a delay of 4 days in 
holding one Audit Committee Meeting which was not in line 
with the requirements of Regulation 18(2)(a) of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
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• Utilization of funds raised 
The Company has not raised funds by issuing securities, during 
the year under review. 

• Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging Activities 
A well controlled review process is in place for the purpose. The 
overall exposure is not material. 

• CredH ratings 
During the year under report, the Company obtained the 
following credit ratings for its bank loan facilities, which was 
enhanced from~ 420 crore to~ 720 crore : 

Credit rating Type of faciiHies Rating assigned 
agency rated (Previous rating) 

CRISIL Long Term CRISIL AA I Stable 
(Reaffirmed) 

Short Term CRISIL A 1 + (Reaffirmed) 

• Total fees paid to the AudHors 
Please refer the details of payments made by the Company to 
its Auditors during the period under review, in Note No. 27 to 
the Financial Statements under a separate heading. 
No subsidiary of the Company made any payment to the 
Auditors of the Company, during the period under review. 

• Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, ProhibHion and Redressal) Act, 
2013: 
Please refer the disclosure under this head in the Board's 
Report. 

8. Compliance of Corporate Governance and SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 
The Company has complied with the requirements w.r.t. Corporate 
Governance Report as specified in the Schedule V of the SEBI 
{LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Company has submitted quarterly 
compliance report on Corporate Governance to the Stock 
Exchange within 15 days from the end of the quarter during the 
Financial Year. The Company has complied with mandatory 
requirements of the SEBI {LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
The Company has complied with the discretionary requirements as 
specified in PartE of Schedule II as under: 
• TlleBoard 

The Chairman of the Company is also an Executive Director; 
hence disclosure under this head does notarise. 

• Shareholder Rights 
The quarterly/half -yearly/annual results, after they are taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, are forthwith sent to BSE 
Limited. The results, in prescribed format are published in the 
newspapers as per the requirements under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

• Modified opinion(s) in AudH Report 
The Company confirms that its Financial Statements are with 
unmodified audit opinion. 

• Reporting of Internal AudHor 
The Internal Auditor of the Company reports to the Audit 
Committee. 
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9. General Shareholders' Information 
• Scheduled Annual General Meeting 

Time: 11.30 a.m. 

Date : 19th September 2019 
Venue : Registered Office at Mumbai -Pune Road, Akurdi, 
Pune- 411 035. 

• Financial Year 
The Financial Year observed by the Company is 1st April of a 
year to 31st March of the following year. 

• Financial Calendar 
Unaudited Financial Results will be published on or before: 
For Quarter 1 : 14th August 
For Quarter 2 : 14th November 
For Quarter 3 : 14th February 
Audited Results: 30th May 

• Payment of Dividend 
The Board in its meeting held on 27th May 2019 has 
recommended a final dividend of ~ 10 per equity share 
on 1,31,76,262 equity shares for the Financial Year ended 
31 st March 2019. The dividend, if declared by the members of 
the Company will be paid on and after 19th September2019. 

• Date of Book Closure 
The register of members and share transfer books of the 
Company will remain closed from Saturday, 14th September 
2019 to Thursday, 19th September 2019, both days inclusive. 

• Listing on Stock Exchange 
Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited. Annual 
Listing fee for the Financial Year 2018-19 has been paid to 
BSE Limited. 

• SlockCoda 
The Stock Code allotted by BSE Limited is 500033. 

• Market Price Data 
Market price data during the Financial Year 2018-19 is as 
under: 

Month Share Price BSESensu 
High Low High Low 
~ ~ 

April2018 3238.00 2752.00 35213.3 32972.56 
May 2018 3121.10 2701.00 35993.53 34302.89 
June 2018 2850.00 2481.60 35877.41 34784.68 
July 2018 2734.90 2335.10 37644.59 35106.57 
August 2018 2699.60 2440.00 38989.65 37128.99 
September 2018 2499.00 1805.00 38934.35 35985.63 
October 2018 1894.80 1650.00 36616.64 33291.58 
November 2018 1980.00 1660.10 36389.22 34303.38 
December 201 8 1710.00 1580.00 36554.99 34426.29 
January 2019 1642.00 1300.00 36701.03 35375.51 
February 2019 1497.65 1300.00 37172.18 35287.16 
March 2019 1863.00 1393.30 38748.54 35926.94 
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• FMLSh111 Price vs BSE Sensu Comparison 
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• Dlstrlblllion of Shareholding 
Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2019 was as 
under : 

ClltiiDrY Number of PlrcaallpiD Nambaraf Plrl:lniiDI 
(Shires) lhareholde11 total llllfll to lolal 

shareholders number of 
shares held 

1 to 500 65,112 98.44 23,23,407 17.63 

501 to 1000 566 0.86 4,14,813 3.14 

1001 to 2000 251 0.38 3,61,336 2.75 

2001 to 3000 75 0.11 1,87,011 1.42 

3001 to4000 40 0.06 1,44,903 1.10 

4001 to 5000 23 0.04 1,06,876 0.81 

5001 to 10000 48 0.07 3,35,999 2.55 

10001&aboVE 28 0.04 93,01 ,917 70.60 

TDIII 66,143 100.00 1,31,76,262 100.00 
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• Shan~ Transfer Agent 
The Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent is Link 
Intima India Private Limited, situated at Block No. 202, 
Akshay Complex, Near Ganesh Temple, Off Dhole Patll Road, 
Pune - 411 001 , who handles the demat and physical share 
transfers as well as other shares related activities of the 
Company. 

• Shal'l Transfer System 
Applications for transfers, transmission are received by the 
Company at Its Registered Office or at the office of its Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent and are processed by the Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent on regular basis. With effect from 1st 
April2019, requests for transfer of shares are approved only In 
demateMallsed form and the same are duly processed by 
National Securities Depository Limited I Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited in the electronic form through 
the respective depository participants. As on the date of 
report, no transfer and transmission request of shares held in 
physical form is pending. During the year under report, the 
Company processed 35 share transfers, 24 transmissions, 
151 requests for dematerialisation and 1 request for 
rematerlallsation of shares. 

• Dematerlallsallon I Rematerlallsatlon ol Shares 
The shares of the Company are available for trading In 
depository system of both National Securities Depository 
limited and Central Depository Services (India) limited. The 
International Securities Identification Number code allotted to 
the shares of the Company is INE451 A01 017. 

As on 31st March 2019, 97.36% of the Company's shares were 
held in dematerialised form and 2.64% In physical form. 

• The Company has not Issued any GDRl, ADRl or Warrants or 
Convertible Instruments. 

• CIN 
The Corporate Identity Number allotted to the Company is 
L34102PN1958PLC011172. 

• Registered Office 
The Company's registered address Is Mumbai-Pune Road, 
Akurdi, Pune-411 035, Maharashtra. 

• Plant locations 
The Company's plants are located at the following places: 
(a) Mumbai - Pune Road, Akurdl, Pune - 411 035, 

Maharashtra 
(b) Plot No.3, Sector No.1, Industrial Area, Pithampur, 

District Dhar- 454 775, Madhya Pradesh. 
(c) Gat no. 330 (P), 331, 332, 333, 312151617 and 355 

Village Nanekarwadi, Chakan, Taluka Khed, 
District Pune- 410 505, Maharashtra 

(d) Mahindra Worid City, Panchayat Anjur, Taluka 
Chengalpattu, District Kancheepuram - 603 004, 
Tamilnadu. 

The address for corn~spondance Is • 
Mr. Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Force Motors limited 
Mumbai - Pune Road, Akurdi, 
Pune - 411 035, Maharashtra 
Phone : (020) 27476381 
e-mail : compliance-officer@forcemotors.com 
or 
Mr. Sandip Pawar 
link lntime India Privata Limited 
Block no. 202, Akshay Complex, 
Ganesh Temple, Off Dhole Patil Road, 
Pune - 411 001 , Maharashtra 
Phone : (020) 26161629126160084 
Teletax No. : (020) 26163503 
e-mail : pune@linkintime.co.ln 

D. AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND 
DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT 
The certificate obtained from the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company regarding compliance of conditions on Corporate 
Governance, as per the provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 is annexed to the Report The Code of Conduct approved by 
the Board of Directors of the Company is avaiable on the website 
of the Company. The confirmation about compliance of the code is 
being obtained on annual basis. A declaration signed by the 
Managing Director to that effect Is obtained. The Company has 
complied with the mandatory requirements prescribed under the 
SEBI (L.ODR) Regulations, 2015. 

E. UNPAID/UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND 
In terms of the provisions of Section 124 of the Act, the Company 
is obliged to transfer dividends which remain unpaid or unclaimed 
for period of seven consecutive years from the date of transfer to 
Unpaid Dividend Account, to be credited to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund ('IEPF') established by the Central 
Government. 
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Members are hereby informed that the seven years period for 
payment of the dividend pertaining to the financial years as given 
below will expire on respective dates and thereafter the amount 
standing to the credit in the said account will be transferred to the 
IEPF. Members are therefore requested to encash the dividend at 
the earliest. 
Dates of transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to the lund : 

Sr. Financial Date of Dividend Date on Which Dividend 
No. Year Declaration become 

Due for Transfer to IEPF 
1 2011-12 22-Sep-2012 21-0ct-2019 
2 2012-13 21-Sep-2013 20-0ct-2020 
3 2013-14 20-Sep-2014 19-0ct-2021 
4 2014-15 26-Sep-2015 25-0ct-2022 
5 2015-16 12-Mar-2016 18-Apr-2023 
6 2016-17 13-Sep-2017 12-0ct-2024 
7 2017-18 11-Sep-2018 1 0-0ct-2025 

F. TRANSFER OF SHARES TO IEPF 
During the year, the Company has transferred 2,544 shares on 
20th November 2018 to the IEPF. The shares were transferred on 
account of dividends unclaimed for seven consecutive years. 
The voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen until the 
rightful owner claims the shares. 
All the benefits accruing on these shares pursuant to any corporate 
action and any further dividend received on the shares shall be 
credited to the designated De mat Account I Bank account of the 
IEPF. 

G. UNCLAIMED SHARE CER11FICATES AND SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 
Share certificates in respect of 2, 612 shares earlier issued as right 
shares or bonus shares were returned undelivered. The Company 
had intimated this fact to the concerned members from time to 
time including reminders issued as per the requirement. These 
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unclaimed shares were transferred to the 'Force Motors Limited -
Unclaimed Securities Suspense Account'. 

Of the above mentioned shares, 2,151 shares were transferred to 
IEPF, in accordance with Section 124(6) of the Act and rules made 
thereunder List of the members whose shares are held in 'Force 
Motors Limited - Unclaimed Securities Suspense Account', is 
hosted on the websne of the Company. 
As per the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, all corporate benefits in 
terms of securities accruing on these shares shall be credited to 
the 'Force Motors Limited-Unclaimed Securities Suspense 
Account' (for 461 shares) and to the demat account of IEPF (for 
2,151 shares). 
The details of the above shares are as given below: 
a) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 

shares in the suspense account lying at the beginning of the 
year: 461 Equity Shares off 10/-each of 3 shareholders 

b) Number of shareholders who approached the Company for 
transfer of shares from suspense account during the year: Nil 

c) Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred 
from suspense account during the year: Nil 

d) Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding 
shares in the suspense account lying at the end of the year: 
461 Equity Shares off 10/-each of 3 shareholders 

e) Voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the 
rightful owner of these shares presents a claim for the same. 

H. MD and CFO Certification 
The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer give an 
annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to 
the Board in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The 
Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer also give 
quarterly certification on financial results while placing the 
financial results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of 
the Listing Regulations, 2015. 

I. DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR FOR COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 

To 

The Members of Force Motors Limited 

1, Prasan Firodia, Managing Director of Force Motors Limited declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel 
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st March 2019. 

Pune, 16th April2019 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

DIN : 00029664 
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J. CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 
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1 have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and 
disclosures received from the Directors of Force Motors Limited 
having CIN: L34102PN1958PLC011172 and having registered 
office at Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune - 411 035 (hereinafter 
referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me, by the 
Company & ~s officers for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, 
in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read w~h Schedule V 
Para-e Sub clause 1 O(i) of the Secu~ies and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to 
the verifications Qncluding Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status at the portal of MCA viz. www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & ~s 
officers, 1 hereby certify that none of the following Directors on the 
Board of the Company for the Financial Year ending on 
31 st March, 2019 have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority: 

Sr. 
No. 
1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 
10. 
11. 

12. 
13. 

N1me ul DiraGiur DIN Data Gl 
Appointment 

Mr. Abhaykumar Navalmal Firodia 00025179 01.07.2002 
Mr. Prasan Abhaykumar Firodia 00029664 30.09.2006 
Mr. Sudhir Mehta 00056867 30.09.2006 
Mr. Padmanabhan Subramanian 00001207 30.09.2006 
Mr. Pratap Govind Pawar 00018985 30.09.2006 
Mr. Arun Prabhudas Sheth 00086891 25.09.2010 
Mr. Nitin Raojibhai Desai 00140239 11.08.2014 
Dr. Indira Jitendra Parikh 00143801 11.08.2014 
Mr. Prashant Vijay lnamdar 07071502 16.01.2015 
Mr. Arvlnd RaJindernath MahaJan 07553144 30.07.2016 
Mr. Yeshwant Moreshwar 00001698 20.07.2017 
Deosthalee 
Mr. Anant Jaivant Talaulicar 00031051 13.02.2019 
Mr. Dattatray Balajirao Shekatkar 02676828 13.02.2019 

Ensuring the eligibil~ for the appointment I continu~ of every 
Director on the Board is the responsibil~ of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
based on our verification. This certificate is ne~her an assurance 
as to the future viabil~ of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs ofthe Company. 

Place:Pune Signature: 
Date: 21 st May, 2019 Name: lshwar U Thakur 

Membership No.: 2298 
CPNo.: 1402 
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ANNEXURETOCORPORATEGOVERNANCEREPORT 

Details of Postal Ballot 
The Company has obtained the approval of its members through Postal 
Ballot (including voting through electronic means) in accordance with the 
procedure prescribed in terms of Section 11 0 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 22 of the of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and 
applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, on the 
resolutions as set out in the Postal Ballot Notice : 

re 
FORCE 

Mr. Sanjay Athavle, Practicing Chartered Accountant was appointed as 
the Scrutinizer by the Board to conduct the said Postal Ballot process in 
fair and transparent manner. 
The results of voting, conducted through the Postal Ballot (including 
voting through electronic means) for passing of Ordinary I Special 
Resolutions, were announced by the Chairman and Managing Director of 
the Company on 29th March, 2019 as reproduced herein below: 

Resolution no. 01 : Continuation of Directorship of Mr. Nitin R. Desai (DIN: 00140239) as Non-Executive Independent Director, post attainment of 
age of 75 years (Special Resolution). 

Category No. of shares No. of votes % of votes polled No. of votes - No. of votes - %of Votes %of votes 
held polled on outstanding In favour In against in favour on against on 

shares voters polled votes polled 
Promoter and 
promoter Group 8150347 8109438 99.50 8109438 0 100.00 0.00 
Public - institution 1015115 891301 87.80 876655 14646 98.36 1.64 
Public- Non 
Institution 4010800 41218 1.03 35004 6214 84.92 15.08 
TOTAL 13176262 9041957 68.62 9021097 20860 99.77 0.23 

The above special resolution was passed with requisite majority. 

Resolution no. 02 : Continuation of Directorship of Dr. Indira J. Parikh {DIN: 00143801) as Non-Executive Independent Director, post attainment of 
age of 75 years (Special Resolution). 

Category No. of shares No. of votes % of votes polled No. of votes - No. of votes - %of Votes %of votes 
held polled on outstanding In favour In against in favour on against on 

shares voters polled votes polled 

Promoter and 
promoter Group 8150347 8109438 99.50 8109438 0 100.00 0.00 

Public - institution 1015115 891301 87.60 867266 4033 99.55 0.45 
Public- Non 
Institution 4010600 41190 1.03 34669 6321 64.65 15.35 
TOTAL 13176262 9041929 68.62 9031575 10354 99.89 0.11 

The above special resolution was passed with requisite majority. 

Resolution no. 03 : Continuation of Directorship of Mr. S. Padmanabhan (DIN: 00001207) as Non-Executive Independent Director, post attainment 
ofage of 75 years (Special Resolution). 

Category No. of shares No. of votes % of votes polled No. of votes - No. of votes - %of Votes %of votes 
held polled on outstanding In favour In against in favour on against on 

shares voters polled votes polled 

Promoter and 
promoter Group 6150347 8109436 99.50 6109436 0 100.00 0.00 

Public - institution 1015115 396722 39.08 396722 0 100.00 0.00 
Public- Non 
Institution 4010800 41161 1.03 35003 6158 65.04 14.96 
TOTAL 13176262 8547321 64.87 8541163 6158 99.93 0.07 

The above special resolution was passed with requisite majority. 
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Resolution no. 04 : Continuation of Directorship of Mr. Pratap G. Pawar (DIN: 00018985) as Non-Executive Independent Director, post attainment of 
age of 75 years (Special Resolution). 

Category No. of shares No. of votes % of votes polled No. of votes - No. of votes - %of Votes %of votes 
held polled on outstanding In favour In against in favour on against on 

shares voters polled votes polled 
Promoter and 
promoter Group 8150347 8109438 99.50 8109438 0 100.00 0.00 
Public - institution 1015115 396722 39.08 382076 14646 96.31 3.69 
Public- Non 
Institution 4010800 41188 1.03 33338 7850 80.94 19.06 
TOTAL 13176262 8547348 64.87 8524852 22496 99.74 0.26 

The above special resolution was passed with requisite majority. 

Resolution no. 05 : Appointment of Lt. General (Dr.) D.B. Shekatkar (DIN: 02676828) as Non-Executive Independent Director, post attainment of 
age of 75 years (Special Resolution). 

Category No. of shares No. of votes % of votes polled No. of votes - No. of votes - %of Votes %of votes 
held polled on outstanding In favour In against in favour on against on 

shares voters polled votes polled 
Promoter and 
promoter Group 8150347 8109438 99.50 8109438 0 100.00 0.00 
Public - institution 1015115 891301 87.80 891301 0 100.00 0.00 
Public- Non 
Institution 4010800 40536 1.01 35092 5444 86.57 13.43 
TOTAL 13176262 9041275 68.62 9035831 5444 99.94 0.06 

The above special resolution was passed with requisite majority. 

Resolution no. 06: Appointment of Mr. An ant J. Talaulicar (DIN: 00031 051) as Non-Executive Independent Director (Ordinary Resolution). 

Category No. of shares No. of votes % of votes polled No. of votes - No. of votes - %of Votes %of votes 
held polled on outstanding In favour In against in favour on against on 

shares voters polled votes polled 
Promoter and 
promoter Group 8150347 8109438 99.50 8109438 0 100.00 0.00 
Public - institution 1015115 891301 87.80 891301 0 100.00 0.00 
Public- Non 
Institution 4010800 41249 1.03 39445 1804 95.63 4.37 
TOTAL 13176262 9041988 68.62 9040184 1804 99.98 0.02 

The above ordinary resolution was passed with requisite majority. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To the Members of Force Motors Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Force Motors Limited ('the Company'} for the 
year ended 31st March, 2019 as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to 0) of regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E 
of schedule Vofthe SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 ('the Listing Regulations'). 

The compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility 
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the 
conditions ofthe Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements ofthe Company. 

We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the 
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the I CAl), the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this 
certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the I CAl. 

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SOC) 1, Quality Control for 
firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information and other Assurance and Related Service 
Engagements. 

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the best of our information and explanations provided to 
us, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of regulations of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
above mentioned Listing Regulations. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

The certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid SEBI Listing Regulations and may not be 
suitable tor any other purpose. 

Pune, 12th July 2019. 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

For M/s. Kirtane I Pandit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN: 105215W/W100057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 

Membership No. 031787 
UDIN No. 19031787AAAAAH6374 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
To the Members of Force Motors Limited 

Report on the audit of Standalone Financial Statements 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Force Motors Limited ("the Company''), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred 
to as "the standalone financial statementsft). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the profit and total 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143 (1 0) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements section 
of our report We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (I CAl) 
together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the I CAl's Code of Ethics. We believe thatthe 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

Kay Audit MaHers 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 

Sr. Key Audit MaHer Auditor's Response 
No. 
1 Accuracy of Revenue Recognition 

Revenue being an important element of We analysed the Company's accounting policies & procedures for revenue recognition, 
Statement of Profit and Loss and including the criteria for the same. 
considering the new Accounting Standards, Our audit approach consisted evaluation of control environment and substantive testing as 
and its impact on profits of the Company; follows: 
it is considered a Key Audit matter. • Reviewed the contract terms in respect of transfer of significant risks and rewards of 

ownership to customers and performance obligations for revenue recognition. 
• Substantive tests on random sampling basis for all the major sale transactions and 

verification of all document flow involved in the samples selected. 
• Reviewed of payment terms with dealers, identification of significant financing 

components and terms of discounts. 
• Reviewed accounting for after-sales services in terms of warranty schemes and 

service coupon systems. 
• Reviewed of compliance done with respect to Indirect Taxes Compliances . 
• Performed analytical procedures for ensuring overall accuracy . 

2 Accuracy of Cost of Goods Sold 
We identnied Cost of Goods Sold area as We assess the Company's process to verny the Cost of Goods Sold (COGS} incurred 
a key audit matter because it is the most during the year. 
significant cost to the Company, which Our audit approach consisted of testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the 
comprises of the cost of materials and internal controls and substantive testing as follows : 
other direct costs of production and the • Overall evaluation and testing of controls related to corresponding business 
same has significant impact on the processes, viz. 'Procurement to Payment (P2P), Production Process, Material 
profitability of the Company. Requirement Planning (MRP), Inventory Policy and Stores Procedures. 

• Review of overall operations and production process of materials into finished 
products. 

• Review the standard operating procedures for COGS to ensure the correctness and 
completeness of COGS. 
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Sr. Key Audit MaHer Auditor's Response 
No. 

• Physical verification of inventory items on random sampling basis with reference to 
book inventory for accuracy and controls including review of internal period-end 
inventory procedures and reconciliations. 

• Reviewing completeness and overall accuracy of system generated material 
consumption and reconciling with General Ledger, including manual accounting entries 
relating to material consumption. 

• Review of inventory valuation, material consumption in accordance with applicable 
Indian Accounting Standards. 

• Review of Reconciliations of Inventory General Ledger and Materials Management 
Module of SAP System. 

• Evaluate the procedures for identifying slow moving items and their accounting 
estimates made by Management. 

3 Accuracy and Completeness ol Capital 
Expenditure 
Capital Expenditure (CAPEX) has been We assessed the Company's process to verify the Capital Expenditure incurred during the 
considered as a key audit matter in view of year including significant acquisitions of manufacturing facility. Our audit approach 
the complexity, peculiarities of business and consisted of testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls and 
being one of the important elements of substantive testing as follows : 
costs. • Review of CAPEX business process, flow of documents/information and their controls 

effectiveness. 
• Substantive tests on random sampling basis for all the major additions, deletions to 

the assets by applying all the characteristics of capital expenditure, proper 
classification of the same, with reference to the Company's policy and accounting 
standards. 

• Scrutiny of relevant general ledger accounts to assess if the expenditure has been 
correctly accounted tor. 

• Physical verification of test basis, review of physical verification carried out by the 
Management with respect to book records, review of Internal audit reports findings 
relating to Capex, if any, and implementation of the suggestions of the same. 

• We have assessed the competency, objectivity and capabilities of management 
experts and for a sample of valuations, we evaluated the adequacy and 
appropriateness of their work. 

• Review of compliance done with respect to Companies Act, Income Tax Act, Customs 
Duty and GST Act, particularly for accounting of additions, deletions, depreciation and 
of carrying amounts thereof. 

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Business Responsibility Report, but does 
not include the financial statements and our auditor's reportthereon. 

Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexuresto Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information are 
expected to be made available to us after the date ofthis auditor's report, hence our opinion is based on Standalone Financials Statement only. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Business 
Responsibility Report, if required , if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged 
with governance. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fairview of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the lnd AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
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reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management e~her intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an aud~or's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when ~exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform aud~ 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the aud~ in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the aud~ evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abil~to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our aud~or's report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Material~ is the magn~ude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes~ probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative material~ and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the standalone financial statements. 
We communicate w~h those charged w~h governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the aud~ and significant aud~ 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our aud~. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
standalone financial statements ofthe current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we reportthat: 
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equ~ and the 
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the Board ofDirectors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act. 

{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure N'. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls overfinancial reporting. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements- Refer Note 30(a) to the 
standalone financial statements 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company. -Refer Note 42 to standalone financial statements. 

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the 
Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order. 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 

For Kirtane & Plndit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Arm Reg. No. 105215W /W100057 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 

Membership No. : 031787 

ANNEXURE "N' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our reportto the Members of 
Force Motors Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
Force Motors Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date. 
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
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Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(1 0) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls system overfinancial reporting ofthe Company. 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
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maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fai~y 
renectthe transactions and dispositions ofthe assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets 
that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place:Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 

For Klrlane & PandH LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105215W/W100057 

Suhas Oeshpande 
Partner 

Membership No. 031787 

ANNEXURE ''B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members of Force Motors Limited 
of even date) 

(i) In respect of the Company's property, plant and equipment: 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
property, plant and equipment. 

(b) As explained to us, considering the nature of the Fixed Asset, 
the same have been physically verified by the management at 
reasonable intervals during the year as per verification plan 
adopted by the Company, which, in our opinion, is reasonable 
having regards to size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets. According to information and explanations given to us 
and the records produced to us for our verification, the 
discrepancies noticed during such physical verification were 
not material and same have been properly dealt with in the 
books of account; 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and 
on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable 
properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in 
the name of the Company. 

In respect of immovable properties been taken on lease and 
disclosed as property, plant and equipment in the standalone 
financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of 
the Company. 

(ii) As informed to us, the physical verification of inventory has been 
conducted by the management at reasonable intervals and the 
discrepancies noticed during such physical verification were not 
material. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
Inventory as compared to the book records have been prope~y 
dealt with the books of account. 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to 
Companies, Firms, limited liability Partnerships or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act. Accordingly, paragraph 30ii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
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(iv) In our opinion and according to infonmation and explanations given 
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
investments made. Further the Company has not granted any 
loans, given any guarantee or security in connection with a loan to 
any other body corporate or person. 

(v) In our opinion and according to the infonmation and explanations 
given to us, the Company has complied with the directives of the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provision of Sections 73 to 76 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, wherever 
applicable. As informed to us, no order has been passed against 
the Company, by the Company Law Board, the National Company 
Law Tribunal, RBI, or any court or any tribunal. 

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost 
records under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 ofthe Act and we are 
of the opinion that prima-facie such records are made and 
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of 
the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or 
complete. 

(vii) According to the infonmation and explanations given to us, in 
respect of statutory dues: 

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and 
Services Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material 
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Goods and Services Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other 
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2019 for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 
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(b) Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise 
Duty and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited as 
at March 31, 2019 on account of dispute are given below: 

Sr Name of Nature Amount* Period(s) to Forum where 
No. the of the (Rs in which the amount such dispute 

Statute Dues Lakhs) relates {Various is pending 
year covering 
the period) 

1 Central Excise 222.87 1987-1991, Customs, Excise 
Excise Duty 1990-1991, & Service Tax 
Act,1944 1998-2000, Appellate 

2008-2015 Tribunal 
(CESTAT) 

0.23 1995-1996 Appellate 
Authority upto 
Commissioner's 
level 

2 Sales Tax Sales 269.65 1995-1998, Appellate 
Laws Tax 2003-2012, Authority upto 

2015-2016 Commissioner's 
level 

38.04 2003-2004, Commercial Tax 
2006-2008, Appellate Board 

3 Custom Custom 16.83 2004-2005, Customs, Excise 
Act,1962 Duty 2012-2013 & Service Tax 

Appellate 
Tribunal 
(CESTAT) 

* amount as per demand orders Including penalty wherever quanlllled In the Order. 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not defau~ed in the repayment of 
loans or borrowings to banks. The Company did not have any 
outstanding loans or borrowings from financial institutions or 
government and there are no dues to debenture holders during the 
year. 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the term loan taken by the Company has been applied 
for the purpose for which they were raised. The Company had not 
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raised money by way of further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees 
has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has paid/provided managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule Vto 
the Act. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under 
paragraph 3 (xii) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company is in compliance with Sections 177 and 
1 BB of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all 
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party 
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures and hence reporting under paragraph 
3(xiv) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, during the year the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 
with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1 of 
the Reserve BankoflndiaAct, 1934. 

Place:Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 

For Kirlana & Pandit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Arm RegiSiration No. 105215W/W100057 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 

Membership No. 031787 
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Note 
No. 

ASSETS 
1. Non-current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 
(b) Capital Wor1<-in-progress 3 
(c) Investment Property 4 
(d) Other Intangible Assets 5 
(e) Intangible Assets under development 5 
(f) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 6 
(ii) Loans and Advances 7 

(g) Other Non-current Assets 9 
Total Non-current Assets 

2. Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 1 0 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 11 
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 12 
(iii) Bank Balance other than Oi) above 12 
(iv) Loans and Advances 7 
(v) Other Financial Assets 13 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 8 
(d) Other Current Assets 9 
Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1. Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 14 
(b) OtherEquity 15 
Total Equity 

2. LiabiiHies 
Non-current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabil~ies 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabil~ies 

(b) Provisions 
(c) Deterred Tax Liabilities {Net) 
(d) Other Non-current Liabil~ies 
Total Non-current Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabil~ies 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Trade Payables 

- Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises 
- Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small enterprises 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 
(c) Current Tax Liabilities {Net) 
(d) Provisions 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total LiabiiHies 

Total Equity and Liabilities 
See accompanying notes forming part of the Anancial Statements 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirlane & PandH LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN : 1 05215W/W1 00057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 
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Sanjay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

16 
17 
18 
8 

20 

16 
19 

17 
20 
8 

18 

1-47 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

1,08,052 86,877 
13,265 17,351 

578 603 
12,953 7,366 
23,915 19,566 

2,819 1,060 
1,516 1,671 

11,868 5,229 
1,74,966 1,39,723 

50,356 47,710 

16,652 24,191 
227 3,961 
93 132 

197 244 
31,700 20,131 

303 
9,096 15,811 

1,08,624 1,12,180 
2,83,590 2,51,903 

1,318 1,318 
1,92,169 1,78,561 
1,93,487 1,79,879 

20,563 
396 

3,083 2,698 
989 443 
157 189 

24,792 3,726 

5,087 

71 78 
39,459 56,409 
5,260 3,078 

13,247 6,019 
238 

2,187 2,476 
65,311 68,298 
90,103 72,024 

2,83,590 2,51,903 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

INCOME 
(a) Revenue from Operations 
(b) Other Income 
Total Income 

II EXPENSES 
(a) Cost of Materials consumed 
(b) Change in Inventories of Finished Goods and 

Work-in-progress 
(c) Excise Duty 
(d) Employee benefits expense 
(e) Finance costs 
(f) Depreciation and Amortization expense 
(g) Other expenses 
(h) Expenditure included in the above items capitalized 
Total Expanses 

Ill Profit before exceptional items and tu 
IV Excaptionalltams 
V Profit Before Tu 
VI Tu Expanse 

(a) Current Tax 
(b) Deferred Tax 
(c) Taxation in respect of earlier years 
Total Tu Expense 

VII Profit for the year 
VIII Other Comprehensive Income : 

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 
(i) Re-measurements of net defined benem liability 
(ii) Equity instrument through Other 

Comprehensive Income 

(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to Profit or Loss 
(i) Taxes on re-measurements of net defined benefit liability 
(ii) Taxes on Equity instrumentthrough Other 

Comprehensive Income 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 
IX Total Comprahansivalncoma for the year (comprising Profit 

and Other Comprehensive Income for the year) (VII + VIII) 
X Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity share 

[Nominal value per share f 1 OJ f 

See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statements 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirtane & PandH LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN : 1 05215W/W1 00057] 

Suhas Dashpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 
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Sanjay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

Note 
No. 

21 
22 

23 

24 
25 
26 
27 

8 

28 
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For the year For the year 
ended 31st ended 31st 

March 2019 March 2018 

3,65,210 3,52,342 
8,162 6,872 

3,73,372 3,59,214 

2,81,471 2,60,924 
(3,425) (5,132) 

10,082 
41,813 38,655 
1,533 667 

15,092 12,926 
30,894 31,213 

(13,387) (10,144) 
3,53,991 3,39,191 

19,381 20,023 

19,381 20,023 

4,199 4,362 
488 1,514 
(24) (548) 

4,663 5,328 
14.718 14.695 

112 210 
424 92 

536 302 

(39) (73) 
(19) 

(58) {73) 
478 229 

15,196 14,924 

111.70 111.53 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 201 9 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance as at Changes in Equity Balance as at 
1st April 2017 Share Capital during 31st March 2018 

the year 
1,318 -- 1,318 

Balance as at Changes in Equity Balance as at 
1st April 2018 Share Capital during 31st March 2019 

the year 
1,318 --

B. Other Equity 

Balance as at 1st April 2017 
Profit for the year 
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) 
Dividends (including dividend 
distribution tax) 

Balance as at 31st March 2018 
Balance as at 1st April 2018 
Profit for the year 
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) 
Dividends (including dividend 
distribution tax) 

Balance as at 31st March 2019 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Klrtane & Pandlt LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN: 105215W/W100057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 
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1,318 

Reserves and Surplus 

Securities General 
Premium Reserve 

5,920 34,629 

-- --
-- --
-- --

5,920 34,629 
5,920 34,629 

-- --
-- --
-- --

5,920 34,629 

San)ay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Kishare P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

Equity 

Retained Instruments 
earnings through Other Total 

Comprehensive 
Income 

1,23,828 846 1,65,223 
14,695 -- 14,695 

137 92 229 
(1,586) -- (1,586) 

1,37,074 938 1,78,561 
1,37,074 938 1,78,561 

14,718 -- 14,718 
73 405 478 

(1,588) -- (1,588) 

1,50,277 1,343 1,92,169 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Flrodla 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments for 
Depreciation and Amortization expense 
Net exchange differences (unrealised) 
Interest Income 
Dividend income on Equity Securities 
Loss I (Gain) on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 
Finance Costs 
Inventory write down 
Provision for bad, doubtful debts and debit balances 
Operating Profit before Working Capital adjustments 
Working Capital adjustments 
(Increase) I Decrease in 
Trade Receivables 
Inventories 
Other Financial Assets 
Other Non-financial Assets 
Trade Payables 
Financial Liabilities 
Non-financial Liabilities 
Provisions 
Cash generated from Operations 
Income Tax paid (Net) 
Net Cash llow from I (used In) Operating Activities 

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities 
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 
Deposits with Financial Institution 
Interest received 
Investments in Joint Venture 
Dividends received 
Net Cash llow from I (used In) Investing Activities 

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities 
Proceeds from I (Repayment of) borrowings 
Interest paid 
Dividends paid (including Dividend distribution Tax) 
Net Cash llow from I (used in) Financing Activities 
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents 
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 
Cash and Cash equivalents at end of the financial year 
Cash and Cash equivalents as per Note 12 
Effects of exchange rate fluctuations on Cash and Cash 
equivalents held 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Klrtane I Pandlt LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN: 105215W/W100057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 
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San)ay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 
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For the year For the year 
ended 31st ended 31st 

March 2019 March 2018 
19,381 20,023 

15,092 12,926 
(284) 216 

(2,061) (2,433} 
(5) (8} 

177 (114) 
1,533 667 

203 511 
71 

34,036 31,859 

7,530 {12,750) 
(2,848) (4,454) 

242 14,613 
6,719 1,536 

(16,661) 7,820 
(502) 15 
7,196 {10,236) 

207 19 
35,919 28,422 
(4,716) (2,774} 
31,203 25,648 

(49,811) {32,414) 
93 595 

(11,000) 20,000 
1,491 3,752 

(1,336) 
5 8 

(60,558) (8,059) 

28,578 {20,014) 
(1,364) (688) 
(1,588) (1,586} 
25.626 (22.288} 
(3,729) (4,699) 

3,957 8,656 
228 3,957 
227 3,961 

1 (4) 

228 31957 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Flrodla 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 

1. THE CORPORATE INFORMATION 
Force Motors Limited ("the Company") is a Public Limited Company domiciled and incorporated in India. The Registered Office of the Company is 
situated at Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune- 411 035. The Company's ordinary shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. 
The Company is a fully, vertically integrated automobile company, with expertise in design, development and manufacture of the full spectrum of 
Vehicles, automotive components and aggregates. Its range of products includes Light Commercial Vehicles (LCV), Multi-Utility Vehicles (MUV), 
Small Commercial Vehicles (SCV), Special Vehicles (SV) and Agricultural Tractors. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(a) Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") [the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant 
provisions ofthe Act. 

(b) Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except certain financial instruments and defined benefit plans, 
which are measured at fair values. 

(c) Revenue RecognHion 
(i) Sales 

Revenue is measured atthe fair value ofthe consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of Value Added 
Taxes, Goods and Services Tax (GST), Returns, Discounts, Rebates and Incentives. The Company recognizes revenue, when it has 
transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards associated with the ownership of goods, no significant performance obligation 
is pending and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company. 

(ii) Other Incomes 
Other incomes are recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be 
measured reliably. 

(d) Inventories 
Inventories are valued at lower of their cost or net realizable value. The cost of raw materials, stores and consumables is measured on moving 
weighted average basis. 
Inventories comprise all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. 
Raw materials and bought out components are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of the 
weighted average method. 
Finished Goods and work-in-progress are carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. 
Stores, spares and tools other than obsolete and slow moving items are carried at cost. Obsolete and slow moving items are valued at cost or 
estimated net realizable value, whichever is lower. 

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment, except land, are carried at historical cost of acquisition, construction or manufacturing cost, as the case may 
be, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Freehold land is carried at cost of acquisition. 
Cost represents all expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition capable of operating in the manner intended. 
Costs incurred to manufacture property, plant and equipment and intangible are reduced from the total expense under the head 'Expenditure 
included in above items capitalised' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

(f) Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets acquired are stated at acquisition cost, less accumulated amortization and impaired losses, if any. 
Intangible Assets internally generated 
Expenditure incurred by the Company on development of know-how researched, is recognized as an intangible asset, if and only if the future 
economic benefits attributable to the use of such know-how are probable to flow to the Company and the costs/expenditure can be measured 
reliably. 

(g) Investment Property 
Investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

(h) Impairment or assets 
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thatthe carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

(i) Depreciation I Amortization 
(i) Property, Plant and Equipment 

• The Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on straight-line method and as per Schedule-11 to the Companies 
Act,2013. 

• Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease. 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 

(ii) lntangiblaAssets 
• Software and their implementation costs are written off over the period of 5 years. 
• Technical Know-how acquired and internally generated is amortized over the usefu I life ofthe assets, not exceeding 1 0 years. 

0) Borrowing Costs 
Cost of borrowings incurred for acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset is capitalized. 

(k) Research and Development Expenses 
Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged off as an expense in the year in which incurred and capital expenditure is 
grouped with Assets under appropriate heads and depreciation is provided as per rates applicable. 

(I) Leases 
(i) Where the Company is the Lessee 

• Leases where the Lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as 
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

• Finance leases are capitalized atthe inception ofthe lease attairvalue ofthe leased property. 
(II) Where the Company Is the Lessor 

Lease rentals are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(m) Earnings per Share 
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit aftertax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. 

(n) Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions and balances 
(i) Foreign Currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. 
(ii) Monetary items of Assets and Liabilities booked in foreign currency are translated in to rupee at the exchange rate prevailing at the 

Balance Sheet date 
{iii) Exchange difference resulting from settlement of such transaction and from translation of monetary items of Assets and Liabilities are 

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
{iv) Exchange difference arising on translation of foreign currency liabilities tor acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipments are adjusted 

to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
{v) The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or 

income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the 
payment or receipt of advance. 

(o) Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company's functional currency. All amounts disclosed in the 
financial statements and notes have been rounded off to nearestlakhs, unless otherwise stated. 

(p) Employae Banafits 
Defined benefit plans 
(i) The accruing liability of Grab.Jity is covered by Employees Group Grab.Jity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and the 

premium is accounted for in the year of accrual. The additional liability, if any, due to deficit in the Plan assets managed by LIC as 
compared to the present value of accrued liability on the basis of actuarial valuation, is recognized and provided for. 

{ii) Providentfund contributions are made to Company's Provident Fund Trust. The contributions are accounted for as defined benefit plans 
and are recognized as employee benefits expense when they are due. Deficits, if any, of the fund as compared to liability on the basis of 
an independent actuarial valuation is to be additionally contributed by the Company. 

{iii) Current service cost and net interest on defined benefit obligation are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
(iv) Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the 

period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and in the Balance Sheet. 

Defined contribution plans 
{i) The Company's superannuation scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expenses 

when they are due. 
{ii) Benefits in respect of compensated absence payable after 12 months are provided for, based on valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date, 

made by independent actuaries. 
{iii) Defined contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund Authority and recognized as expense 

as and when due. 
(q) Taxation 

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year. The Company's current tax is calculated 
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
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Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial 
statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent it 
is probable thatfuture taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilized. Deferred tax is 
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relate to the items that are recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in this case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directiy in equity respectively. 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT} paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustmentto future 
income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax against which the 
MAT paid will be adjusted. 

(r) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
(i) Provision 

A provision is recorded when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated. 
Provision is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still under warranty at the end of the reporting 
period. These claims are expected to be settled as and when warranty claims will arise. Management estimates the provision based on 
historical warranty claim information and any recent trends that may suggestfuture claims could differ from historical amounts. 

(ii) Contingentliability 
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, 
require an outflow of resources. 

(s) Incentives 
Incentives receivable/ received are disclosed as "Other Income", in the Financial Statements. 

(t) Financial instruments 
Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 
These include financial assets that are equity instruments and are irrevocably designated as such upon initial recognition. Subsequently, 
these are measured atfairvalue and changes therein are recognized directly in other comprehensive income, net ofapplicable income taxes. 
Dividends from these equity investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, when the right to receive payment has been 
established. When the equity investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to retained earnings. 

(u) Fair value measurement 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities based on the nature, characteristics 
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as; 
• Level1 -Quoted (unadjusted) mar1<et prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
• Level2 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 

observable. 
• Level3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair 
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

(v) Use of estimates and judgements 
Detailed information about accounting judgements, estimates and assumption is included in the relevant notes. 
(i) Estimation of defined benefit obligation -refer Note 36. 
(ii) Estimation of provision for warranty claims- refer Note 18. 
(iii) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipments -refer Note 2 (i) (i) above. 
(iv) Estimated useful life of intangible assets- refer Note 2(i) (ii) above. 
(v} Estimation of provision forT ax expenses- refer 2(q} above. 
Estimation and underlying assumptions are reviewed on ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. 

(w) Recent accounting pronouncements 
New Accounting pronouncements affecting amounts reported and/ or disclosures in the financial statements. 
Revision to lnd AS 116-Leases- have been issued but are not yet effective. The Company is evaluating the impact of these pronouncements 
on the financial statements. 
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a I Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 
~ (All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

m 3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 
:!!: 
c ..... c 
;J 
!: 
a: 
=i m c 

Particulars 

Gross carrying amount 
Balance as at 1 st April 201 8 
Additions 
Disposals I Adjustments 
Balance as at 31 sl March 201 9 
Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 1 st April 2018 
Depreciation for the year 
Disposals I Adjustments 
Balance as at 31 sl March 201 9 
Carrying amounts (Net) 
As at 31st March 2019 
As at 31st March 2018 

Notes: 
(a) Refer to Note 34 for Lease. 

Land 

Freehold 

868 

--
--

868 

--
--
--
--

868 
868 

Buildings Plant& 
Equipment 

Leasehold 

1,590 27,944 1,48,460 
882 3,152 28,909 

-- -- 29 
2,472 31,096 1,77,340 

70 7,655 1,01,220 
21 1,082 10,174 

-- -- 29 
91 8,737 1,11,365 

2,381 22,359 65,975 
1,520 20,289 47,240 

Furniture & 
Fixtures 

1,570 
377 

3 
1,944 

871 
115 

2 
984 

960 
699 

(b) Referto Note 30 (b) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment. 
(c) Capital Work-in-Progress mainly comprises Plant & Equipment. 

Cll 
Cll 

Vehicles Office Aircrafts 
Equipment 

3,935 966 17,990 
673 154 --
602 5 --

4,006 1,115 17,990 

2,159 644 3,827 
350 111 849 
333 5 --

2,176 750 4,676 

1,830 365 13,314 
1,776 322 14,163 

Total 

2,03,323 
34,147 

639 
2,36,831 

1,16,446 
12,702 

369 
1,28,779 

1,08,052 
86,877 

Capital Wor1<-in-
Progress 

17,351 
3,108 
7,194 

13,265 

13,265 
17,351 

0 
~@ 
m 
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(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

56 

Particulars Industrial 
Shed 

Gross carrying amount 
Balance as at 1st April 2018 794 
Additions --
Disposals I Adjustments --
Balance as at 31st March 201 9 794 
Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 1st April 2018 191 
Depreciation for the year 25 
Disposals I Adjustments --
Balance as at 31st March 201 9 216 
Carrying amounts (Net) 
As at 31 st March 2019 578 
As at 31 st March 2018 603 

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property : 

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

Rental income derived from investment 
property 524 524 
Compensation on foreclosure of Lease Deed 741 --
Direct operating expenses (including repairs 
and maintenance) generating rental income --* --* 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs 
and maintenance) that did not generate 
rental income -- --
Income arising from investment property 1,265 524 
before depreciation and indirect expenses 
Less: Depreciation 25 25 
Income from investment property 1,240 499 

Leasing arrangements 
The Company's investment property consists of industrial property situated at Chakan. Refer Note 34 Q). 
Fair Value 
The Company's investment property is at a location where active market is available for similar kind of properties. Hence, fair value is ascertained 
on the basis of market rates prevailing for similar properties in those location and consequently classified as a Level-2 valuation. 
Particulars As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 201 B 
Industrial Property 2,817 2, 735 
Reconciliation of fair value 

Particulars Industrial 
Property 

Balance as at 1st April 2018 2,735 
Change in fair value 82 
Balance as at 31st March 2019 2,817 

-·* Denotes amount less than ~ 50,0001· 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 



Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Technical Technical 
Particulars Software Know-how Know-how 

acquired acquired upto 
1st April 2003 

Gross carrying amount 
Balance as at 1st April 2018 4,519 4,625 822 
Additions 267 699 --
Disposals I Adjustments -- -- --
Balance as at 31st March 2019 4,786 5,324 822 
Accumulated amortization 
Balance as at 1st April 2018 2,466 3,295 822 
Amortization for the year 640 539 --
Disposals I Adjustments -- -- --
Balance as at 31st March 2019 3,106 3,834 822 
Carrying amounts (Net) 
As at 31 st March 2019 1,680 1,490 --
As at 31 st March 2018 2,053 1,330 --

Technical 
Know-how 
internally 
generated 

6,155 
6,986 

--
13,141 

2,172 
1,186 

--
3,358 

9,783 
3,983 

Note : Intangible Assets under development mainly comprises internally generated technical know-how. 

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS : INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT) 

A. Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (MDCI) 
(a) Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid) 

(i) 1 (31st March 2018: 1) Equity Share off 10/-, fully paid in 
MAN Trucks India Pvt. Ltd. (now known as MAN Truck & Bus India Pvt. ltd.) 

(ii) 50,000 (31st March 2018 : 50,000) Equity Share off 10/-, fully paid 
in Pithampur Auto Cluster limited 

(iii) 5 (31st March 2018: 5) Equity Shares off 50/- each, 
fully paid in Mittal Tower Premises Co-operative Society Limited 

(b) Quoted Equity Shares (fully paid) 
3,47,187 (31st March 2018 : 3,47,187) Equity Shares off 2/- each, 
fully paid in ICICI Bank limited 

Total MDCI Investments 
B. Investment at Cost 

Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid) 
(a) In Subsidiary 

8,80,200 (31st March 2018 : 8,80,200) Equity Shares off 1 0/· each, 
fully paid in Tempo Finance (West) Private limited 

(b) In Joint Venture 
1,33,62,000 (31st March 2018: Nil) Equity Shares off 10/· each, 
fully paid in Force MTU Power Systems Private limited 

Total 

16,121 
7,952 

--
24,073 

8,755 
2,365 

--
11,120 

12,953 
7,366 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

··* 

5 

.. • 

1,390 

1,395 

88 

1,336 

re 
FORCE 

Intangible 
Assets under 
development 

19,566 
8,870 
4,521 

23,915 

23,915 
19,566 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

--* 

5 

--· 

967 

972 

88 

--~1~,4=24~ 88 
Totallnvestments 2,819 1,060 
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 1 ,390 967 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 1 ,390 967 
Aggregate value of unquoted investments 1 ,429 93 
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 

The fair value ofthe investments in unquoted equity shares have been estimated using valuation technique which approximates its carrying value. 
For determination of fair values of quoted equity investments, the investments classified as MOC I. Refer Note 37. 
Investments in subsidiary and joint venture is accounted at cost in accordance with "lnd AS 27" Separate financial statements. 
--* Denotes amount less than~ 50,000/-
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS : LOANS AND ADVANCES 

58 

Non-current 

(a) Security Deposits 

(i) Considered Good - Unsecured 

(ii) Which have significant increase in Credit Risk (Doubtful) 

(b) Other Loans and Advances 

(i) Considered Good- Unsecured 

(ii) Which have significant increase in Credit Risk (Doubtful) 

Less : Allowances for expected credit losses 

Total Non-current Loans and Advances 

Current 

(a) Security Deposits 

Considered Good - Unsecured 

(b) Other Loans and Advances 

(i) Consider Good - Unsecured 

(ii) Credit impaired (Doubtful) 

Total Current Loans and Advances 

Total Loans and Advances 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

1,513 

3 

3 

3 

1,516 

45 

152 

197 

1,713 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

1,667 

4 

9 

13 

9 

4 

1,671 

50 

194 

244 
1,915 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

8. CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAX 

A. Statement of Profit or Loss 
(a) Current Tax 

(i) Current Income Tax charge 
(ii) Taxation in respect of earlier years 

(b) Deferred Tax 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income Tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss 

(c) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
Deferred Tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year 
(i) Re-measurements on defined benefit plan 
(ii) Quoted Equity Instruments 
Income Tu recognized in OCI 

B. Balance Sheet 

(a) Current Tu Assets 
Advance Income Tax 
Total Current Tu Assets (Net) 

(b) Current Tu Liabilities 

Provision for Income Tax 
Total Current Tu Liabilities (Net) 

(c) Deferred Tax 
(i) Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) 
(ii) Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL) 

Net Deferred Tu Assets I (Liabilities) 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

4,199 
(24) 

488 
4,663 

(39) 
(19) 
(58) 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

303 
303 

19,908 
(20,897) 

(989) 

re 
FORCE 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

4,362 
(548) 

1,514 
5,328 

{73) 

{73) 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

238 
238 

16,072 
(16,515) 

(443) 

Reconciliation oltu expense and the accounting profit for the year ended 31st March 2019 and 31st March 2018 : 

Accounting Profit Before Tax 
(a) Tax as per Income Tax Act 

(b) Tu Expense 

(i) Current Tax 

(ii) Deferred Tax 

(iii) Taxation in respect of eariier years 

Total Tu Expense 

(c) Difference (a) • (b) 

(d) Tu Reconciliation 

(i) Permanent Dis-allowances 

(ii) Allowances and accelerated deductions 

(iii) Change due to tax rate difference 

(iv) MAT credit 

(v) Taxation in respect of earlier years 

Total 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

19,381 

6,772 

4,199 

488 
(24) 

4,663 

2,109 

(167) 

2,267 

(15) 

24 

2,109 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

20,023 

6,930 

4,362 

1,514 

(548) 

5,328 

1,602 

(120) 

1,337 

138 

(301) 

548 

1,602 
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Deferred Tu Assets and LiabiiHies are as follows : 

Deferred Tu Assets I (Liabilities) in relation to : 
Deferred Tu relates Ia the following : DTL I (DTA) 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Provision for doubtful advances 
(c) Dis-allowance U/s 438 of the Income Tax Act 
(d) Prepaid taxes claimed U/s 438 
(e) MAT credit entitlement 
(f) Quoted Equity Instrument through Other Comprehensive Income 
(g) Unquoted Equity lnstrumentthrough Other Comprehensive Income 

Net Deterred Tu Assets I (Liabilities) 

Balance Sheet 
As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2019 March 2018 

(20,873) (16,509) 

52 97 
2,109 2,002 

(6) (6) 
17,746 13,971 

(19) 

2 2 
(989) (443) 

Significant components of net Deferred Tu Assets and LiabiiHiesfor the year ended 31st March 2019 are as follows : 

Movement in temporary diHerences 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Provision for doubtful advances 

Dis-allowance U/s 438 of the Income Tax Act 

Prepaid taxes claimed U/s 438 

MAT credit entitlement 

Quoted Equity Instrument through Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Unquoted Equity Instrument through 
Other Comprehensive Income 

60 

As at 
1st April 

2018 

(16,509) 

97 

2,002 

(6) 

13,971 

2 

(443) 

Recognized in 
profit or loss 

during 2018-19 

(4,364) 

(45) 

146 

3,775 

(488) 

Recognized in Other Asat 
Comprehensive 31st March 
Income during 2019 

2018-19 

(20,873) 

52 

(39) 2,109 

(6) 

17,746 

(19) (19) 

2 

(58) (989) 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

9. OTHER ASSETS 

Non-current 
(a) Capital Advances 

Considered Good - Unsecured 
(b) Prepaid Lease rentals 
Total Nan-current Other Assets 

Current 
(a) Advances recoverable in cash or kind 

(includes Govt. Incentives, Taxes, etc.) 

(i) Considered Good - Unsecured 
(ii) Doubtfu I 

Less : Provision for doubtful advances 

(b) Prepaid Lease rentals 

Total Current Other Assets 
Total Other Assets 

10. INVENTORIES (CURRENT) 

(a) Raw Materials and Components* 
(b) Finished Goods 
(c) 

(d) 

* 

Work-in-progress 
Stores and spares 
[Includes Goods in transit : ~ 3,902 Lakhs 
(31st March 2018: t' 7,562 Lakhs)] 

Total Inventories 

re 
FORCE 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

11,791 5,148 
77 81 

11,868 5,229 

9,092 15,807 
108 227 

9,200 16,034 
108 227 

9,092 15,807 

4 4 
9,096 15,811 

20,964 21,040 

As at31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

23,948 24,891 

17,008 15,757 
6,506 4,332 
2,894 2,730 

50,356 47,710 

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value during the year amounted to~ 203 Lakhs (31st March 2018: ~ 511 lakhs). The write-down are 
included in the cost of material consumed or changes in inventories offinished goods and work-in-progress. 

11. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CURRENT) 
As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2019 March 2018 
(i) Considered Good • Unsecured 16,652 24,191 
(ii) Which have significant increase in Credit Risk (Doubtful) 40 42 

16,692 24,233 

Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables 40 42 

Total Trade Receivables 16,652 24,191 

Trade Receivables are not credit impaired. 
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12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CURRENn 

(a) Cash and Cash equivalents 
(i) Balances with Banks 
(ii) Short term deposits with 

Banks - maturity less than three months 
(iii) Cheques I Drafts on hand 
(iv) Cash on hand 

(b) Other Bank balances 
(i) Unpaid Dividend Accounts 
(ii) Margin money and Security deposit 

Total Cash and Cash equivalents 

13. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT) 

62 

(a) Interest accrued on deposits with Banks 
(b) Corporate Deposits 

Total Other Financial Assets 

As at31st 
March 2019 

191 

33 
3 

227 

55 
38 
93 

320 

AI at31st 
March 2019 

700 
31,000 

31,700 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

3,597 
354 

6 
4 

3,961 

55 
77 

132 

4,093 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

131 
20,000 

20,131 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

14. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised 
2,00,00,000 (31st March 2018: 2,00,00,000) Equity Shares of f10/- each 
Issued 
1,32,13,802 (31st March 2018 : 1,32,13,802) Equity Shares of f1 0/- each 
Subscribed and Paid-up 
1,31,76,262 (31st March 2018: 1,31 ,76,262) 
Equity Shares of f1 0/- each fully paid up 
[of the above 2,00,918 (31st March 2018: 2,00,918) Equity Shares are allotted as 
fully paid shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash 
and 57,29,934 (31st March 2018: 57,29,934) Equity Shares are allotted as fully 
paid Bonus Shares by capitalisation of reserves] 
[These allotments were made before ea~ier financial year and not in the period of 
five years preceding 31st March 2019 or 31 st March 2018]. 
Add: Amount paid for forfeited Shares 
Total Equity Share Capital 

Aul31st 
March 2019 

2,000 

1,321 

1,318 

--* 
1,318 

re 
FORCE 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

2,000 

1,321 

1,318 

--* 
1,318 

Note: Offer on Rights basis for 17,932 (31st March 2018 :17,932) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each is kept in abeyance as per the provisions of 
Section 126 of the Act. 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period (Equity Shares of ~ 1 0/- each) : 

(b) 

Particulars As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 

Number Amount Number Amount 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,31 '76,262 1,318 1,31 '76,262 1,318 

Issued/ Reduction during the year 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,31,76,262 1,318 1,31 '76,262 1,318 

Terms I rights anached to Equity Shares 

The Company has issued equity shares. All equity shares issued rank pari-passu in respect of distribution of dividend and repayment of capital. 
1 ,30,32,914 Equity Shares are quoted equity shares with no restriction on transfer of shares. 27,600 Equity Shares are 'A' equity shares, which 
are transferrable only to permanent employees of the Company. 1,15,7 48 Equity Shares are Second 'A' equity shares which are transferrable to 
permanent employees, who have put in five years of service with the Company. 

(c) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

(d) Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiarieS/associates 

The Company became a subsidiary of Jaya Hind Industries Limited, w.e.f. 1st January 2018 {being appointed date) consequent to the Order 
dated 24th October 2018 of the Mumbai Bench of National Company Law Tribunal approving the scheme of amalgamation. Jaya Hind 
Industries Limited holds 57.38% {75,59,928) shares in the Company. 

(e) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares 

Name of Shareholder As at 31st March 2019 As at 31 st March 2018 

No. ot Shares %of No. of Shares %of 
oi~O/- each Holding of ~ 1 0/- each Holding 

fully paid fully paid 

Jaya Hind Industries Limited 75,59,928 57.38% 10,909 0.08% 

Jaya Hind Investments Private Limited 74,92,244 56.86% 

--* Denotes amount less than f 50,000/-
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15. OTHER EQUITY 

I. Reserves and Surplus 
(a) Securities Premium 
(b) General Reserve 
(c) Retained Earnings 

(i) Opening balance 
(ii) Net profit for the year 
(iii) Comprehensive income for the year 

Adjustments 
(i) Equity Dividend 
(ii) Tax on Equity Dividend 

Closing Balance 

II. Equity instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 
Opening Balance 
Adjustments 
FVTOCI Equity Investments - change in fair value 
Closing Balance 

Tolal Other Equity 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

5,920 5,920 
34,629 34,629 

1,37,074 1,23,828 
14,718 14,695 

73 137 
1,51,865 1,38,660 

1,318 1,318 
270 268 

1,588 1,586 
1,50,277 1,37,074 

938 846 

405 92 
1,343 938 

1,92,169 1,78,561 

• Securities Premium : The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognized in Securities Premium Account. 
• General Reserve : General Reserve comprises of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. The reserve can be 

distributed I utilised by the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013. 
• Retained Earnings : Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date. 

16. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: BORROWINGS 

Non-currant 
Term Loan from Banks (Secured) 
leu : Current maturities of Non-current 

Borrowings disclosed under the head 
Current Other Financial Liabilities 
(Refer Note 17) 

Tolal Non-current Borrowings 
{Refer Note 38 for maturity pattern of Borrowings) 
Current 
Working Capital Loan from Banks (Secured) 
Tolal Current Borrowings 
Tolal Borrowings 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

23,500 
2,937 

20,563 

5,087 
5,087 

25,650 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

• Term Loan is secured by hypothecation, by way of Exclusive Charge on specified Plant and Machinery, being movable properties, secured 
as a continuing security for the repayment ofTerm Loan together with interest. 

• The term loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments and the repayment schedule to be commenced in November 2019, after 
a moratorium of 12 months. 

• Working Capital loans are secured by hypothecation of Company's stock of raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, consumable 
stores, spares, bills receivable and book debts, both present and future. The Fund Based Limits are payable on demand to the Banks. 
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17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Non-current 
Security Deposits 
Total Non-current Other Financial Liabilities 
Current 

(a) Current maturities of Non-current Borrowings 
(Refer Note 16) 

(i) Term Loan from Banks (Secured) 
(ii) Deposits matured but not claimed 

(b) Interest on Borrowings 
(i} Accrued and due on Term Loan 
(ii} Accrued but not due 

(c) Unclaimed Dividend 
(d) Creditors for Capital Goods 
(e) Security Deposits 
(f) Other payables 
Total Current Other Financial Liabilities 

Total Other Financial Liabilities 

18. PROVISIONS 

Non-current 
(a) Provision for Employee benefits (Refer Note 36) 
(b) Provision for Product Warranties 
Total Non-current Provisions 

Current 
(a) Provision for Employee benefits (Refer Note 36) 
(b) Provision for Product Warranties 
Total Current Provisions 
Total Provisions 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

2,937 
3 

169 

··* 
55 

1,456 
242 
398 

5,260 

5,260 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

3,014 

69 
3,083 

1,813 

374 
2,187 

5,270 

The provision for warranties is based on ttle estimates made from the technical evaluation and historical data. 

--* Denotes amount less than f 50,000/-
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re 
FORCE 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

396 
396 

13 

--* 
55 

2,263 
347 
400 

3,078 
3,474 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

2,616 

82 
2,698 

1,970 

506 
2,476 

5,174 
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Movement In Product Warranties 

Product Warranties 
(a) Opening balance 
(b) Additional provision made during the year 
(C) Amount paid during the year 

(d) Amount written back 

Closing balance 

19. TRADE PAYABLES 

(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises 

(b) Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small enterprises 

Total Trade Payables 

20. OTHER LIABILITIES 

Non-current 
Service Coupon Liability 
Total Non-current Other LiabiiHies 

Current 
(a} Advances and deposits against order 
(b) Statutory dues 
(c) Service Coupon Liability 
Total Current Other Liabilities 
Total Other Liabilities 

Movement in Service Coupon Liability 

Free Service Coupons 
(a} Opening balance 
(b) Additional provisions made during the year 
(c) Amount paid during the year 

(d) Amount written back 

Closing balance 

66 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

588 780 
345 409 

(257) (250) 
(233) (351) 

443 588 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

71 78 

39,459 56,409 

39,530 56,487 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

157 189 
157 189 

7,066 3,329 
5,756 2,197 

425 493 
13,247 6,019 
13,404 6,208 

As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

682 869 
482 539 

(500) (463) 
(82) (263) 

582 682 
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21. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

(a) Sale of Products 
(b) Other Operating Revenue 

Q) Service charges 
Qi) Others 

Total Revenue from Operations 

re 
FORCE 

For lha year andad For the year ended 
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

3,62,001 3,49,319 

539 474 
2,670 2,549 

3,65,210 3,52,342 
Post the applicability of Goods and Services Tax (GST}, with effect from 1st July 2017, Revenue from operations are required to be disclosed net 
of GST. Sales before this date are disclosed as gross of excise duty. Accordingly, the revenue from operations for the year ended 31st March 2019 
is not comparable with the previous year. 

22. OTHER INCOME 

(a) Interest income 
(b) Dividend income from Equity Investments designated at MOCI 
(c) Gain on Exchange fluctuation 
(d) Industrial Promotion Incentive (Refer Note 43) 
(e) Rental income 
(f) Profit on sale of assets 
(g) Others 
Total Other Income 

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS 

Opening Stock 
(a) Finished Goods 
(b) Worl<:-in- progress 

Closing Stock 
(a) Finished Goods 
(b) Worl<:-in- progress 

Total Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-progress 

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus 
(b) Contribution to Provident, Other Funds and Schemes 
(c) Staff welfare expenses 
Total Employee Benefits Expense 

25. FINANCE COSTS 

(a) Interest expense 
(b) Other borrowing costs 
(c) Net interest cost on net defined benefit obligations 
Total Finance Costs 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

2,675 
5 

1,132 
2,077 

524 
12 

1,737 
8,162 

For lha year andad 
31st March 2019 

15,757 
4,332 

20,089 

17,008 
6,506 

23,514 
(3,425) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

38,035 
2,578 
1,200 

41,813 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

1,402 
50 
81 

1,533 

For the year ended 
31 st March 2018 

3,053 
8 

1,830 
524 
245 

1,212 
6,872 

For the year ended 
31 st March 2018 

10,699 
4,258 

14,957 

15,757 
4,332 

20,089 
(5,132) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2018 

35,002 
2,381 
1,272 

38,655 

For the year ended 
31st March 2018 

526 
46 
95 

667 
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26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZA110N EXPENSE 

(a) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Amonization of Intangible Assets 
(c) Depreciation on Investment Propeny 
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense 

27. OTHER EXPENSES 

(a) Consumption of Stores and Spares 
(b) Fabrication and Processing Charges 
(c) Power and Fuel 
(d) Forwarding Charges 
(e) Rent 
(f) Rates and Taxes 
(g) Insurance 
(h) Repairs and Maintenance: 

(i) Plant and Machinery 
(ii) Buildings 
(iii) Others 

(i) Publicity and Sales promotion 
0) Payments to Audnors (Refer details below) 
(k) Commission to Non-executive Director 
(I) Loss on Exchange Fluctuation (Net) 
(m) Donation 

[Includes donation under Section 182 of the Companies Act, 2013 : 
f 420 Lakhs (31st March 2018 : f Nil) 

(n) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 44) 
(o) Bad Debts I Provision for doubtful Advances & Receivables 
(p) Miscellaneous Expenses 
Total Other Expenses 

Details of payments to Auditors 

(a) Audit Fees 
(b) Tax Audn Fees 
(c) Limited review and Certification work 
(d) Reimbursement of expenses 
Total payments to Auditors 

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

(a} Profn attributable to Equity Shareholders 
(b) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as Denominator 
(c) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share of nominal value off 10 each : f 

29. EXPENDITURE CAPITALIZED 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

12,702 11,433 
2,365 1,468 

25 25 
15,092 12,926 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

7,805 7,635 
770 947 

4,886 4,823 
3,273 2,995 

189 158 
170 401 
552 570 

2,137 2,115 
388 572 
185 176 

1,837 1,897 
33 26 

100 
818 

423 16 

460 410 
71 

7,786 7,483 
30,894 31,213 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

22 20 
1 1 
8 4 
2 1 

33 26 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 

14,718 14,695 
1,31,76,262 1 ,31 '76,262 

111.70 111.53 

Amount capitalized represents expenditure allocated out of employee cost and other expenses, incurred in connection with capnal items and various 
product development projects undertaken by the Company for the introduction of new products as well as development of engine and existing 
product variants. 
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

(a) Contingent Liabilities 
Claims againstthe Company not acknowledged as debts 
(i} Taxes and Duties 
(ii} Others (Court cases pending) 

(b) Commnments 
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execLned 
on capital account and not provided for 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

2,765 
3,772 

23,206 

re 
FORCE 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

3,292 
3,581 

12,276 

(c) As reported earlier, a foreign company has initiated legal proceedings in a foreign court, in respect of notional and unfounded claims for 
damages, withoLn there being any enforceable agreement, relating to export business. The Company has obtained opinion from a Senior 
Counsel, in respect of these alleged claims against the Company. The Company has been advised that such notional/ unfounded claims are 
not as per the applicable law nor these claims, if any, can be enforced in the Court of Law in India. This information is being disclosed as per the 
provisions of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, only to indicate the alleged claims made against the Company and the developments in 
respect thereof. Moreover, considering the period lapsed, since the conclusion of the said legal proceedings, the Company does not expect any 
impact of this litigation on its financial position. 

(d) On 28th February 2019, the Supreme Court has passed a judgment on inclusion of certain allowances in basic wages for the purposes of 
deduction and contribution to the Employees Provident and Pension funds. Due to ambiguity and the divergent views on the application of the 
said judgment, the Company has not made any provision. The Company will take necessary steps, on receiving further clarity, on the subject. 

31. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE REQUIREMENT OF SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 
As on 31st March 2019, the Company has not received any intimation, except in few cases, as to the status as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprises 
from suppliers of the Company along with a copy of the Memorandum, filed by the said suppliers, as per the provisions of Section 8 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the Act). There is no liability towards interest on delayed payments under "The Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" during the year. There is also no amount of outstanding interest in this regard, brought forward 
from previous years. The proceedings initiated by one of the suppliers, claiming to be a small scale enterprise, as per the provisions of Section 18 of 
the Act, culminated into an award of claim forf157 Lakhs with interest. The Company has not accepted the said liability. The Company has a major 
counter-claim againstthe said supplier amounting to aboutf906 Lakhs, which being unearned income, is not accounted. The award is challenged 
by the Company, as per the provisions of the Act and proceedings are pending before the Hon'ble District Judge, Pune, and before the Hon'ble High 
Court of Judicature at Bombay. 

32. FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES 
The amount of net exchange differences included in the Profit I Loss for the year on Revenue account is f 1 , 111 Lakhs Credit (31 st March 
201 8: f 838 Lakhs Debit) and on Capital account is f 21 Lakhs Credit (31st March 2018: f 20 Lakhs Credit}. 

33. EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
The Company's expenditure on its research and development activity during the year under report was as follows: 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

(a} Capital Expenditure 14,069 
(b) Revenue Expenditure 6,372 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

15,792 
4,176 

(The above expenditure is grouped with other non-R&D expenditure under various heads of Capital and Revenue expenditures.) 
As per the Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS 38) - Intangible Assets, the Company has recognized Intangible Assets, arising oLn of in-house 
Research and Development activities of the Company. 
As the development activity, of few projects, is continued, these assets are considered as Capital Work-in-progress, and will be amortized over the 
period of their life, after the completion of the development phase. 

34. LEASES 
Oparating Leases 
As a Lessor 
(i) Industrial Shed at Chakan 

The Company had entered into a Lease Agreement for industrial shed, at Chakan, Pune, for a period of 1 0 years. The Lessee is entitled to 
terminate the Lease Agreement after the expiry of 60 months from the date of agreement. On termination of lease, due to exercise of the 
option by the Lessee, at the end of 60 months, the Lessee shall be liable to pay a sum off 200 Lakhs. Agreement includes clause to enable 
upward revision of rental charges according to prevailing market conditions. The Lessor is also entitled to terminate the Lease Agreement, if 
the Lessee detauits the terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement. The lease income has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 
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The Lessor and the Lessee have decided mutually to foreclose the Lease Deed and accordingly the Lessee has vacated the leased 
premises peacefully in March 2019 on the terms and conditions specified in the Memorandum for Rlreclosure of Lease Agreement. 
The compensation on foreclosure of lease deed and the lease income have been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(II) Freehold Land 
Out of the freehold land at Alwnli, Pune; 
2700 sq. rntrs. (cost ~1,37 4) of land is given on lease to Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited for 99 years, 
w. e.f. 1 st August 1989. Lease rentals are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
19,000 sq. mtrs. (cost~9,669) of land is given on lease to Navalmal Firodia Memorial Hospital Trust for25 years, w.e.f. 12th August 
2014. Lease rentals are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
These land given on lease are not considered as investment property considering the insignifcant area and cost of that with respect 
to total area and cost offreehold land atAkurdi, Pun e. 

As a Lessee 
Laasehold land 
The Company has entered into Lease Agreementfor Industrial Land at Pithampur in Madhya Pradesh for a period of 30 years. The Company, being a 
Lessee, may surrenderthe leased area after giving Lessor 3 months notice period in writing. The lease premium is not refundable to Company in case 
of early termination of agreement by the Company. The Lessor is also entitled to terminate the Lease Agreement, if the Lessee defaults the terms and 
conditions of the Lease Agreement. The lease expense has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

70 

I. Names or the related party and nature of relationship where control exists : 
Name of the Related Party 
(a) Jaya Hind Industries Limited* 
(b) Tempo Finance (West) Private Limited 
(c) Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited** 

Nature of relationship 
Holding Company 
Subsidiary Company 
Joint Venture Company 

II. List of other related parties with whom there are transactions in the current year 
Name of the Related Party Nature of relationship 
A. Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

(a) Abhaykumar Firodia Chairman 
(b) Prasan Firodia Managing Director 
(c) Sudhir Mehta Director 
(d) Pratap Pawar Director 
(e) S. Padmanabhan Director 
(f) Nitin Desai Director 
(g) Dr. Indira Parikh Director 
(h) Arun Sheth Director 
(i) Arvind Mahajan Director 
0) Vinay Kothari Director 
(k) Yeshwant Deosthalee Director 
(I) Lt. Gen. (Retd.) Dr. D. B. Shekatkar Director 
(m) Anant J. Talaulicar Director 
(n) Prashant V. lnamdar Executive Director (Operations) 
(o) Sanjay Kumar Bohra Chief Financial Officer 

B. Other Entities 
(a) Jaya Hind Montupet Private Limited Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
(b) Pinnacle Industries Limited Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
(c) Kider (India) Private Limited Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
(d) Bajaj Tempo Limited Provident Fund Post employment benefit Trust 
(e) Sakal Media Private Limited Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
(f) Amar Prerana Trust Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
(g) Navalmal Firodia Memorial Hospital Trust Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
(h) Antardisha Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
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Ill. Transactions with Rellled Parties 
Name of Related Party 2018-19 

A. Holding Company 
Jaya Hind Industries Limited • 
(a) Purchase of Capital Goods 
(b) Purchase of Raw Materials, Components 

& Others 
(c) Sundry Sales 
(d) Service Charges recovered 
(e) Processing Charges recovered 
(f) Dividend paid 

B. Key Management Personnel 
(a) Remuneration 

(i) Short term employee benefits 
Qncluding Commission) 

(ii) Post employment benefits 
(iii) Other long term benefits 

(b) Others 
(i) Dividend paid 
(ii) Sitting fees 
(iii) Commission 

C. Other Entities 

Amount of 
transaction 

during the year 

144 
7,760 

516 
95 
44 
1 

753 

34 
42 

49 
34 

(a) Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited •• 
(i) Expenses recovered 
(ii) Contribution to Equity 

(b) Jaya Hind Investments Private Limited ••• 
Dividend paid 

(c) Jaya Hind Montupet Private Limited 
(i) Purchase of Raw Material, 

Components & Others 
(ii) Service Charges recovered 
(iii) Processing Charges recovered 
(iv) Sundry sales 

(d) Pinnacle Industries Limited 
(i) Purchase of Capital Goods 
(ii) Purchase of Raw Materials, 

Components & Others 
(iii) Sundry Sales 

(e) Kider (India) Private Limited 
Purchase of Capital Goods 

(f) Baiai Tempo Limited Provident Fund 
Contribution to Provident Fund 

(g) Sakal Media Private Limited 
Publicity Charges 

(h) Amar Prerana T111st 
(i) Training Facility Utilisation 
(ii) Sundry Sales 

(i) Navalmal Firodia Memorial Hospital Trust 
Contribution towards Corporate Social 
Responsibility 

(j) Antardisha 

956 
1,336 

749 

83 

34 
2 
2 

418 
14,698 

69 

4 

683 

20 

32 
1 

460 

Professional Fees 26 

Balance as at 
31st March 2019 

ReceiVables I 
(Payables) 

(191) 
307 

(363) 

33 

(6) 
29 

(405) 
64 

(2) 

(58) 

re 
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2017-18 
Amount of 
transaction 

during the year 

8,216 

344 
64 
62 
1 

701 

35 
46 

49 
36 

100 

749 

346 

21 

--· 
115 

15,096 

86 

4 

604 

20 

296 

381 

Balance as at 
31st March 201 8 

Receivables I 
{Payables) 

(545) 
4,668 

(348) 

(100) 

(65) 
11 

(611) 
965 

(53) 

(7) 

* With effect from 1st January 2018 (being appointed date} consequent the Order dated 24th October 2018 of the Mumbai Bench of 
National Company Law Tribunal approving the scheme of amalgamation. 

** With effectfrom 7th August 2018. 
*** Ceased to be a Holding Company on 1 stJanuary 2018 --* Denotesamountlessthanf50,000/-

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 71 



® 
FORCE 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated} 

36. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

72 

A. Defined Contribution Plans 
An amount off 667 Lakhs (31st March 2018 :f 660 Lakhs) is recognized as an expense and included in "Employee Benefits Expense" in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

B. Defined Benefit Plans 
(a) The amounts recognized In Balance Sheet are as follows 

--~A~s-m~3~1~m~M~a-rc~h~20~1=9--------A~s-a~t~31~~~M~a-rc~h~2~01~8~--

Grmulty Plan Provident Fund* 
(Funded) (Funded) 

(i) Amount to be recognized in Balance Sheet 
Present value of defined benefit obligation 5,971 379 
Less : Fair value of plan assets 4,823 1,291 
Amount to be recognized as Liability or (Asset) 1,148 (912) 

(ii) Amount to be reflected in Balance Sheet 
Liabil~ies 1,148 (912) 
Assets 
Net Liability I (Assets) 1,148 (912) 
* Not considered in the books, being excess of plan assets over defined benem obligation. 

(b) The amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows: 

Gratuity Plan 
(Funded) 

5,318 
3,949 
1,369 

1,369 

1,369 

Provident Fund* 
(Funded) 

147 
1,133 

{986) 

(986) 

{986) 

--~As~atc-=3~1s--,-t=M~ar---,cho-2=o,-,-1 g=---------,A~s-at~3,-,-1 ~~M~arc---ch---c2=o"""'"'18,----

(i) Employee Benefits Expense 
Current service cost 

(II) AcqulsHion (Gain) I Loss 
(iii) Finance com 

Net lntere~ (Income) I Expenses 
Net periodic benefit cost recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss -

Gratuity Plan Provident Fund* 
(Funded) (Funded) 

458 
27 

81 
566 

19 

(77) 
(58) 

* Not considered in the books, being excess of plan assets over defined benefit obligation. 

Gratuity Plan 
(Funded) 

411 

95 
506 

Provident Fund* 
(Funded) 

62 

(44) 
18 

(c) The amounts recognized in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
~--------~~--------------------------

As m 31m March 201 9 As at 31st March 2018 
Grmuity Plan Provident Fund* Gratuity Plan Provident Fund* 

(Funded) (Funded) (Funded) (Funded) 

0) Opening amount recognized in OCI outside 
Statement of Profit and Loss 

Oi) Re-measurements for the year - obligation (71) 201 (191) (434) 
(Gain) I Loss 

Oii) Re-measurements for the year - plan assets (40) (69) (19) 51 
(Gain) I Loss 

(w) Total re-measurements cost/ (credit) for the year (111) 132 (210) (383) 
recognized in OCI 

(v) Less : Accumulated balances transferred to retained (111) 132 (210) (383) 
earnings 

Closing balances [re-measurements (Gain)ILoss 
recognized in OCI) 
* Not considered in the books, being excess of plan assets over defined benet~ obligation. 
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(d) Tlle changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof 
are as follows: 

(e) 

(f) 

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 
Gratuity Plan Provident Fund Gratuity Plan Provident Fund 

(Funded) (Funded) (Funded) (Funded) 
(i) Present value of obligation as at the 5,318 147 5,109 484 

beginning of the year 
(ii) Acquisition adjustment 291 
(iii) Transfer in I (out) 2 
(iv) Interest expenses 402 12 354 35 
(v) Past service cost 
(vi) Current service cost 458 19 411 62 
(vii) Curtailment cost I (cred~) 
(viii) Settlement cost I (credit) 
(ix) Benems paid (427) (367) 
(x) Re-measurements on obligation - (Gain) I Loss (71) 201 (191) (434) 
Present value of obligation as at the end ol the year 5,971 379 5,318 147 
Changes in the fair value of plan assets representing reconciliation ol the opening and closing balances thereof are as follows : 

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 
Gratuity Plan Provident Fund Gratuity Plan Provident Fund 

(Funded) (Funded) (Funded) (Funded) 

(i) Fair value of the plan assets as at beginning 3,949 1,133 3,437 1,105 
of the year 

(ii) Acquisition adjustment 264 
(iii) Transfer in I (out} 2 
(iv) Interest income 321 89 259 79 
(v} Contributions 682 603 
(vi) Mortality Charges and Taxes {7) (4) 
(vii) Benefits paid {426) (367) 
(viii) Amount paid on settlement 
(ix) Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognized 40 69 19 (51) 

in Interest Income - Gain I (Loss} 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 4,823 1,291 3,949 1,133 
Actual return on plan assets 362 278 

Net interest (Income) I Expenses 
As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 

Gratuity Plan Provident Fund Gratuity Plan Provident Fund 
(Funded) (Funded) (Funded) (Funded) 

(i) Interest { income) I expense - obligation 402 12 354 35 
(ii) Interest (income) I expense - plan assets {321) (89) (259) {79) 
Net interest (income) I expense for the year 81 (77) 95 (44) 

Basis used to determine the overall expected return : 
The net interest approach effectively assumes an expected rate of return on plan assets equal to the beginning of the year discount rate. 
Expected return of 7.80% has been used for the valuation purpose. 
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(g) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages) 

Gratuity As at 31st As at 31st 
March2019 March 2018 

(i) Discount rate 7.60% 7.80% 
(ii) Expected return on plan assets 7.80% 7.20% 
(iii) Salary growth rate * 10% 10% 
(iV) Attr~ion rate - for Bargainable Staff 10% 10% 
(V) Attr~ion rate - others 2% 2% 

* The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

Provident Fund As at 31st As at 31st 
March2019 March 2018 

(i) Discount rate 7.60% 7.80% 
(ii) Interest rate 8.65% 8.55% 
(iii) Yield spread 0.50% 0.50% 
(iv) Attr~ion rate - for Bargainable Staff 10% 10% 
(v) Attrition rate - others 2% 2% 

Sensitivity analysis 
Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present Value of 
Obligation (PVO}. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying (increasing/ decreasing) one parameter by 100 basis points (1 %} 

(h) Change in assumption 

(i) Discount rate 
Increase by 1% 
Decrease by 1% 
Increase by 0.5% 
Decrease by 0.5% 

(ii) Salary increase rate 
Increase by 1% 
Decrease by 1% 

(iii) Withdrawal rate 
Increase by 1% 
Decrease by 1% 

(iv) Expected future interest rate of Provident Fund 
Increase by 1% 
Decrease by 1% 
Increase by 0.5% 
Decrease by 0.5% 

As at 31st March 2019 
Gratuity 

5,614 
6,371 

6,303 
5,668 

5,929 
6,018 

Provident Fund 

114 
657 

644 
114 

As at 31st March 2018 
Gratuity Provident Fund 

5,006 
5,666 

382 

5,607 
5,053 

5,284 
5,354 

374 
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUES 
Accounting classifications and fair values 
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with it's classification. 

Carrying Value Fair Value 
31st March 31 st March 31st March 31 st March 

2019 2018 2019 2018 
Financial Assets 
(a) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive 

Income (MOCI) 
Equity Investments 

(b) Amortized cost 
Trade Receivables 
Loans - Security Deposits 
Other Financial Assets 
Cash and Cash equivalents 
Other Bank Balances 

Total 
Financial Liabilities 
Amortized cost 
Non-current Borrowings 
Current Borrowing 
Trade Payable 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Total 

1,395 

16,652 
1,713 

31,700 
227 
93 

51,780 

20,563 
5,087 

39,530 
5,260 

70,440 
The following methods and assumptions ware used to estimate the fair values : 

972 1,395 972 

24,191 16,652 24,191 
1,915 1,713 1,915 

20,131 31,700 20,131 
3,961 227 3,961 

132 93 132 
51,302 51,780 51,302 

20,563 
5,087 

56,487 39,530 56,487 
3,474 5,260 3,474 

59,961 70,440 59,961 

The fair values of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents and Other Bank Balances, are reasonable approximation of fair 
value due to the short-term maturities ofthese instruments. 
Investment in subsidiary and joint venture are accounted at cost in accordance with lnd AS 27 Separate financial statements, accordingly 
investment in subsidiary is not fair valued. 
Allowance for credit loss on Trade Receivables, is taken into account, on the basis of credit worthiness ofthe customer individual. 
Borrowings represents Working Capital Loan and Term Loan from Banks obtained at market rates of interest available for debt on similar terms, 
credit risk and remaining maturities. As of reporting date, the fair value of borrowings is measured at amortized cost, which is reasonable 
approximation of fair value. 
Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques used 
(a) Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value 

Financial Assets 
MOCI Investments - Quoted 
MOCI Investments- Unquoted 
Total 

Level 31st March 

Level 1 
Level3 

2019 

1,390 
5 

1,395 
(b) Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at amortized cost for which 

fair value Is disclosed 
Level 31st March 

2019 
Financial Assets measured at 
amortized cost 
Loans - Security Deposits Level2 1,713 
Other Financial Assets Level2 31,700 
Total 33,413 
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967 
5 

972 

31st March 
2018 

1,915 
20,131 
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(c) Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost 
Level 31st March 

2019 
Non-current Borrowings Level 2 20,563 
Current Borrowings Level 2 5,087 

31st March 
2018 

Other Financial Liabilities Level2 5,260 3.474 
Total 30,910 3,474 
The fair values disclosed in level 2 category are calculated using discounted cash flow method. These fair values reasonably approximate 
to the carrying values of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost. 
During the year ended 31st March 2019, there were no transfers between level1 and level2 fair value measurements and no transfers into 
and out of level3 fair value measurement. 

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
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Financial Risk Management Policy and Objectives 
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of Borrowings, Trade and Other Payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to 
finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include Trade and Other Receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents and 
Deposits, which are derived directly from its operations. 
The Company is exposed to Market risk, Credit risk and Liquidity risk. 
The management of these risks is overseen by the senior management which is advised by a team of senior officials. The Risk Management team 
oversees the policies and systems, on a regular basis to reflect changes in market conditions and Company's activities and reviews the adequacy of 
the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management 
Credit risk Cash and Cash equivalents, Trade Aging analysis Credit Diversification of Bank Deposits, Credit 

Receivables, Financial Assets ratings [Refer Note 38 (a)] Limits and Letters of Credit, Sales on cash 
measured at amortized cost basis 

Liquidity risk Borrowings and Other Financial Cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines and 
Liabilities [Refer Note 38 (b)] borrowing facilities 

Market risk- Recognized Financial Assets and Cash flow forecasting Company's net forex exposure is covered 
foreign exchange Liabilities not denominated in Indian Sensitivity analysis by natural hedge 

Rupee (Refer Note 39) 
Market risk- Loans and advances on Cash Credit Cash flow forecasting & Company uses a mix of interest rate 
interest rate Account and Term Loan from Bank Sensitivity analysis sensitive financial instruments to manage 

the liquidity and fund requirements 
As the borrowings were at fixed rate of interest, the Company is not exposed to interest rate risk. 

Market risk- Investments in Equity Securities Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification 
equity prices [Refer Note 38 (c)] 
Commodity risk Procurement of steel and other Budgeted consumption & its A well controlled review process is in 

metals impact on finished product place for analyzing the price trend and 
market intelligence and accordingly the 
procurement strategy is adopted. The 
overall exposure is not material. 

(a) Credit Risk 
The table summarises aging of Trade Receivable: 

Not due Less than 6 Months More than 6 Months Total 
As at 31st March 2019 
Gross Carrying Amount 12,502 3,771 419 16,692 
Allowance for doubtful debts .. .. (40} (40) 
Net 12,502 3,771 379 16,652 
As at 31st March 2018 
Gross Carrying Amount 20,024 3,422 787 24,233 
Allowance for doubtful debts -- -- (42} (42) 
Net 20,024 3,422 745 24,191 

The Cash and Cash equivalents are held with Banks and financial institutions counter-parties with an external rating of "A.A.N. Thus, the 
Company considers that its Cash and Cash equivalents have low credit risks. 
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(b) Liquidity Risk 

re 
FORCE 

The table summarises the maturity profile of Company's financial liabilities based on contractual un-discounted payments 

As at 31st March 201 9 
Carrying On Less than More than Total 
amount Demand 6 months 6 months 

Interest bearing borrowings 28,587 5,087 -- 23,500 28,587 
Other Financial Liabilities 2,323 227 1,854 242 2,323 
Trade and Other Payable 39,530 -- 39,530 -- 39,530 

As at 31st March 2018 
Carrying On Less than More than Total 
amount Demand 6 months 6 months 

Interest bearing borrowings -- -- -- -- --
Other Financial Liabilities 3,474 68 2,663 743 3,474 
Trade and Other Payable 56,487 -- 56,487 -- 56,487 

(c) Market Risk: Equity Price Risk 
Atthe reporting date, the exposure to unquoted equity securities atfair value was~ 5 Lakhs. 
At the reporting date, the exposure to quoted equity securities at fair value was~ 1 ,390 Lakhs. A decrease I increase of 15% on the Bank Nifty 
mar1<et index could have an impact of approximately~ 122 Lakhs on the OCI or equity attributable to the Company. 
These changes would not have an effect on profit or loss. 

39. FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 
Currency Net exposure in foreign currency Net exposure in INR 

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 March 2019 March 2018 

USD (2,19,718) 6,46,382 (151) 423 
EUR 1 ,04,59, 191 2,21,76,249 8,229 17,938 
JPY 25,53,480 10,25,13,190 16 635 
GBP -- 11,983 -· 11 

Currency Sensitivity Impact on profit Impact on profit 
% {strengthening)* (weakening)* 

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 March 2019 March 2018 

USD 5% 8 (21) (8) 21 
EUR 5% (411) (897) 411 897 
JPY 5% (1) (32) 1 32 
GBP 5% -- (1) -- 1 

(404) (951) 404 951 

(*Strengthening/ weakening of currency) 

40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
The Company's capital includes issued Equity Capital, Share Premium and Free Reserves. 
The Company's policy is to meet the financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings by maintaining a strong capital base. The 
Company aims to sustain investor, creditor and market confidence so as to be able to leverage such confidence for future capitaVdebt requirements. 
Management monitors the return on capital earned, the capital I debt requirements for various business plans under consideration and determines 
the level of dividends to equity shareholders. 
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No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the financial years ended on 31st March 2019 
and 31st March 2018. 

Particulars 
Total Shareholder's Equity as reported in Balance Sheet 
Net Debt: 

Short-term debt 
Long-term debt (including current portion of long term debt) 

Gross Debt: 
Less : Cash and Bank Balances 

Net Debt/ (Net Cash and Bank balances) 

41. DIVIDEND 

As at 31st March 2019 
1,93,487 

5,087 
23,500 
28,587 

320 
28,267 

As at 31st March 2018 
1,79,879 

4,093 
(4,093) 

The Board of Directors has recommended payment of Dividend of~ 0/- per fully paid Equity Shares (31st March 2018 : f1 0/-). This proposed 
dividend is subject to the approval of Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company to pay distribution tax off 271 Lakhs on 
proposed dividend. This dividend and tax on that is not recognized in the books of account at the end ofthe reporting period. 

42. TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
All amounts which became due, for transfer to the credit of Investor Education and Protection Fund, as of 31st March 2019, have been transferred to 
that fund, except a sum off0.60 Lakh (31 stMarch 2018 :f 0.60 Lakh) being amountof5 (31st March 2018: 5)fixeddeposits and interestthereon 
amounting to f 0.25 Lakh (31st March 2018 : f 0.25 Lakh). In view ofthe directives received from the Government Authorities, these amounts are 
not transferred to the Fund, being involved in an investigation. 

43. During the year under report, on the basis of the eligibility and method of availing various incentives, granted by the Government of Madhya Pradesh, 
as per the Industrial Promotion Policy, the Company has recognized asumoff2,077 Lakhs (31st March 2018: f 1,830 Lakhs) in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as "Industrial Investment Incentives". These incentives are accounted on accrual basis. These incentives are available as per the 
Industrial Promotion Policy of the Government of Madhya Pradesh, based on the investment made by the Company, in eligible assets, for eligible 
products, in the State of Madhya Pradesh. These incentives are monetary incentives. 

44. The Company has spentf 460 Lakhs (31st March 2018: f 410 Lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), which is shown in "Other 
Expenses" (Note No.27 (n)] to the Notes to Financial Statements. 

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: f 456 Lakhs. 
(b) Amount spent during the year on: 

Description In Cash 

Project of establishing modern, sophisticated hospital 460 
Total 460 

Yet to be paid Total 
in Cash 

-- 460 

-- 460 

45. During the year under report, the Company acquired certain assets from MAN Trucks India Pvt. Ltd. (now known as MAN Truck & Bus India Pvt. Ltd.), 
being movable properties, immovable properties, intangible assets and other miscellaneous assets situated at Pithampur, District Dhar, Madhya 
Pradesh. All contractual arrangements entered into for these acquisitions fully implemented during the year. 

46. The Company is operating in a Single Segment. 
47. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped, re-arranged and re-classified wherever necessary. 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
IFRN: 105215W/W100057) 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Sanjay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Klshore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

1. 

2. 

Form AOC ·1 

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of 
Subsidiaries I Associate Companies I Joint Ventures 

Part "A" : SUBSIDIARIES 

Sr. No. 1 

Name of the subsidiary Tempo Finance {West) Private Limited 

The date since when subsidiary was acquired 14th August 2012 

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the Same as per the Holding Company's reporting period 
holding companY"s reporting period. 

Reporting currency and exchange rate as on the last date of the N.A. 
relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. 

Share Capital 133 

Reserves & Surplus 378 

Total Assets 512 

Total Liabilities 512 

Investments --
Turnover (Total Revenue) 35 

Profit Before Taxation 35 

Provision for taxation 9 

Profit After Taxation 26 

Proposed Dividend --

% of shareholding 66.43% 

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence N.A. 
operations 

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated N.A. 
or sold during the year 
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Part"B" : Associates and Joint Ventures 
Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related 

to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

Name of Joint Venture 

1. Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 

2. Shares of Joint Venture held by the Company on the year end 

(a) No. 

(b) Amount of Investment in Joint Venture 

(c) Extend of Holding % 

3. Description of how there is significant influence 

4. Reason why the Joint Venture is not consolidated 

5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest Audited Balance Sheet 

6. Profit I (Loss} for the year 

(a) Considered in Consolidation 

(b) Not considered in Consolidation 

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations 

2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirtane & PandH LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN : 1 05215WIW1 00057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 
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Sanjay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Klshore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

Force MTU Power Systems 
Private Limited 

31st March 2019 

1,33,62,000 Equity Shares of~ 10/- each 

1,336 

51% 

There is a significant influence by virtue of 
joint control 

N.A. 

919 

(786) 

(401) 

N.A. 

N.A. 

N.A. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
To the Members of Force Motors Limited 

Report on the audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Force Motors Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its 
subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as "the Group"), and a jointly controlled entity, which comprise the consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Rows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements~). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, 
{"lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the 
consolidated profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(1 0) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (I CAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the I CAl's Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. 

Key AudH Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 

Sr. Key Audit MaHer Auditor's Response 
No. 
1 Accuracy ol Revenue Recognition 

Revenue being an important element of We analysed the Company's accounting policies & procedures for revenue recognition, 
Statement of Profit and Loss and including the criteria for the same. 
considering the new Accounting Standards, 
and its impact on profits of the Company; Our audit approach consisted evaluation of control environment and substantive testing as 
it is considered a Key Audit matter. follows: 

• Reviewed the contract terms in respect of transfer of significant risks and rewards of 
ownership to customers and performance obligations for revenue recognition. 

• Substantive tests on random sampling basis for all the major sale transactions and 
verification of all document flow involved in the samples selected. 

• Reviewed of paymentterms with dealers, identification of significant financing 
components and terms of discounts. 

• Reviewed accounting for after-sales services in terms of warranty schemes and 
service coupon systems. 

• Reviewed of compliance done with respect to Indirect Tax Compliances . 
• Performed analytical procedures for ensuring overall accuracy . 

2 Accuracy ol Cost of Goods Sold 
We identified Cost of Goods Sold area as a We assess the Company's process to verity the Cost of Goods Sold {COGS) incurred 
key audit matter because it is the most during the year. 
signfficant cost to the Company, which 
comprises of the cost of materials and Our audit approach consisted of testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the 
other direct costs of production and the internal controls and substantive testing as follows : 
same has significant impact on the • Overall evaluation and testing of controls related to corresponding business 
profitability of the Company. processes, viz. 'Procurement to Payment (P2P), Production Process, Material 

Requirement Planning (MRP), Inventory Policy and Stores Procedures. 
• Review of overall operations and production process of materials into finished 

products. 
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Sr. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response 
Na. 

• Review the standard operating procedures for COGS to ensure the correctness and 
completeness of COGS. 

• Physical verification of inventory items on random sampling basis with reference to 
book inventory for accuracy and controls including review of internal period-end 
inventory procedures and reconciliations. 

• Reviewing completeness and overall accuracy of system generated material 
consumption and reconciling with General Ledger, including manual accounting entries 
relating to material consumption. 

• Review of inventory valuation, material consumption in accordance with applicable 
Indian Accounting Standards. 

• Review of Reconciliations of Inventory General Ledger and Materials Management 
Module of SAP System. 

Evaluate the procedures for identifying slow moving items and their accounting estimates 
made by Management. 

3 Accuracy and Completeness of Capital 
Expenditure 
Capital Expenditure (CAPEX) has been We assessed the Company's process to verify the Capital Expenditure incurred during the 
considered as a key audit matter in view year including significant acquisitions of manufacturing facility. Our audit approach 
of the complexity, peculiarities of business consisted of testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls and 
and being one of the important elements substantive testing as follows: 
of costs. • Review of CAPEX business process, flow of documents/information and their controls 

effectiveness. 

• Substantive tests on random sampling basis for all the major additions, deletions to 
the assets by applying all the characteristics of capital expenditure, proper 
classification of the same, with reference to the company's policy and accounting 
standards. 

• Scrutiny of relevant general ledger accounts to assess if the expendib.Jre has been 
correctly accounted for. 

• Physical verification of test basis, review of physical verification carried out by the 
Management with respect to book records, review of Internal audit reports findings 
relating to Cap ex, if any, and implementation of the suggestions of the same. 

• We have assessed the competency, objectivity and capabilities of Management 
experts and for a sample of valuations, we evaluated the adequacy and 
appropriateness of their work. 

• Review of compliance done with respect to Companies Act, Income Tax Act, Customs 
Duty, and GST Act, particularly for accounting of additions, deletions, depreciation and 
of carrying amounts thereof. 

lnfarmalian ather than lhe Cansalidaled Financial Statements and AudHar's Reparltherean 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Business Responsibility Report, but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Business Responsibility 
Reports are expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report, Corporate Governance and Business 
Responsibility Report, If we conclude that there is material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance. 
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Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its joint venture in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors ofthe companies included in the Group and joint venture 
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and joint venture are 
responsible tor assessing the ability of the Group and joint venture to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the Group and a joint venture. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) ofthe Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability ofthe Group to continue as a going concern .If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a mannerthat achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the 
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 
misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identity during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and 
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 
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Other Maners 

We did not audn the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of a subsidiary, whose financial statements include total assets (net) 
of~ 510 Lakhs as at March 31, 2019, and total revenue of~ 35 Lakhs and net cash flows amounting to~ 25 lakhs for the year ended on that date 
respectively, as considered in the consolidated financial results. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other 
audnors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management. The consolidated 
financial statements also include the Group's share of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of~ 4021akhs for the year ended March 31, 2019, 
as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of a joint venture, whose financial statements and other financial information have been 
audned by other audmrs and whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management. Our opinion, in so far as n relates to the affairs of such 
subsidiary and joint Venture is based solely on the report of other auditors. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the 
above matters wnh respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other audnors and the financial statements I financial information 
certified by the Management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audn and on the consideration of the report of the other audnors on separate financial 
statement and the other financial information of subsidiary company and joint venture incorporated in India, referred in the Other Matters paragraph 
above, we report, that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes 
of our audn of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been 
kept so far as n appears from our examination of those books and the reports ofthe other audmrs. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profn and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement wnh the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the lnd AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2019 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of ns subsidiary company and joint venture company 
incorporated in India, none ofthe directors ofthe Group and joint venture companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure N'. which is based on audnors' reports of the Holding company, subsidiary company and 
joint venture incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting ofthe Holding Company and subsidiary company incorporated in India. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197 (16) of the Act, as 
amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Holding Company to 
ns directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 ofthe Act. 

(h) With respectto the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose impact of pending lnigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 
31 (a) to the consolidated financial statements 

(ii) The Group did not have any material long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. 

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary and joint venture incorporated in India.-Refer Note 43to consolidated financial statements. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration Number: 105215W /W100057 

Place: Pune Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 

Membership Number031787 
Date :27thMay2019 
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ANNEXURE uN' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to the Members of 
Force Motors Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under 
Clause (i) of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the Company as of and for the year ended March 31 , 2019, we have 
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Force 
Motors Limited (hereinafter referred to as "Company") and its subsidiary 
company and joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India, 
as of that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company, its subsidiary company and joint 
venture, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding 
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(1 0) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred 
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these consolidated financial 
statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
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process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

LimHations of Internal Financial Controls OVer Financial Reporting 
with reference to these consolidated financial statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, Holding Company, its subsidiary company and 
a joint venture, which are companies incorporated in India has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Rnancial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Other Matters 

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting with reference to these consolidated financial statements of the 
Holding Company, in so far as subsidiary company and joint venture, 
which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary and joint 
venture companies incorporated in India. 

Place:Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 

For Klrtane & Pandll LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 105215W/W100057 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 

Membership No. 031787 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

ASSETS 
(1) Non-current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Capital Work-in-progress 
(c) Investment Property 
(d) Goodwill 
(e) Other Intangible Assets 
(f) Intangible Assets under development 
(g) Financial Assets 

(i} Investments 
(ii) Loans and Advances 

(h) Other Non-current Assets 
Total Non-current Assets 

(2) Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i} Trade Receivables 
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 
(iii} Bank balance other than (ii) above 
(iv) Loans and Advances 
(v) Other Financial Assets 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 
(d) Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 
Total Assets 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
(1) Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 
(b) Other Equity 
(c) Equity attributable to owners of the Company 
(d) Non-controlling Interest 

Total Equity 
(2) Liabilities 

Non-current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i} Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 

~
b~ Provisions 
c Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 
d Other Non-current Liabilities 

Total Non-current Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i} Borrowings 
(ii) Trade Payables 

- Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises 
- Total outstanding dues other than Micro and Small enterprises 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 

~
) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

d) Provisions 
tal Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirlana & Pandit LLP Sanjay Kumar Bohra 
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer 
[FRN : 1 05215W/W1 00057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 
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Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

Note 
No. 

3 
3 
4 

5 
5 

6 
7 
9 

10 

11 
12 
12 
7 

13 
8 
9 

14 
15 

21 

16 
17 
18 
8 

20 

16 
19 

17 
20 
8 

18 

1-50 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

1,08,052 
13,265 

578 
1 

12,953 
23,915 

2,314 
1,516 

11,868 
1,74,462 

50,356 

16,652 
428 
93 

197 
32,006 

308 
9,096 

1,09,136 
2,83,598 

1,318 
1,92,003 
1,93,321 

172 
1,93,493 

20,563 

3,083 
989 
157 

24,792 

5,087 

71 
39,459 
5,262 

13,247 

2,187 
65,313 
90.105 

2,83,598 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

86,877 
17,351 

603 
1 

7,366 
19,566 

972 
1,671 
5,229 

1,39,636 

47,710 

24,191 
3,962 

307 
244 

20,436 

15,811 
1,12,661 
2,52,297 

1,318 
1,78,795 
1,80,113 

163 
1,80,276 

396 
2,698 

443 
189 

3,726 

78 
56,409 
3,080 
6,019 

233 
2476 

68,295 
72,021 

2,52,297 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

INCOME 
(a) Revenue from Operations 
(b) Other Income 
Tcitallncome 

II EXPENSES 
(a) Cost of Materials consumed 
(b) Change in Inventories of Finished Goods and 

Work-in-progress 
(c) Excise Duty 
(d) Employee benefits expense 

~f)
e) Finance costs 

Depreciation and Amortization expense 
g) Otherexpenses 

(h) Expenditure included in the above items capitalized 
Total Expenses 

Ill Profit before share of Profit I (Loss) of Joint Venture 
and exceptional items 

IV Share of ProfH I (Loss) of Joint Venture 
V Profit before exceptional items and tax 
VI Exceptlonalltems 
VII Profit Before Tax 
VIII Tax Expense 

(a) Current tax 
(b) Deferred tax 
(c) Taxation in respect of earlier years 
Tcital Tax Expense 

IX Profit for the year 
X AHributable to 

(a) Owners of the Company 
(b) Non-controlling interest 

XI Other Comprehensive Income 
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 

~
i), Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability 
il) Equity instrument through Other Comprehensive Income 
iii) Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Joint Venture 

(b) Income tax relating to items that will not be 
reclassified to Profit or Loss 
(i) Taxes on re-measurements of net defined benefit liability 
(ii) Taxes on Equity instrument through Other Comprehensive Income 
(iii) Share in taxes on Other Comprehensive Income of Joint Venture 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (Comprising 
Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the year) (IX + XI) 

XII AHributable to 

Note 
No. 

22 
23 

24 

25 
26 
27 
28 

8 

21 

(a) Owners of the Company 
(b) Non-controlling interest 21 

XIII Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Equity Share 
[Nominal value per share f 1 0] f 29 

See accompanying notes forming part of the 1-50 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirtane & PandH LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN : 1 05215W/W1 00057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

Sanjay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

For the year 
ended 31st 

For the year 
ended 31st 

March 2019 March 2018 

3,65,245 3,52,377 
11,162 6,812 

3,73,407 3,59,249 

2,81,471 2,60,924 
(3,425) (5,132) 

10,082 
41,813 38,655 
1,533 667 

15,092 12,926 
30,895 31,213 

(13,387) 
3,53,992 

(10,144) 
3,39,191 

19,415 20,058 

(401) 
19,014 20,058 

19,014 20,058 

4,208 4,371 
488 1,514 
(24) 

4,672 
(548) 
5337 

141342 14 721 

14,333 14,712 
9 9 

14,342 14 721 

112 210 
424 92 
{2) 

534 302 

~~:~ 
1 

(73) 

(57) 
477 gf~ 

14,819 14,950 

14,810 14,941 
9 9 

141819 141950 

108.85 111.72 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Balance as at Changes in Equity Balance as at 
1st April 2017 Share Capital during 31st March 2018 

the year 
1,318 -- 1,318 

Balance as at Changes in Equity Balance as at 
1st April 2018 Share Capital during 31st March 2019 

the year 

1,318 --
B. Other Equity 

Balance as at 1st April 2017 

Prom for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) 

Dividends (including dividend distribution tax) 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Balance as at 31st March 2018 

Balance as at 1st April 2018 

Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax) 

Dividends (including dividend distribution tax) 

Share in Cost of issue of shares of 
Joint Venture 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Balance as at 31st March 2019 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN: 105215W/W100057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 

88 

1,318 

Reserves and Surplus 
Securities General 
Premium Reserve 

5,920 34,683 

-- --
-- --

-- --
.. 4 

5,920 34,687 

5,920 34,687 

-- --

-- --
-- --
-- --

-- 4 

5,920 34,691 

Sanjay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

Retained 
earnings 

1,23,992 

14,712 

137 

(1,586) 

(4) 

1,37,251 

1,37,251 

14,333 

73 

(1,588) 

(15) 

(4) 

1,50,050 

Equity 
Instruments 

through Other Total Non-controlling 
Comprehensive Interest 

Income 

845 1,65,440 154 

-- 14,712 9 

92 229 --

-- (1,586) --
.. .. . . 

937 1,78,795 163 

937 1,78,795 163 

-- 14,333 9 

405 478 --
-- (1,588) --
-- (15) --

-- -- --
1,342 1,92,003 172 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant v. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments for 
Depreciation and Amortization expense 
Net exchange differences (unrealised} 
Interest Income 
Dividend income on Equity Securities 
Loss I (Gain) on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 
Finance Costs 
Inventory write down 
Share of (Profit) /Loss in Joint Venture 
Provision for bad, doubtful debts and debit balances 
Operating Profit before Working Capital adJustments 
Working Capital adjustments 
(Increase) I Decrease in 
Trade Receivables 
Inventories 
Other Financial Assets 
Other Non-financial Assets 
Trade Payables 
Financial Liabil~ies 
Non-financial Liabil~ies 
Provisions 
Cash generated from Operations 
Income Tax paid (net) 
Net cash flow from I (used in) Operating Activities 

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities 
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 
Deposits with Financial Institution 
Interest received 
Investments in Joint Venture 
Dividends received 
Net Cash flow from I (used in) Investing Activities 

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities 
Proceeds from I (Repayment of) borrowings 
Interest paid 
Dividends paid (including Dividend distribution Tax) 
Net Cash flow from I (used in) Financing Activities 
Net increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents 
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 
Cash and Cash equivalents at end of the financial year 
Cash and Cash equivalents as per Note 12 
Effects of exchange rate fluctuations on Cash and Cash equivalent held 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN: 105215W/W100057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date :27th May 2019 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

Sanjay Kumar Bohra 
Chief Financial Officer 

Klshore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

For the year 
ended 31st 

March 2019 

19,014 

15,092 
(284) 

(2,061) 
(5) 

177 
1,533 

203 
401 

34,070 

7,530 
(2,848) 

417 
6,719 

(16,661) 
(502) 
7,196 

207 
36,128 
(4,725) 
31,403 

(49,811) 
93 

(11,000) 
1,491 

(1,336) 
5 

(60,558) 

28,578 
(1,364) 
(1,588) 
25,626 
(3,529) 

3,958 
429 
428 

1 
429 

For the year 
ended 31st 

March 2018 

20,058 

12,926 
216 

(2,433} 
(8) 

(114} 
667 
511 

71 
31,894 

{12,750) 
(4,454) 
14,587 
1,536 
7,820 

15 
{10,236} 

19 
28,431 
(2,783} 
25,648 

{32,414) 
595 

20,000 
3,752 

8 
(8,059) 

{20,014) 
(688} 

(1,586) 
{22,288} 
(4,699) 

8,657 
3,958 
3,962 

(4) 

3,958 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. lnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 201 9 

1. GROUP INFORMATION 
Holding Company 
Force Motors Limited (the Company) is a Public Limited Company domiciled and incorporated in India. The Registered Office ofthe Company is 
situated at Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune- 411 035. The Company's ordinary shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. 
The Company is a fully, vertically integrated automobile company, with expertise in design, development and manufacture of the full spectrum of 
automotive components, aggregates and vehicles. Its range of products includes Light Commercial Vehicles (LCV), Multi-Utility Vehicles (MUV), 
Small Commercial Vehicles (SCV), Special Vehicles (SV) and Agricultural Tractors. 
Subsidiary Company 
Tempo Finance (West) Private Limited, a Subsidiary Company of Force Motors Limited, is domiciled and incorporated in India, having its 
Registered Office at Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune-411 035. The Company is engaged in providing financial services. 
Joint Venture Company 
Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited (FMTU), is a Private Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. It is a joint venture between Force Motors Limited and MTU Friedrichshafen GmbH. The Company is in the business of 
manufacturing Engines & Generator sets. 
The Holding Company, the Subsidiary Company and the Joint Venture Company together referred to as the Group. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(a) Statement of Compliance 

90 

The financial statements of the Group comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

(b) Basis ol Preparation 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except certain financial instruments and defined benefit plans, which 
are measured atfair values. 

(c) Basis ol Consolidation: 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company, its subsidiary and Joint Venture, being the entities 
that it controls. Control is evidenced where the Group has power over the investee or is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee and has the ability to effect those returns through its power over the investee. Power is demonstrated through 
existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, which significantly affect the entity returns. 
The consolidated financial statements include results of the subsidiary company, consolidated in accordance with lnd AS 110 (Consolidated 
Financial Statements)and lnd AS 28 (Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures). 
Joint Venture : 
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the 
arrangement. The results, assets and liabilities of a joint venture are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of 
accounting. 

(d) Revenue Recognition 
(i) Sales 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of Value Added 
Taxes, Goods and Service Taxes (GST), Returns, Discounts, Rebates and Incentives. The Group recognizes revenue, when it has 
transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards associated with the ownership of goods no significant performance obligation is 
pending and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group. 

(II) Other Incomes 
Other incomes are recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be 
measured reliably. 

(e) Inventories 
Inventories are valued at lower of their cost or net realizable value. The cost of raw materials, stores and consumables is measured on moving 
weighted average basis. 
Inventories comprise all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. 
Raw materials and bought out components are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of the 
weighted average method. 
Finished Goods and work-in-progress are carried at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. 
Stores, spares and tools other than obsolete and slow moving items are carried at cost. Obsolete and slow moving items are valued at cost or 
estimated net realizable value, whichever is lower. 

(I) Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment, except land, are carried at historical cost of acquisition, construction or manufacturing cost, as the case may 
be, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Freehold land is carried at cost of acquisition. 
Cost represents all expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition capable of operating in the manner intended. 
Costs incurred to manufacture property, plant and equipment and intangible are reduced from the total expense under the head 'Expenditure 
included in above items capitalised' in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 201 9 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

(g) Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets acquired are stated at acquis~ion cost, less accumulated amortization and impaired losses, if any. 
Intangible Assets internally generated 
Expendib.Jre incurred by the Group on development of know-how researched, is recognised as an intangible asset, if and only if the future 
economic benems attributable to the use of such know-how are probable to flow to the Group and the costs/expendib.Jre can be measured 
reliably. 

(h) Investment Properly 
Investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

(i) Impairment of Assets 
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

0) Depreciation & Amortization 
(i) Properly, Plant and Equipment 

• The Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on straight-line method and as per Schedule-11 to the Companies 
Act,2013. 

• Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease. 
(ii) Intangible Assets 

• Software and their implementation costs are written off over the period of 5 years. 
• Technical Know-how acquired and internally generated is amortized over the useful life of the assets, not exceeding 1 0 years. 

(k) Borrowing Costs 
Cost of borrowings incurred for acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset is capitalized. 

(I) Rasa arch and Development Expanses 
Revenue expendib.Jre on Research and Development is charged off as an expense in the year in which ~is incurred and cap~al expend~ure is 
grouped w~h Assets under appropriate heads and depreciation is provided as per rates applicable. 

(m) Leases 
(i) Where the Group is the Lessee 

• Leases, where the Lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased ~em, are classified as 
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Prom and Loss. 

• Finance leases are cap~lized atthe inception of the lease at fair value ofthe leased property. 
(II) Where the Group Is the Lessor 

Lease rentals are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the 
Statement of Prom and Loss. 

(n) Earnings per Share 
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit aftertax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. 

(o) Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions and balances 
(i) Foreign Currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. 
(ii) Monetary items of Assets and Liabilities booked in foreign currency are translated in to rupee at the exchange rate prevailing at the 

Balance Sheet date. 
(iii) Exchange difference resulting from settlement of such transaction and from translation of monetary items of Assets and Liabil~ies are 

recognized in the Statement of Prom and Loss. 
(iv) Exchange difference arising on translation of foreign currency liabilities for acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipments are adjusted to 

the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
(v) The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on in~ial recognition of the related asset, expense or 

income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the 
payment or receipt of advance. 

(p) Functional and presentation currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Group's functional currency. All amounts disclosed in the financial 
statements and notes have been rounded off to nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated. 

(q) Employee Benefits 
Dafined benefit plans 
(i) The accruing liability of Gratuity is covered by Employees Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and the 

premium is accounted for in the year of accrual. The additional liability, if any, due to defic~ in the Plan assets managed by LIC as 
compared to the present value of accrued liability on the basis of actuarial valuation, is recognized and provided for. 

(ii) Provident fund contributions are made to Group's Provident Fund Trust. The contributions are accounted for as defined benefit plans and 
are recognized as employee benef~s expense when they are due. Defic~. if any, of the fund as compared to liability on the basis of an 
independent actuarial valuation is to be add~ionally contributed by the Group. 

(iii) Current service cost and net interest on defined benefit obligation are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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(iv) Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the 
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and in the Balance Sheet. 

Defined contribution plans 
(i) The Group's superannuation scheme is a defined contribution plan. The contributions are recognized as employee benefit expenses 

whentheyaredue. 
(ii} Benefits in respect of compensated absence payable after 12 months are provided for, based on valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date, 

made by independent actuaries. 
(iii) Defined contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund Authority and recognized as expense 

as and when due. 
(r) Hire Purchase 

The Group has followed Equated Balance Method for the implicit rate for accounting the income from Hire Purchase. Directions and guidelines 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India in respect of income recognition, asset classification and provision for bad and doubtful debts have been 
followed. 

(s) Taxallon 
Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year. The Group's current tax is calculated using tax 
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial 
statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all deductible temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recoQnized to the extent it is 
probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilized. Deferred tax is 
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relate to the items that are recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in this case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity respectively. 
Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future 
income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax against which the MAT 
paid will be adjusted. 

(t) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
(i) Provision 

A provision is recorded when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated. 
Provision is made for estimated warranty claims in respect of products sold which are still under warranty at the end of the reporting 
period. These claims are expected to be settled as and when warranty claims will arise. Management estimates the provision based on 
historical warranty claim information and any recent trends that may suggest future claims could differ from historical amounts. 

(II) Contingent Liability 
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, 
require an outflow of resources. 

(u) Incentives 
Incentives receivable/received are disclosed as "Other Income", in the Financial Statements. 

(v) Financial instruments 
Equity investments at lair value through other comprehensive income 
These include financial assets that are equity instruments and are irrevocably designated as such upon initial recognition. Subsequently, these 
are measured at fair value and changes therein are recognized directly in other comprehensive income, net of applicable income taxes. 
Dividends from these equity investments are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, when the right to receive payment has been 
established. When the equity investment is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss in equity is transferred to retained earnings. 

(w) Fair value measurement 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities based on the nature, characteristics and 
risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as; 
• Level1 -Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly 

observable 
• Level3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significantto the fair value measurement is unobservable 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

(x) Use or estimates & Judgements 
Detailed information about accounting judgements, estimates and assumption is included in the relevant notes. 
(i) Estimation of defined benefit obligation-refer Note 37. 
(ii) Estimation of provision for warranty claims-refer Note 18. 
(iii) Estimated useful life of property, plant and equipments- refer Note 20) (i) above. 
(iv) Estimated useful life of intangible assets- refer Note 20) (ii) above. 
(v) Estimation of provision forT ax expenses- refer2(s) above. 
Estimation and u nder1ying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. 

(y) Recant accounting pronouncements 
New Accounting pronouncements affecting amounts reported and/ or disclosures in the financial statements. 
Revision to lnd AS 116- Leases- have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group is evaluating the impact of these pronouncements on 
the financial statements. 
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a I Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 
~ (All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

m 3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS 
:!!: 
c ..... c 
;J 
!: 
a: 
=i m c 

CD w 

Particulars Land Buildings Plant & Furniture & 
Equipment Fixtures 

Freehold Leasehold 
Gross carrying amount 
Balance as at 1st April 2018 868 1,590 27,944 1,48,460 1,570 
Additions -- 882 3,152 28,909 377 
Disposals I Adjustments -- -- -- 29 3 
Balance as at 31st March 201 9 868 2,472 31,096 1,77,340 1,944 
Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 1 st April 2018 -- 70 7,655 1,01,220 871 
Depreciation for the year -- 21 1,082 10,174 115 
Disposals I Adjustments -- -- -- 29 2 
Balance as at 31st March 201 9 -- 91 8,737 1,11,365 984 
Carrying amounts (Net) 
As at 31st March 2019 868 2,381 22,359 65,975 960 
As at 31st March 2018 868 1,520 20,289 47,240 699 

Notes: 
(a) Refer to Note 35 for Lease. 
(b) Refer to Note 31 (b) for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment. 
(c) Capital Work-in-progress mainly comprises Plant & Equipment. 

Vehicles Office Aircrafts 
Equipment 

3,935 966 17,990 
673 154 --
602 5 --

4,006 1,115 17,990 

2,159 644 3,827 
350 111 849 
333 5 --

2,176 750 4,676 

1,830 365 13,314 
1,776 322 14,163 

Total 

2,03,323 
34,147 

639 
2,36,831 

1,16,446 
12,702 

369 
1,28,779 

1,08,052 
86,877 

Capital Work-in-
Progress 

17,351 
3,108 
7,194 

13,265 

13,265 
17,351 

0 
~® 
rn 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

94 

Particulars Industrial 
Shed 

Grass carrying amount 
Balance as at 1st April 2018 794 

Additions --
Disposals I Adjustments --
Balance as at 31st March 2019 794 
Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 1st April 2018 191 
Depreciation for the year 25 
Disposals I Adjustments --
Balance as at 31st March 2019 216 
Carrying amounts (Net) 
As at 31st March 2019 578 

As at 31st March 2018 603 

Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property : 

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

Rental income derived from investment 
property 524 524 
Compensation on foreclosure of Lease Deed 741 --
Direct operating expenses (including repairs 
and maintenance) generating rental income --* --* 
Direct operating expenses (including repairs 
and maintenance) that did not generate 
rental income -- --
Income arising from investment property 
before depreciation and indirect expenses 1,265 524 
Less : Depreciation 25 25 
Profit from investment property 1,240 499 

Leasing arrangements 
The Group's investment property consists of industrial property situated at Chakan, Pune. Refer Note 35 (i). 
Fair Value 
The Group's investment property is at a location where active market is available for similar kind of properties. Hence, fair value is ascertained on 
the basis of market rates prevailing for similar properties in those location and consequently classified as a Level-2 valuation. 
Particulars As al31 sl March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 

Industrial Property 2,817 2, 735 

Reconciliation of fair value 

Particulars Industrial 
Property 

Balance as at 1st April 2018 2,735 
Change in fair value 82 
Balance as at 31st March 2019 2,817 

--* Denotes amount less than f 50,0001-
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Noles 1o Consolida1ed Financial S1a1emen1s for 1he year ended 31 s1 March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Technical Technical Technical 
Particulars Software Know-how Know-how Know-how 

acquired acquired upto internally 
1st April 2003 generated 

Gross carrying amount 

Balance as at 1 st April 2018 4,519 4,625 822 6,155 

Additions 267 699 -- 6,986 

Disposals I Adjustments -- -- -- --
Balance as at 31st March 201 9 4,786 5,324 822 13,141 

Accumulated Amortization 

Balance as at 1 st April 2018 2,466 3,295 822 2,172 

Amortization for the year 640 539 -- 1,186 

Disposals I Adjustments -- -- -- --
Balance as at 31st March 201 9 3,106 3,834 822 3,358 

Carrying amounts (Net) 

As at 31st March 2019 1,680 1,490 -- 9,783 

As at 31st March 2018 2,053 1,330 -- 3,983 

Note : Intangible Assets under development mainly comprises internally generated technical know-how. 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 
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Intangible 
Total Assets under 

development 

16,121 19,566 

7,952 8,870 

-- 4,521 

24,073 23,915 

8,755 

2,365 

--
11,120 

12,953 23,915 

7,366 19,566 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 201 9 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

6. FINANCIAL ASSETS : INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT) 

A. Investments at fair value through Other 
Comprehensive Income (MDCI) 

(a) Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid) 

(i) 1 (31st March 2018 : 1) Equity Share 
of~ 10/-, fully paid in MAN Trucks India Pvt. Ltd. 
(now known as MAN Truck & Bus India Pvt. Ltd.) 

(ii) 50,000 (31st March 2018: 50,000) Equity Shares 
of~ 10/- each, fully paid in 
Pithampur Auto Cluster Limited 

(iii) 5 (31st March 2018: 5) EquitY Shares 
of~ 50/- each, fully paid in Mittal Tower 
Premises Co-operative Society Limited 

(b) Quoted Equity Shares (tully paid) 

3,47,187 (31st March 2018: 3,47,187) Equity Shares 
of~ 2/- each, fully paid in ICICI Bank Limited 

Total MDCI Investments 

B. Investment at Cost 

Unquoted Equity Shares (tully paid) 

In Joint Venture 

1,33,62,000 (31st March 2018 : Nil) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each, 
fully paid in Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited (Refer Note 48) 

Total Investments 

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 

Aggregate value of unquoted investments 

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments 

As at31st 
March 2019 

-·* 

5 

-·* 

1,390 

1,395 

919 

2,314 

1,390 

1,390 
924 

The fair value of the investments in unquoted equity shares have been estimated using valuation technique which approximates its 
carrying value. 

For determination of fair values of quoted equity investments, the investments classified as MDCI. Refer Note 38. 

--* Denotes amount less than~ 50,000/-

As at 31st 
March 2018 

--* 

5 

--* 

967 

972 

972 

967 
967 

5 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 201 9 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS : LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Non-current 

(a) Security Deposits 

(i) Considered Good - Unsecured 

(ii) Which have significant increase in Credit Risk (Doubtful) 

(b) Other Loans and Advances 

(i) Considered Good - Unsecured 

(ii) Which have significant increase in Credit Risk (Doubtful) 

Less : Allowances for expected credit losses 

Total Non-current Loans and Advances 

Current 

(a) Security Deposits 

Considered Good - Unsecured 

(b) Other Loans and Advances 

(i) Considered Good - Unsecured 

(ii) Credit impaired (Doubtful) 

Total Current Loans and Advances 

Total Loans and Advances 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

1,513 

3 

3 

3 

1,516 

45 

152 

197 

1,713 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

1,667 

4 

9 

13 

9 

4 

1,671 

50 

194 

244 
1,915 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements tor the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

8. CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAX 

A. Statement of Profit or Loss 
(a) Current Tax 

(i) Current Income Tax charge 
(ii) Taxation in respect of earlier years 

(b) Deferred Tax 
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Income Tax expense reported In the Statement of Prom and Loss 

(c) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
Deferred tax related to items recognized in OCI during the year 
(i) Re-measurements on defined benefit plan 
(ii) Quoted Equity Instruments 
(iii) Share in taxes on Other Comprehensive Income of Joint Venture 
Income Tax recognized in OCI 

B. Balance Sheet 
(a) Current Tax Assets 

Advance Income Tax 
Total Current Tax Assets (Net) 

(b) Current Tax Liabilities 
Provision for Income Tax 
Total Current Tax LlabiiHies (Net) 

(c) Deferred Tax 
(i) Deferred Tax Assets (DTA) 
(ii) Deferred Tax Liabilities (DTL) 
Nat Deferred Tax Assets I (Liabilities) 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

4,208 
(24) 

488 
4,672 

(39) 
(19) 

1 
(57) 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

308 
308 

19,908 
(20,897) 

(989) 

Reconciliation oltax expense and the accounting profit lor the year ended 31st March 201 9 and 31st March 2018 : 

Accounting Profit Before Tax 
(a) Tax as per Income Tax Act 
(b) Tax Expense 

(i) Current Tax 
(ii) Deferred Tax 
(iii) Taxation in respect of earlier years 
Total Tax Expense 

(c) Difference (a-b) 
(d) Tax Reconciliation 

(i) Permanent Dis-allowances 
(ii} Allowances and accelerated deductions 
(iii) Change due to tax rate difference 
(iv) MAT credit 
(v) Taxation in respect of earlier years 
Total 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

19,014 
6,782 

4,208 
488 
(24) 

4,672 
2,110 

(166) 
2,267 

(15) 
24 

2,110 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

4,371 
(548) 

1,514 
5,337 

{73) 

{73) 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

233 
233 

16,072 
(16,515) 

(443) 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

20,058 
6,939 

4,371 
1,514 
(548) 
5,337 
1,602 

(120) 
1,337 

138 
(301) 

548 
1,602 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements tor the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Deferred Tu Assets and LiabiiHies are as follows : 

Deferred Tu Assets I (Liabilities) in relation to 
Deferred Tu relates Ia the following : DTL I (DTA) 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 
(b) Provision for doubtful advances 

(c) Dis-allowance U/s 438 of the Income Tax Act 
(d) Prepaid taxes claimed U/s 438 
(e) MAT credit entitlement 
(f) Quoted Equity Instrument through Other Comprehensive Income 
(g) Unquoted Equity lnstrumentthrough Other Comprehensive Income 

Net Deferred Tu Assets I (Liabilities) 

Balanca Sheet 
As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2019 March 2018 

(20,873) 

52 
2,109 

(6) 

17,746 
(19) 

2 

(989) 

(16,509) 

97 
2,002 

(6) 

13,971 

2 

(443) 

Significant components of net Deferred Tu Assets and LiabiiHies lor the year ended 31st March 2019 are as follows : 

Movement in temporary diHerences 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Provision for doubtful advances 
Dis-allowance U/s 438 of the Income Tax Act 
Prepaid taxes claimed U/s 438 
MAT credit entitlement 
Quoted Equity Instrument through Other 
Comprehensive Income 
Unquoted Equity Instrument 
through Other Comprehensive Income 

As at 
1st April 

2018 

(16,509) 

97 
2,002 

(6) 
13,971 

2 

(443) 

Recognized in Recognized in Other Asat 
Profit or Loss Comprehensive 31st March 

during Income during 2019 
2018-19 2018-19 
(4,364) (20,873) 

(45) 52 
146 (39) 2,109 

(6) 

3,775 17,746 

(19) (19) 

2 

(488) (58) (989) 

The deferred tax liability on taxable temporary difference relating to investment in subsidiary is not provided since the Group is able to control the timing of 
the reversal of temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The deferred tax liability of 
f 87 Lakhs (31st March 2018: f 82 Lakhs) has not been recognized. 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 99 



® 
FORCE 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 201 9 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

9. OTHER ASSETS 

Non-current 
(a) Capital Advances 

Considered Good - Unsecured 
(b) Prepaid Lease rentals 
Total Nan-current Other Assets 
Current 
(a) Advances recoverable In cash or kind 

(includes Govt. Incentives, Taxes, etc.) 
(i) Considered Good - Unsecured 
(ii) Doubtful 

Less: Provision for doubtful advances 

(b) Prepaid Lease rentals 
Total Current Other Assets 

Total Other Assets 

10. INVENTORIES (CURRENT) 

(a) Raw Materials and Components* 
(b) Finished Goods 
(c) 

(d) 

* 

Work-in-progress 
Stores and spares 
[Include Goods in transit : ~ 3,902 Lakhs (31st March 2018 : 
f 7,562 lakhs}] 

Total Inventories 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

11,791 
77 

11,868 

9,092 
108 

9,200 
108 

9,092 

4 
9,096 

20,964 

As at31st 
March 2019 

23,948 
17,008 

6,506 
2,894 

50,356 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

5,148 
81 

5,229 

15,807 
227 

16,034 
227 

15,807 

4 
15,811 

21,040 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

24,891 
15,757 
4,332 
2,730 

47,710 

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value during the year amounted to~ 203 Lakhs {31st March 2018: ~ 511 Lakhs}. The write-down are 
included in the cost of material consumed or changes in inventories offinished goods and work-in-progress. 

11. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CURRENT) 
As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2019 March 2018 
(a) Considered Good - Unsecured 16,652 24,191 
(b) Which have significant increase in Credit Risk (Doubtful} 40 42 

16,692 24,233 
Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables 40 42 

Total Trade Receivables 16,652 24,191 

Trade Receivables are not credit impaired. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 201 9 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CURRENT) 

(a) Cash and Cash equivalents 
(i) Balances with Banks 
(ii) Short term deposits with Banks - maturity less than three months 
(iii) Cheques I Drafts on hand 
(iv) Cash on hand 

(b) Other Bank balances 
(i) Unpaid Dividend Accounts 
(ii) Margin Money and Securtty deposit 
(iii) Bank deposits with original maturity 

of three to twelve months 

Total Cash and Cash equivalents 

13. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT) 

(a) Interest accrued on deposits with Banks 
(b) Corporate Deposits 

Total Other Financial Assets 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

As at31st 
March 2019 

192 
200 
33 
3 

428 

55 
38 

93 

521 

AI at31st 
March 2019 

706 
31,300 

32,006 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

3,598 
354 

6 
4 

3,962 

55 
77 

175 

307 

4,269 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

136 
20,300 

20,436 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 201 9 
(All amounts in ~ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

14. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

Authorised 
2,00,00,000 (31st March 2018: 2,00,00,000) 
Equity Shares of ~1 0/- each 
Issued 
1,32,13,802 (31st March 2018 : 1 ,32, 13,802) 
Equity Shares of f1 0/- each) 
Subscribed and Paid-up 
1,31,76,262 (31st March 2018 :1,31,76,262) 
Equity Shares of t1 0/- each fully paid up 
[of the above 2,00,918 (31st March 2018: 2,00,918) Equity Shares are allotted as 
fully paid shares pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash 
and 57,29,934 (31st March 2018 : 57,29,934) Equity Shares are allotted as fully 
paid Bonus Shares by capitalisation of reserves] 
[These allotments were made before earlier financial year and not in the period of 
five years preceding 31st March 2019 or 31 st March 2018). 
Add: Amount paid for forfeited Shares 
Total Equity Share Capital 

Aut 31st 
March 2019 

2,000 

1,321 

1,318 

--* 
1,318 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

2,000 

1,321 

1,318 

--* 
1,318 

Note: Offer on Right basis for 17,932 (31st March 2018 :17,932) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each is kept in abeyance as per the provisions of 
Section 126 of the Act. 

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period (Equity Shares of ~ 1 0/- each) 

Particulars As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 
Number Amount Number Amount 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1 ,31 '76,262 1,318 1 ,31 '76,262 1,318 
Issued I Reduction during the year 
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1 ,31 '76,262 1,318 1 ,31 '76,262 1,318 

(b) Terms I rights aHachad to Equity Shares 
The Company has issued equity shares. All equity shares issued rank pari-passu in respect of distribution of dividend and repayment of capital. 
1 ,30 ,32,914 Equity Shares are quoted equity shares with no restriction on transfer of shares. 27,600 Equity Shares are 'A' equity shares, which 
are transferrable only to permanent employees of the Company. 1, 15,7 48 Equity Shares are Second 'A' equity shares which are transferrable to 
permanent employees, who have put in five years of service with the Company. 

(c) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

(d) Shares held by holding /uHimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates 
The Company became a subsidiary of Jaya Hind Industries Limited, w.e.f. 1st January 2018 (being appointed date) consequent to the Order 
dated 24th October 2018 of the Mumbai Bench of National Company Law Tribunal approving the scheme of amalgamation. Jaya Hind 
Industries Limited holds 57.38% (75,59,928) shares in the Company. 

(e) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares 
Name of the Shareholder As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 

Jaya Hind Industries Limited 
Jaya Hind Investments Private Limited 

--* Denotes amount less than~ 50,000/-

102 

No. ot Shares % of 
of ~0/- each Holding 

fully paid 
75,59,928 57.38% 

No. of Shares 
of~ 1 0/- each 

fully paid 
10,909 

74,92,244 

%of 
Holding 

0.08% 
56.86% 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements tor the year ended 31st March 2019 
(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

15. OTHER EQUITY 
As at 31st 

March 2019 
I. Reserves and Surplus 

(a) Securities Premium 5,920 
(b) General Reserve 

Q) Opening balance 34,687 
Qi) Add : Transferred from retained earnings 6 

34,693 
Qii) Less : Transferred to non-controlling interest 2 
Closing balance 34,691 

(c) Retained Earnings 
Q) Opening balance 1,37,251 
Qi) Net profit for the year 14,342 
Qii) Comprehensive income for the year 72 

1,51,665 
Adjustments 
Q) Equity Dividend 1,318 
Qi) Tax on Equity Dividend 270 
Qii) Transfer to General Reserve 6 
(IV} Share in Cost of issue of shares of Joint Venture 15 

1,50,056 
Less : Transferred to non-controlling interest 6 
Closing Balance 1,50,050 

II. Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 
Opening Balance 937 
Adjustments 
MOCI Equity Investments - change in fair value 405 
Closing Balance 1,342 

Total Other Equity 1,92,003 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

5,920 

34,683 
6 

34,689 
2 

34,687 

1,23,991 
14,721 

137 
1,38,849 

1,318 
268 

6 

1,37,257 
6 

1,37,251 

845 

92 
937 

1178?95 
• Securities Premium : The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognized in Securities Premium Account. 
• General Rasarva : General Reserve comprises of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. The reserve can be 

distributed I utilised by the Group in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013. 
• Retained Earnings : Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date. 

16. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES: BORROWINGS 

Non-currant 
Term Loan from Banks (Secured) 
Lass : Current maturities of Non-current Borrowings disclosed under the head 

Current Other Financial Liabilities (Refer Note 17) 
Total Non-current Borrowings 
(Refer Note 39 for maturity pattern of Borrowings) 
Current 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

23,500 
2,937 

20,563 

Wor1<ing Cpailal Loan from Banks (Secured) 5,087 
Total Current Borrowings 5,087 
Total Borrowings 25,650 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

• Term Loan is secured by hypothecation, by way of Exclusive Charge on specnied Plant and Machinery, being movable properties, secured as a 
continuing security for the repayment of Term Loan together with interest. 

• The term loan is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments and the repayments Schedule to be commenced in November 2019, after a 
moratorium of 12 months. 

• Working Capital Loans are secured by hypothecation of Company's stock of raw materials, wor1<-in-progress, finished goods, consumable 
stores, spares, bills receivable and book debts, both present and future. The Fund Based Limits are payable on demand to the Banks. 
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(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated} 

17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Non-current 
Security Deposits 
Total Non-current Other Financial Liabilities 

Current 
(a} Current maturities of Non-current Borrowings 

(Refer Note 16) 
(i) Term Loan from Banks (Secured) 

(ii) Deposits matured but not claimed 
(b) Interest on Fixed Deposits 

(i) Accrued and due on Term Loan 
(ii) Accrued but not due 

(c) Unclaimed Dividend 
(d) Creditors for Capital Goods 
(e) Security Deposits 
(f) Other payables 
Total Current Other Financial Liabilities 

Total Other Financial Liabilities 

18. PROVISIONS 

Non-Current 
(a) Provision for Employee benefits (Refer Note 37) 
(b) Provision for Product Warranties 
Total Non-current Provisions 

Current 
(a) Provision for Employee benefits (Refer Note 37) 
(b) Provision for Product Warranties 
Total Current Provisions 

Total Provisions 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

2,937 

3 

169 

··* 
55 

1,456 
242 
400 

5,262 

5,262 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

3,014 
69 

3,083 

1,813 
374 

2,187 

5,270 
The provision for warranties is based on the estimates made from the technical evaluation and historical data. 

Movement in Product Warranties As at 31st 
March 2019 

Product Warranties 
(a) Opening Balance 588 
(b) Add~ional Provision made during the year 345 
(c) Amount paid during the year (257) 
(d) Amount written back (233) 

Closing Balance 443 
--* Denotes amount less than f 50,000/-

As at 31st 
March 2018 

396 
396 

13 

--* 
55 

2,263 
347 
402 

3,080 

3,476 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

2,616 
82 

2,698 

1,970 
506 

2,476 

5,174 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

780 
409 

(250) 
(351) 

588 
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19. TRADE PAY ABLES 

(a) Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small enterprises 
(b) Total outstanding dues of other than 

Micro and Small Enterprises 
Total Trade Payables 

20. OTHER LIABILITIES 

Non-current 
Service Coupon Liability 
Total Non-current Other LiabiiHies 
Current 
(a) Advance and deposits against order 
(b) Statutory dues 
(c) Service Coupon Liability 
Total Current Other Liabilities 
Total Other Liabilities 

Movement In Service Coupon Liability 

Free Service Coupons 
(a) Opening balance 
(b) Add~ional provision made during the year 
(c) Amount paid during the year 
(d) Amount written back 
Closing balance 

21. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (NCI) 

Tempo Finance (West) Private Limited 
Non-controlling Interest (%) 
Current Assets 
Current Liabilities 
Net Assets 
Nat Assets aHributabla to NCI 
Net Prom for the period of Tempo Finance (West) Private Lim~ed 
Nat Profit aHributable to NCI 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

71 
39,459 

39,530 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

157 
157 

7,066 
5,756 

425 
13,247 
13,404 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

682 
482 

(500) 
(82) 
582 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

33.57% 
512 
(1) 

511 
172 

26 
9 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

78 
56,409 

56,487 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

189 
189 

3,329 
2,197 

493 
6,019 
6,208 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

869 
539 

(463) 
(263) 

682 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

33.57% 
486 
(1) 

485 
163 
26 
9 
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(All amounts in f Lakhs, unless otherwise stated) 

22. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

(a) Sale of Products 
(b) Interest income 
(c) Other Operating Revenue 

For tha year ended 
31st March 2019 

3,62,001 
35 

For the year ended 
31st March 2018 

3,49,319 
35 

Q) Service charges 539 474 
Oi) Others 2,670 2,549 

Total Revenue from Operations 3,65,245 3,52,377 
Post the applicability of Goods and Services Tax (GST), with effect from 1st July 2017, Revenue from operations are required to be disclosed net of 
GST. Sales before this date are disclosed as gross of excise duty. Accordingly, the revenue from operations tor the year ended 31st March 2019 is 
not comparable with the previous year. 

23. OTHER INCOME 

(a) Interest income 
(b) Dividend income from Equity Investments designated at MOCI 
(c) Gain on Exchange fluctuation 
(d) lndust~al Promotion Incentive (Refer Note 44) 

(e) Rental income 
(f) Profit on sale of assets 
(g) Others 
Total Other Income 

24. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK·IN·PROGRESS 

Opening Stock 
(a) Finished Goods 
(b) Work-in· progress 

Closing Stock 
(a) Finished Goods 
(b) Work-in· progress 

Total Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-progress 

25. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 

(a) Sala~es, Wages and Bonus 
(b) Cont~bution to Provident, Other Funds and Schemes 
(c) Staff Welfare expenses 
Total Employee Benefits Expense 

106 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

2,675 
5 

1,132 
2,077 

524 
12 

1,737 
8,162 

For tha year ended 
31st March 2019 

15,757 
4,332 

20,089 

17,008 
6,506 

23,514 
(3,425) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

38,035 
2,578 
1,200 

41,813 

For the year ended 
31st March 2018 

3,053 
8 

1,830 
524 
245 

1,212 
6,872 

For the year ended 
31st March 2018 

10,699 
4,258 

14,957 

15,757 
4,332 

20,089 
(5,132) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2018 

35,002 
2,381 
1,272 

38,655 
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26. FINANCE COSTS 
For the year ended 

31st March 2019 
(a) Interest expense 1,402 
(b) Other borrowing costs 50 
(c) Net interest cost on net defined benefit obligations 81 
Total Finance Costs 1,533 

27. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE 
For the year ended 

31st March 2019 
(a) Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 12,702 
(b} Amortization of Intangible Assets 2,365 
(c) Depreciation on Investment Property 25 
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense 15,092 

28. OTHER EXPENSES 
For the year ended 

31st March 2019 
(a) Consumption of Stores and Spares 7,805 
(b) Fabrication and Processing Charges 770 
(c) Power and Fuel 4,886 
(d) Forwarding Charges 3,273 
(e) Rent 189 
(f) Rates and Taxes 170 
(g) Insurance 552 
(h) Repairs and Maintenance: 

Q) Plant and Machinery 2,137 
Qi) Buildings 388 
Qii) Others 185 

Q) Publicity and Sales promotion 1,837 
0) Payments to Auditors (Refer details below) 33 
(k) Commission to Non-executive Directors 
0) Loss on Exchange Fluctuation (Net} 
(m) Donation 423 

[Includes donation under Section 182 of the Companies Act, 
2013: f 420 Lakhs (31st March 2018: f Nil}] 

(n) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 45) 460 
(o) Bad Debts I Provision for doubtful advances & Receivables 
(p) Miscellaneous Expenses 7,787 
Total Other Expenses 30,895 

Details of payments to Auditors 
For the year ended 

31st March 2019 
(a) Audit Fees 22 
(b) Tax Audit Fees 1 
(c) Limited review and Certification work 8 
(d) Reimbursement of expenses 2 
Total payments to Auditors 33 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

For the year ended 
31 st March 2018 

526 
46 
95 

667 

For the year ended 
31 st March 2018 

11,433 
1,468 

25 
12,926 

For the year ended 
31 st March 2018 

7,635 
947 

4,823 
2,995 

158 
401 
570 

2,115 
572 
176 

1,897 
26 

100 
818 

16 

410 
71 

7,483 
31,213 

For the year ended 
31 st March 2018 

20 
1 
4 

26 
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29. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

(a) Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders 
(b) Weighted average number of Equity Shares 

used as Denominator 
(c) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share of 

nominal value off 1 0 each : f 
30. EXPENDITURE CAPITALIZED 

For the yaar ended 
31st March 201 9 

14,342 

1,31,76,262 

108.85 

For the year ended 
31st March 2018 

14,721 

1,31 '76,262 

111.72 

Amount capitalized represents expenditure allocated out of employee cost and other expenses, incurred in connection with capital items and various 
product development projects undertaken by the Group for the introduction of new products as well as development of engine and existing product 
variants. 

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

(a) Contingent Liabilities 
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts 
(i) Taxes and Duties 
(ii) Others (Court cases pending) 

(b) CommHments 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

2,765 
3,772 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

3,300 
3,581 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed 23,206 12,276 
on Capital account and not provided for 

(c) As reported earlier, a foreign company has initiated legal proceedings in a foreign court, in respect of notional and unfounded claims for 
damages, without there being any enforceable agreement, relating to export business. The Group has obtained opinion from a Senior Counsel, 
in respect of these alleged claims against the Group. The Group has been advised that such notional I unfounded claims are not as per the 
applicable law nor these claims, ~any, can be enforced in the Court of Law in India. This information is being disclosed as per the provisions of 
Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, only to indicate the alleged claims made against the Group and the developments in respect thereof. 
Moreover, considering the period lapsed, since the conclusion of the said legal proceedings, the Group does not expect any impact of this 
litigation on its financial position. 

(d) On 28th February 2019, the Supreme Court of India has passed a judgment on inclusion of certain allowances in basic wages for the purposes 
of deduction and contribution to the Employees Provident and Pension funds. Due to ambiguity and the divergent views on the application of 
the said judgment, the Group has not made any provision. The Group will take necessary steps, on receiving further clarity, on the subject. 

32. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE REQUIREMENT OF SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 : 
As on 31st March 2019, the Group has not received any intimation, except in few cases, as to the status as Micro, Small or Medium Enterprises from 
suppliers of the Group along with a copy of the Memorandum, filed by the said suppliers, as per the provisions of Section 8 of the Micro, Small & 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (the Act). There is no liability towards interest on delayed payments under "The Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" during the year. There is also no amount of outstanding interest in this regard, brought forward from 
previous years. The proceedings initiated by one of the suppliers, claiming to be a small scale enterprise, as per the provisions of Section 16 of the 
Act, culminated into an award of claim for f 157 Lakhs with interest. The Group has not accepted the said liability. The Group has a major counter­
claim against the said supplier amounting to about f 906 Lakhs, which being unearned income, is not accounted. The award is challenged by the 
Group, as per the provisions of the Act and proceedings are pending before the Hon'ble District Judge, Pune, and before the Hon'ble High Court of 
Judicature at Bombay. 

33. FOREIGN EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES 
The amount of net exchange dmerences included in the Profit I Loss for the year on Revenue account is f 1 , 111 Lakhs Credit (31 st March 
2018 : f 838 Lakhs Debit} and on Capital account is f 21 Lakhs Credit (31 st March 2018 : f 20 Lakhs Credit). 

34. EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
The Group's expenditure on its Research and Development activity during the year under report was as follows : 

As at 31st 
March 2019 

As at 31st 
March 2018 

(a) Capital Expenditure 14,069 15,792 
4,176 (b) Revenue Expenditure 6,372 
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(The above expenditure is grouped with other non-R&D expenditure under various heads of capital and revenue expenditures.) 
As per the Indian Accounting Standard (I nd AS 38) - Intangible Assets, the Group has recognized Intangible Assets, arising out of in-house 
Research and Development activities of the Group. 
As the development activity, offew projects, is continued, these assets are considered as Capital Work-in-progress, and will be amortized over 
the period of their life, after the completion ofthe development phase. 
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35. LEASES 
Operating Leases 
As a Lessor 
(i) Industrial Shed at Chakan 

The Group had entered into a Lease Agreement for Industrial Shed, at Chakan, Pune, for a period of 1 0 years. The Lessee is entitled to terminate 
the lease agreement after the expiry of 60 months from the date of agreement. On termination of lease, due to exercise of the option by the 
Lessee at the end of 60 months, the Lessee shall be liable to pay a sum of~ 200 lakhs. Agreement includes clause to enable upward revision of 
rental charges according to prevailing market conditions. The Lessor is also entitled to terminate the Lease Agreement, if the Lessee defaults 
the terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement. The lease income has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
The Lessor and the Lessee have decided mutually to foreclose the Lease Deed and accordingly the Lessee has vaccated the leased premises 
peacefully in March 2019 on the terms and conditions specified in the Memorandum for Foreclosure of Lease Agreement. 
The compensation on forclosure of lease deed and the lease income have been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(II) Freehold land 
Out ollhe freehold land at Akurdi, Puna; 
2700 sq. mtrs. (cost ~ 1,374) of land has been given on lease to Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited for 
99 years, w.e.f. 1 stAugust 1989. Lease rentals are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
19,000 sq. rntrs. (cost ~ 9,669) of land has been given on lease to Navalmal Firodia Memorial Hospital Trust for 25 years, w.e.f. 
12th August 2014. Lease rentals are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
These land given on lease are not considered as investment property considering the insignificant area and cost of that with respect to total area 
and cost of freehold land at Akurdi, Pune. 

As a Lessee 
Leasehold land 
The Group has entered into Lease Agreement for industrial land at Pithampur in Madhya Pradesh for a period of 30 years. The Group being a Lessee 
may surrender the leased area after giving Lessor 3 months notice period in writing. The lease premium is not refundable to Group in case of eariy 
termination of agreement by the Group. The Lessor is also entitled to terminate the Lease Agreement, if the Lessee defaults the terms and conditions 
of the Lease Agreement. The lease expense has been recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

36. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 
I. Names or the related party and nature ol relationship where control exists : 

Name of the Related Partv Nature of relationship 
(a) Jaya Hind Industries Limited * Holding Company 
(b) Tempo Finance (West) Private Limited Subsidiary Company 
(c) Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited ** Joint Venture Company 

II. List of other related parties with whom there are transactions in the current year : 
Name of the Related Partv Nature of relationship 
A. Key Management Personnel (KMP) 

(a) Abhaykumar Firodia 
(b) Prasan Firodia 
(c) Sudhir Mehta 
(d) Pratap Pawar 
(e) S. Padmanabhan 
(f) Nitin Desai 
(g) Dr. Indira Parikh 
(h) Arun Sheth 
(i) Arvind Mahajan 
0) Vinay Kothari 
(k) Yeshwant Deosthalee 
(I) Lt. Gen. (Reid.) Dr. D. B. Shekatkar 
(m) Anant J. Talaulicar 
(n) Prashant V. lnamdar 
(o) Sanjay Kumar Bohra 

B. Other Entities 
(a) Jaya Hind Montupet Private Limited 
(b) Pinnacle Industries Limited 
(c) Kider (India) Private Limited 
(d) Bajaj Tempo Limited Provident Fund 
(e) Sakal Media Private Limited 
(f) Amar Prerana Trust 
(g) Navalmal Firodia Memorial Hospital Trust 
(h) Antardisha 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

Chairman 
Managing Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Executive Director (Operations) 
Chief Financial Officer 

Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
Post employement benefit Trust 
Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
Entity controlled by KMP of Company 
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Ill. Transactions with Related Panles 
Name of Related Party 2018-19 2017-18 

Amount of Balance as at Amount of Balance as at 

110 

transaction 31st March 201 9 transaction 31st March 2018 
during the year Receivables I during the year Receivables I 

(Payables) (Payables} 
A. Holding Company 

Jaya Hind Industries Limited * 
(a) Purchase of Cap~al Goods 144 
(b) Purchase of Raw Materials, 7,760 8,216 

Components & Others 
(c) Sundry Sales 516 (191) 344 (545} 
(d) Service Charges recovered 95 307 64 4,668 
(e) Processing Charges recovered 44 62 
(f) Dividend paid 1 1 

B. Key Management Personnel 
(a) Remuneration 

(i) Short-term employee benefits 753 701 
(including Commission) (363) (348) 

(ii) Post employment benef~s 34 35 
(iii) Other long-term benefits 42 46 

(b) Others 
(i) Dividend paid 49 49 
(ii) Sitting fees 34 36 
(iii) Commission 1 00 (1 00) 

C. Other Entities 
(a) Force MllJ Power Systems Private LlmHed ** 

(i) Expenses recovered 956 33 
(ii) Contribution to Equ~ 1,336 

(b) Jaya Hind Investments Private Limited*** 
Dividend paid 749 749 

(c) Jaya Hind Montupet Private Limited 
(i) Purchase of Raw Materials, Components 83 346 

& Others 
(ii) Service Charges recovered 34 (6) 21 (65) 
(iii) Processing Charges recovered 2 29 --* 11 
(iv) Sundry sales 2 

(d) Pinnacle Industries Limited 
(i) Purchase of Capital Goods 418 115 
(ii) Purchase of Raw Materials, 14,698 15,096 

Components & Others (405) (611) 
(iii) Sundry Sales 69 64 86 965 
(iv) Interest received 23 25 

(e) Kidar (India) Privata LimHad 
Purchase of Cap~al Goods 4 (2) 4 

(f) Bajaj Tempo LimHed Provident Fund 
Contribution to Provident Fund 683 (58) 604 (53) 

(g) Sakal Madia Privata LimHad 
Publicity charges 20 20 

(h) Amar Prerana Trust 
(i) Training Facitl~ Utilisation 32 296 (7) 
(ii) Sundry sales 1 

(i) Navalmal Firodia Memorial Hospital Trust 
Contribution towards Corporate 460 381 
Social Responsibil~ 

0) Anlardisha 
Professional Fees 26 

* With effect from 1st January 2018 (being appointed date) consequent to the Order dated 24th October 2018 of the Mumbai Bench of 
National Company Law Tribunal approving the scheme of amalgamation. 

** With effect from 7th August 2018. 
*** Ceased to be a Holding Company on 1st January 2018 
--* Denotes amount less than f 50,0001-
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37. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

A. Defined Contribution Plans: 

® 
FORCE 

An amount off 667Lakhs (31st March 2018: f 660 Lakhs) is recognized as an expense and included in "Employees Benef~s Expense" in the 
Statement of Profit and loss. 

B. Defined Benefit Plans 

(a) The amounts recognized In Balance Sheet are as follows: 

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 

Gratuity Plan Provident Fund* Gratu~ Plan Provident Fund* 
(Funded) (Funded) (Funded) (Funded) 

(I) Amount to be recognized In Balance Sheet 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 5,971 379 5,318 147 

Less: Fair value of plan assets 4,823 1,291 3,949 1,133 

Amount to be recognized as Liabil~ or (Asset) 1,148 (912) 1,369 (986) 

(ii) Amount to be reflected in Balance Sheet 

Liabil~ies 1,148 (912) 1,369 (986) 

Assets 

Net liability I (Assets) 1,148 (912) 1,369 (986) 

"' Not considered in the books, being excess of plan assets over defined benefit obligation. 

As the Group is not ent~led for any surplus in provident fund scheme, Group has not recorded, any asset for excess of plan assets over 
providentfund liability. 

(b) The amounts recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows 
----------------------------------------

(i) Employee Benefit Expense 

Current service cost 

(ii) Acquisition (Gain) I Loss 

(iii) Finance cost 

Net Interest (Income) I Expenses 

Net periodic benefit cost recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss 

As at 31st March 2019 

Gratuity Plan Provident Fund* 
(Funded) (Funded) 

458 

27 

81 

566 

19 

(77) 

(58) 

"' Not considered in the books, being excess of plan assets over defined benefit obligation. 

As at 31st March 2018 

Gratu~ Plan Provident Fund* 
(Funded) (Funded) 

411 62 

95 (44) 

506 18 
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(c) The amounts recognized in the statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 
---------------------------------------

As at 31st March 201 9 As at 31 st March 2018 

Gratuity Plan Provident Fund* Gratuity Plan Provident Fund* 
(Funded) (Funded) (Funded) (Funded) 

0) Opening amount recognized in OCI outside 
Statement of Profit and Loss 

Oi) Re-measurements for the year • obligation (71) 201 (191) (434) 
(Gain) I Loss 

Qii) Re-measurements for the year - plan assets (40) (69) (19) 51 
(Gain)/Loss 

fw) Total re-measurements cost/ (cred~) tor the year (111) 132 (210) (383) 
recognized in OCI 

(v) Less : Accumulated balances transferred to (111) 132 (210) (383) 
Retained Earnings 

Closing balances [re-measurements (Gain) I Loss 
recognized in OCI) 

* Not considered in the books, being excess of plan assets over defined benef~ obligation. 

(d) The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing reconciliation of opening and closing balances thereof 
are as follows: 

As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 201 8 

Gratuity Plan Provident Fund Gratuity Plan Provident Fund 
(Funded) (Funded) (Funded) (Funded) 

0) Present value of obligation as at the beginning 5,318 147 5,109 484 
of the year 

Oi) Acquisition adjustment 291 

Oii) Transfer in/(out} 2 

fw} Interest expenses 402 12 354 35 

(v} Past service cost 

(vi} Current service cost 458 19 411 62 

(vii} Curtailment costt(credit) 

(viii) Settlement costt(credit) 

[IX) Benefits paid (427) (367) 

(x) Re-measurements on obligation - (71) 201 (191) (434) 
(Gain) I Loss 

Present value ol obligation as at the end of the year 5,971 379 5,318 147 
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(e) Changes in the fair value of plan assets representing reconciliation of the opening and closing balances thereof are as follows : 

(f) 

(g) 

* 

As at 31st March 201 9 As at 31st March 2018 
Gratuity Plan Provident Fund Gratuity Plan Provident Fund 

(Funded) (Funded) (ftlnded) (Funded) 

(i) Fair value of the plan assets as at 3,949 1,133 3,437 1,105 
beginning of the year 

(ii) Acquisition adjustment 264 
(iii) Transfer irv'(out) 2 

(iv) Interest income 321 89 259 79 
(v) Contributions 682 603 
(vi) Mortality charges and taxes (7) (4) 

(vii) Benefits paid {426) (367) 

(viii) Amount paid on settlement 

(ix} Return on plan assets, excluding amount 40 69 19 (51) 
recognized in Interest Income - Gain I (Loss} 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 4,823 1,291 3,949 1,133 

Actual return on plan assets 362 278 

Net interest (Income) I Expanses 
As at 31st March 2019 As at 31st March 2018 

Gratuity Plan Provident Fund Gratuity Plan Provident Fund 
(Funded) (Funded) (ftlnded) (Funded) 

(i) Interest (income) I expense- obligation 402 12 354 35 

(ii) Interest (income) I expense- plan assets {321) (89) (259) (79) 
Net interest (income) I expense for the year 81 (77) 95 (44) 

Basis used to determine the overall upactad return: 

The net interest approach effectively assumes an expected rate of return on plan assets equal to the beginning of the year discount rate. 
Expected return of 7.80% has been used for the valuation purpose. 

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages) 

Gratuity As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 

(i) Discount rate 7.60% 7.80% 

(ii) Expected return on plan assets 7.80% 7.20% 

(iii) Salary growth rate * 10% 10% 

(iv) Attrition rate - for Bargainable Staff 10% 10% 

(v) Attrition rate - others 2% 2% 

The estimates of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. 

Provident Fund As at 31st As at 31st 
March2019 March 2018 

(i) Discount rate 7.60% 7.80% 

(ii) Interest rate 8.65% 8.55% 

(iii) Yield spread 0.50% 0.50% 

(iv) Attrition rate - for Bargainable Staff 10% 10% 

(v) Attrition rate - others 2% 2% 
Senshtvlly analysis 

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present Value of 
Obligation (PVO). Sensitivity analysis is done by varying (increasing/decreasing) one parameter by 1 oo basis points (1 %). 
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(h) Change in assumption 

(i) Discount rate 
Increase by 1% 
Decrease by 1% 
Increase by 0.5% 
Decrease by 0.5% 

{II) Salary Increase rate 
Increase by 1% 
Decrease by 1% 

(iii) Withdrawal rate 
Increase by 1% 
Decrease by 1% 

(lv) Expected future Interest rate of Provident Fund 
Increase by 1% 
Decrease by 1% 
Increase by 0.5% 
Decrease by 0.5% 

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS • FAIR VAWES 
Accounting classifications and fair values 

As at 31st March 2019 
Gratuity 

5,614 
6,371 

6,303 
5,668 

5,929 
6,018 

Provident fund 

114 
657 

644 
114 

As at 31 st March 2018 
Gratuity Provident fund 

5,006 
5,666 

382 

5,607 
5,053 

5,284 
5,354 

374 

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with it's classification. 

Financial Assets 
(a) Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

Equity Investments 
(b) Amortized cost 

Trade Receivables 
Loans- Security Deposits 
Other Financial Assets 
Cash and Cash equivalents 
Other Bank Balances 

Total 
Financial Liabilities 
Amortized cost 
Non-current Borrowings 
Current Borrowing 
Trade Payable 
Other Financial Liabilities 

Total 

114 

Carrying value 
31st March 31st March 

2019 2018 

1,395 

16,652 
1,713 

32,006 
428 
93 

52,287 

20,563 
5,087 

39,530 
5,262 

70,442 

972 

24,191 
1,915 

20,436 
3,962 

307 
51,783 

56,487 
3,476 

59,963 

Fair Value 
31st March 31st March 

2019 2018 

1,395 

16,652 
1,713 

32,006 
428 
93 

52,287 

20,563 
5,087 

39,530 
5,262 

70,442 

972 

24,191 
1,915 

20,436 
3,962 

307 
51,783 

56,487 
3,476 

59,963 
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Tlle following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 
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The fair values of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents and other Bank Balances, are reasonable approximation of fair 
value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 
Allowance for credit loss on Trade Receivables, is taken into account, on the basis of credit worthiness of the customer individual. 
Borrowings represents Working Capital Loan and Term Loan from Banks obtained at market rates of interest available for debt on similar terms, 
credit risk and remaining maturities. As of reporting date, the fair value of borrowings is measured at amortized cost, which is reasonable 
approximation offair value. 
Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques used 
{a) Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at fair value 

Level 31st March 31st March 

{b) 

{c) 

Financial Assets 
MOCI Investments - Quoted 
MOCI Investments - Unquoted 
Total 

Level 1 
Level3 

2019 2018 

1,390 
5 

1,395 

967 
5 

972 

Financial Assets and Liabilities measured at amortized cost for which 
fair value is disclosed 

Level 31st March 31st March 
2019 2018 

Financial Assets measured at 
amortized cost 
Loans - Security Deposits Level2 1,713 1,915 
Other Financial Assets Level2 32,006 20,436 
Total 33,719 22,351 

Financial LlabiiHies measured at amortized cost 
Level 31st March 31st March 

2019 2018 
Non-current Borrowings Level2 20,563 
Current Borrowings Level2 5,087 
Other Financial Liabilities Level2 5,262 3,476 
Total 30,912 3,476 

The fair values disclosed in level2 category are calculated using discounted cash flow method. These fair values reasonably approximate to the 
carrying values of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost. 
During the year ended 31st March 2019, there were no transfers between level1 and level2 fair value measurements and no transfers into and 
out of level3 fair value measurement. 
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
Financial Risk Management Policy and Objectives 
The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise of Borrowings, Trade and Other Payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to 
finance the Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include Trade and Other Receivables, Cash and Cash equivalents and 
Deposits, which are derived directly from its operations. 
Group is exposed to Market Risk, Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk. 
The management of these risks is overseen by the senior management, which is advised by a team of senior officials. The Risk Management team 
oversees the policies and systems, on a regular basis to reflect changes in market cond~ions and Group's activ~ies and reviews the adequacy of the 
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. 
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

116 

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management 
Credit risk Cash and Cash equivalents, Trade Aging analysis Credit Diversification of Bank Deposits, Credit 

Receivables, Financial Assets ratings [Refer Note 39 (a)] Limits and Letters of Cred~. Sales on cash 
measured at amortized cost basis 

Liquidity risk Borrowings and Other Financial Cash flow forecasts Availability of committed credit lines and 
Liabilities [Refer Note 39 (b)] borrowing facilities 

Market risk- Recognized Financial Assets and Cash flow forecasting Group's net forex exposure is covered 
foreign exchange Liabilities not denominated in Indian Sensitivity analysis by natural hedge 

Rupee (Refer Note 40} 
Market risk- Loans and advances on Cash Credit Cash flow forecasting & Group uses a mix of interest rate 
interest rate Account and Term Loan from Bank Sensitivity analysis sensitive financial instruments to manage 

the liquidity and fund requirements 
As the borrowings were at fixed rate of interest the Group is not exposed to interest rate risk. 

Market risk- Investments in Equity Securities Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification 
equity prices [Refer Note 39 (c)] 
Commodity risk Procurement of steel and other Budgeted consumption & ~s A well controlled review process is in 

metals impact on finished product place for analyzing the price trend and 
market intelligence and accordingly the 
procurement strategy is adopted. The 
overall exposure is not material. 

(a) CredH Risk 
The table summarises aging of Trade Receivable : 

Not due Less than 6 months More than 6 months Total 
As at 31st March 201 9 
Gross Carrying Amount 12,502 3,771 419 16,692 
Allowance for doubtful debts -- -- (40) (40) 
Net 12,502 3,771 379 16,652 
As at 31 st March 2018 
Gross Carrying Amount 20,024 3,422 787 24,233 
Allowance for doubtful debts -- -- (42) (42) 
Net 20,024 3,422 745 24,191 

The Cash and Cash equivalents are held with Banks and financial institutions counter-parties with an external rating of ''AAK'. Thus, the 
Group considers that its Cash and Cash equivalents have low credit risks. 

(b) Liquidity Risk 
The table summarises the maturity profile of Group's Financial Liabilities based on contractual un-discounted payments 

As at 31st March 2019 
Carrying On Less than More than Total 
amount Demand 6 months 6 months 

Interest bearing borrowings 28,587 5,087 -- 23,500 28,587 
Other Financial Liabilities 2,325 58 2,025 242 2,325 
Trade and Other Payable 39,530 -- 39,530 -- 39,530 
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As at 31st March 2018 
Carrying On Less than More than 
amount Demand 6 months 6 months 

Interest bearing borrowings -- -- -- --
Other Financial Liabilities 3,476 68 2,665 743 
Trade and Other Payable 56,487 -- 56,487 --

(c) Market Risk : Equity Price Risk 

Atthe reporting date, the exposure to unquoted equity securities atfair value was~ 5 Lakhs. 

Total 

--
3,476 

56,487 

At the reporting date, the exposure to quoted equity securities at fair value was~ 1 ,390 Lakhs. A decrease I increase of 15% on the Bank Nitty 
market index could have an impact of approximately~ 122 Lakhs on the OCI or equity attributable to the Group. These changes would not have 
an effect on profit or loss. 

40. FOREIGN CURRENCY SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS 

Currency Net exposure in foreign currency Net exposure in INR 
As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 

March 2019 March 2018 March 2019 March 2018 
USD (2,19,718) 6,46,382 (151) 423 
EUR 1,04,59,191 2,21 '76,249 8,229 17,938 
JPY 25,53,480 10,25,13,190 16 635 
GBP -- 11,983 -- 11 

Currency Sensitivity Impact on profit Impact on profit 
% (strengthening)* {weakening)* 

As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st 
March 2019 March 2018 March 2019 March 2018 

USD 5% 8 {21) (B) 21 
EUR 5% (411) (897) 411 897 
JPY 5% (1) {32) 1 32 
GBP 5% -- (1) -- 1 

(404) (951) 404 951 

(*Strengthening/weakening of currency) 

41. CAPITALMANAGEMENT 

The Group's capital includes issued Equity Capital, Share Premium and Free Reserves. 

The Group's policy is to meet the financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing borrowings by maintaining a strong capital base. The Group's 
aim to sustain investor, creditor and market confidence so as to be able to leverage such confidence for future capitaVdebt requirements. 

Management monitors the return on capital earned, the capitaVdebt requirements for various business plans under consideration and determines the 
level of dividends to equity shareholders. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the financial years ended on 31st March 2019 and 
31st March 2018. 

Particulars 

Total Shareholder's Equity as reported in Balance Sheet 

Net Debt: 

Short term debt 

Long term debt (including current portion of long term debt) 

Gross Debt: 

Less: Cash & Bank Balances 

Net Debt/ (Net Cash and Bank balance) 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

As at 31st March 2019 

1,93,493 

5,087 

23,500 

28,587 

521 

28,066 

As at 31st March 2018 

1,80,276 

4,269 

(4,269) 
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42. DIVIDEND 
The Board of Directors has recommended payment of dividend of f10/- per fully paid equity shares (31st March 2018 : f10/-). This proposed 
dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Group to pay distribution tax off 271 Lakhs on 
proposed dividend. This dividend and tax on that is not recognized in the books of account atthe end ofthe reporting period. 

43. TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
All amounts which became due, for transfer to the credit of Investor Education and Protection Fund, as of 31st March 2019, have been transferred to 
that fund, except a sum of f0.60 Lakh (31st March 2018: f0.60 Lakh) being amount of 5 Nos. (31st March 2018: 5 Nos.) fixed deposits and 
interest thereon amounting to f 0.25 Lakh (31st March 2018: f0.25 Lakh). In view ofthe directives received from the Government Authorities, 
these amounts are not transferred to the Fund, being involved in an investigation. 

44. During the year under report, on the basis of the eligibility and method of availing, various incentives, granted by the Government of Madhya 
Pradesh, as per the Industrial Promotion Policy, the Group has recognized a sum off 2,077 Lakhs (31st March 2018 : f 1 ,830 Lakhs) in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as "Industrial Investment Incentives". These incentives are accounted on accrual basis. These incentives are available 
as per the Industrial Promotion Policy of the Government of Madhya Pradesh, based on the investment made by the Group, in eligible assets, for 
eligible products, in the state of Madhya Pradesh. These incentives are monetary incentives. 

45. The Group has spent f 460 Lakhs (31st March 2018: f 410 Lakhs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), which is shown in "Other 
Expenses" [Note No.28 (n)] to the Notes to Financial Statements. 
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year: f 456 Lakhs. 
(b) Amountspentduringtheyearon: 

Description In Cash Yet to be paid Total 
In Cash 

Project of establishing modern, sophisticated hospital 460 -- 460 

Total 460 -- 460 

46. During the year under report, the Holding Company acquired certain assets from MAN Trucks India Pvt. Ltd. (now known as MAN Truck & Bus India 
Pvt. Ltd.), being movable properties, immovable properties, intangible assets and other miscellaneous assets situated at Pithampur, District Dhar, 
Madhya Pradesh. All contractual arrangements entered into for these acquisitions fully implemented during the year. 

47. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED BY SCHEDULE Ill OFTHE COMPANIESACT, 2013 

Net Assets Share ol Share ol Share ol Total 
Profit or Lass Comprehensive Income Comprehensive Income 

Name of the entity As a% of Amount Asa%of Amount Asa%of Amount Asa%of Amount 
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated 
net assets Profit or Loss Comprehensive Total 

Income Comprehensive 
Income 

Force Motors Limited 99.26 1,92,063 102.63 14,718 100.21 478 102.54 15,196 

Indian Subsidiary: 

Tempo Finance (West) 
Pvt. Ltd. 0.18 339 0.11 16 -- -- 0.11 16 

Non Controlling Interest 
{Indian Minority) 0.09 172 0.06 9 -- -- 0.06 9 

Indian Joint Venture: 

Force MTU Power 
Systems Pvt. Ltd. 0.47 919 (2.80) (401) (0.21) {1) (2.71) {402) 

Total 100.00 1,93,493 100.00 14,342 100.00 477 100.00 14,819 
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48. INVESTMENTINJOINTVENTURE 

Interest in Joint Venture 
Force Motors Limited has 51% interest in Force MTU Power Systems Private Limited (FMTU). FMTU is a private entity that is not listed on any public 
exchange. 
Following table illustrates the summarized financial information of the Group's investment in FMTU :-

Particulars As at 
31st March 2019 

Current Assets 1,204 
Non-current Assets 896 
Current Liabilities 276 
Non-current Liabilities 22 
Revenue 49 
Net Income I (Loss) (786) 
Other Comprehensive Income (3) 
Total Comprehensive Income I (Loss) (789) 
The above net income includes; 
Interest Income 36 
Employee Benefits Expense 391 
Other Expenses 746 
Income Tax Expenses (credit) (302) 
Net Assets of the Joint Venture 1,802 
Proportion of the Group's interest in 
Joint Venture 919 

49. The Group is operating in a Single Segment. 
50. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped, re-arranged and re-classified wherever necessary. 

As per our separate report of even date. 

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
[FRN: 105215W/W100057] 

Suhas Deshpande 
Partner 
Membership No. 031787 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27111 May 2019 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

Sanjay Kumar Bollra 
Chief Rnancial Officer 

Kishore P. Shah 
Company Secretary 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Prasan Firodia 
Managing Director 

Prashant V. Jnamdar 
Executive Director 

Place: Pune 
Date : 27th May 2019 
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PROXY FORM 60th Annual Report 2018-19 

Form No. MGT-11 
[Pursuant to Section 1 05(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

CIN 

Name of the Company 

Registered Office 

Name of the Member(s) 

Registered address 

E-mailld 

Folio No/ Client ld 

DPID 

L34102PN1958PLC011172 

FORCE MOTORS LIMITED 

Mumbai - Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune - 411 035. 

1/We, being the member(s) of ............. shares ofthe above named company, hereby appoint-

1. Name Address 

2. 

3. 

E-mailld Signature 

Name 

E-mailld 

Name 

E-mailld 

Address 

Signature 

Address 

Signature 

or failing him 

or failing him 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my I our behalf atthe 60th Annual General Meeting ofthe Company, to be held on Thursday, 
the 19th September 2019 at 11.30 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at Mumbai - Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune- 411 035 and at any adjournment 
thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Item No. Description 
Ordinary Business 

1. Adoption of the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements, for the Financial Year ended 
31st March 2019, together with the Board's Report and Auditors' Report thereon. 

2. Declaration of dividend for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2019 
3. Re-appoint Mr. Sudhir Mehta (DIN: 00056867), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for 

re-appointment. 
Special Business 

4. Contribution to bona fide charitable and other funds 
5. Appointment of Cost Accountant with remuneration 
6. Ratification of the related party transactions in pursuance to the Trademark License Agreement with Force MTU 

Power Systems Private Limited, subsidiary of the Company 
7. Re-appointment of Mr. Abhaykumar Firodia, as a Managing Director of the Company, to be designated 

as 'Chairman' 
8. Re-appointment of Mr. Prasan Firodia, as a Managing Director of the Company 
9. Re-appointment of Mr. Prashant V. lnamdar, as Executive Director of the Company 

10. Re-appointment of Mr. Arvind Mahajan, as an independent director of the Company for a 
term of five consecutive years with effect from 28th September, 2019 

Signed this ....... day of .......... 2019 

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s) 

FOR AGAINST 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

Notes: 1. This form of proxy, in order to be effective, must be duly filled, stamped, signed and deposited atthe Registered Office ofthe Company, not later 
than 48 hours before the commencementofthe Meeting. 

2. As provided under Regulation 44 ofthe SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, members may vote either FOR or AGAINST each resolution. 
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I /We certify that I/we am/are member(s)/ proxy for the member(s) of the Company.  
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